
Dated 06-08-16 

Village of Mukwonago 
REGULAR PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

Notice of Meeting and Agenda 
Tuesday, June 14, 2016 

 
Time:   6:30 p.m.  
Place:  Mukwonago Municipal Building/Board Room, 440 River Crest Court  
 
1. Call to Order  

 
2. Roll Call  

 
3. Approval of minutes for the April 12, 2016 regular meeting  

 
4. Public Hearing 

All persons interested in making comments about any of the public hearing items will be heard. Formal petitions 
and written comments regarding any of the public hearing items may be submitted tonight. During the public 
hearing(s), if you wish to be heard, the Plan Commission asks that you begin by stating your name and address, 
speak for no more than three minutes and attempt to avoid duplication. Each person speaking at the public 
hearing must sign the Public Hearing Appearance sign-in sheet before speaking. The sign-in sheet is available 
on the table located at the back of the room.  

 
A. Conditional use permit requested by Pamela L. Turner, Pam’s Fine Wines LLC, to allow 

for the installation of outdoor seating at the property located at 100 Main St., Suite 1, 
known as MUKV1976109001 
 

5. New Business 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Following Items 

 
A. Recommendation to Village Board concerning conditional use permit requested by 

Pamela L. Turner, Pam’s Fine Wines LLC, to allow for the installation of outdoor seating 
at the property located at 100 Main St., Suite 1, known as MUKV1976109001 

B. Recommendation to Village Board concerning Site Plan and Architectural Plan Review 
for the construction of apartment buildings on the property located at CTH ES and 
Phantom Woods Rd., known as MUKV2011984 

C. Recommendation to Village Board concerning a minor Site Plan Review for the 
installation of parking spaces on the property located at 926 Perkins Dr., known as 
MUKV1969988007 

D. Consideration of an amendment to Chapter 64 (Sign Code) regarding directional sign 
standards for industrial properties. 

E. Status report on the progress of the Steering Committee of the Comprehensive Plan 
Update 

 
6. Historic Preservation Commission 

Discussion and Possible Action on the Following Item 
 

A. Construction of a boat shelter at the property located at 210 Grand Ave., known as 
MUKV1976085 

 
7. Adjournment  
 

It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of, members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at 
the above stated meeting to gather information. No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the 
governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice. Please note that, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of individuals with disabilities through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request this service, contact the 
Clerk’s Office, 440 River Crest Court, (262) 363-6420, Option 4. 



Village of Mukwonago 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin 
April 12, 2016 Plan Commission Minutes 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
Tuesday, April 12, 2016 

 

Call to Order  
Chairperson Fred Winchowky called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. located in the Board 
Room of the Mukwonago Municipal Building, 440 River Crest Ct. 

 
Roll Call  
Commissioners present: Joe Hankovich 
    Sterling Fairchild 
    John Meiners 

Mark Penzkover 
Joe Abruzzo 

    Fred Winchowky 
Commissioner excused:  Ken Werner 
 
Also present:   Bruce Kaniewski, Village Planner 

Judith Taubert, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 
 
Minutes 
Motion by Hankovich/Meiners to approve the March 8, 2016 regular meeting minutes as 
presented carried.  
 
New Business 

214 S. Rochester Street 
Motion by Penzkover/Abruzzo to recommend the Village Board approve the Site Plan and 
Architectural Plan for the construction of a commercial building on the property located at 
214 S. Rochester Street as presented subject to the following conditions carried: 

 

1. Approval shall be subject to approval of the requested variances by the Board of Zoning 
and Building Appeals. 

2. Approval of the plans for the redevelopment of 214 S. Rochester Street for a dental 
office shall be subject to the package of plans dated March 9, 2016 submitted by the 
applicant to the Village of Mukwonago, and further subject to architectural plans 
approved by the Plan Commission on April 12, 2016.  Prior to commencement of any site 
demolition, construction or the issuance of any building permit, final plans shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Supervisor of Inspections/Zoning Administrator, Fire 
Chief, Village Planner and the Village Engineer.  The final plans shall be modified to 
conform to all applicable Village codes (including landscaping, dumpster enclosure 
design, external lighting) and other conditions of approval.    However, the basic layout of 
the site as depicted the Site Plan shall remain unchanged, except for potential 
modifications of the STH 83 driveway and interior sidewalks.   Furthermore, the Plan 
Commission specifically added the following statements: 
a. No sidewalks are to added adjacent to the subject property within the Jefferson and 

Henry Street right-of-ways; except if in the future the Village adds sidewalk to 
Jefferson or Henry Streets, the Village may assess the subject property owner for the 
cost of the adjacent sidewalk. 

b. Four sided architecture shall be applied to the exterior design of the building. 



Village of Mukwonago 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin 
April 12, 2016 Plan Commission Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

 

c. Mechanical equipment may be added to the east elevation of the building within the 
10 foot setback, and shall be appropriately screened. 

3. Prior to the start of any site demolition, construction or issuance of a building permit, 
whichever occurs first, the following shall occur:    
a. Conformance with all applicable Village codes and general safety standards for 

demolition and reconstruction. 
b. Completion of all required approvals as listed in Condition No. 2.  
c. Approval of the building and floor plans by the Fire Chief, which may include, but are 

not limited to, the internal fire suppression system, external fire department 
connection location and hydrant locations. 

d. Approval of building plans by the Building Inspector after receipt of approval of 
building plans by the State of Wisconsin. 

e. Approval of building plans shall include appropriate locations of the external 
mechanical equipment to be placed hidden from view of neighboring properties.  

4. Prior to temporary occupancy issuance, and if needed, prior to final occupancy permit, 
the following shall occur:         
a. Completion of all site grading in accordance with final approved plans. 
b. Completion of all exterior lighting in accordance with final approved plans. 
c. Completion of the building in accordance with final approved plans and all applicable 

codes. 
d. Completion of a hard parking surface, including installation of handicapped parking 

signs and ramp in accordance with final approved plans. 
e. Completion of the dumpster enclosure. 
f. Completion of removal and replacement with grass of all unneeded current driveway 

openings with adjacent streets, installation of curb and gutter and adjacent paving in 
accordance with Village standards (and or DOT standards where applicable) where 
current driveway openings have been removed, and replacement of sidewalk along 
STH 83 and other curb and gutter along all adjacent right-of-ways that may be 
damaged during construction. 

5. Prior to final occupancy permit, which shall be issued not later than 90 days after any 
temporary occupancy permit, the following shall occur: 
a. Completion of all items within Condition No. 4. 
b. Completion of paving and striping of the entire parking area, in accordance with 

approved plans. 
c. Installation of all site landscaping. 

 
Motion made by Hankovich/Abruzzo to support the request for variances for the property 
located at 214 S. Rochester Street and recommend the Board of Building and Zoning 
Appeals approve the 10 foot green space on the north side of 214 S. Rochester Street.  The 
reason to approve the variance for a 10 foot variance is the structure will cause drainage 
problems on the adjacent property located at 204 S. Rochester Street (to the north) as their 
property sheet drains across this property.  The plans for 214 S. Rochester Street has 
accounted for this additional water in their plan to expel the water to the storm water system.  
With the drainage from the north, the pavement area on 214 S. Rochester will be used for 
parking with car stops (bumper) to stop crossing the property line. This is a redevelopment 
site. Parking is premium and needs as many parking stalls as possible without a negative 
effect. Mechanical equipment may be added to the east elevation of the building within the 
10 foot setback, and shall be appropriately screened.  Motion carried. 
 



Village of Mukwonago 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin 
April 12, 2016 Plan Commission Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Lighthouse Lubes Real Estate 
Planning Commission recommends the Village Board set up a Public Hearing concerning 
the reconsideration of a provision of the conditional use approval for John Theisen, 
Lighthouse Lubes Real Estate, LLC, Marsh View Drive, MUKV 1962-990-002 regarding 
shared parking between users on the entire property.  [Editor’s note:  the applicant will need 
to apply for an amendment to the conditional use permit, at which point the public hearing 
will be scheduled.] 
 
Consideration of an amendment to Chapter 64 (Sign Code) regarding directional sign 
standards for industrial properties. 
Item will remain on the agenda. 
 
Steering Committee of the Comprehensive Plan Update 
Village Planner Bruce Kaniewski reported that the Steering Committee of the 
Comprehensive Plan had two good meetings regarding the goals and objectives that they 
want to accomplish.  The next meetings they will be writing up land uses and planning of 
specific areas and categories.  Information only.  No action taken. 

  
Adjournment  
Meeting adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Judith A. Taubert 
Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO PLAN 
COMMISSION TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

REQUESTED BY PAMELA L. TURNER, PAM’S FINE WINES LLC, FOR OUTSIDE 
MERCHANDISE SALES 

 
Please take notice that there will be a public hearing before the Plan Commission of the Village 
of Mukwonago in the Board Room of the Village Hall, 440 River Crest Court, Mukwonago, 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, on Tuesday, June 14, 2016, commencing at 6:30 p.m., to 
consider the following matter(s): 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Conditional Use Permit – Outside Merchandise Sales 
TAX KEY/ADDRESS: MUKV1976109001, 100 Main St., Suite 1 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 1 BLK 4 ASSESSORS PLAT NO 1 OF THE VILLAGE OF 

MUKWONAGO PT NE1/4 & SE1/4 SEC 26 T5N R18E 0.574 AC 
DOC# 3369252 

OWNER: BBG Development LLC 
APPLICANT: Pamela L. Turner, Pam’s Fine Wines LLC 
MATTER:   Applicant seeks Conditional Use permit to allow for outside 

merchandise sales by installing outdoor seating at the property 
located at 100 Main St., Suite 1.  The property is zoned “B-2” General 
Business District.  Sec. 100-157. Commercial and Office Uses lists 
Outdoor merchandise sales as a conditional use.   

 
At this time all interested persons will be afforded a hearing.  Information regarding the above 
noticed hearing(s) may be obtained in the Clerk’s Office.   
 
Steven A. Braatz, Jr. 
Village Clerk 
 
Pub:  May 25 and June 1, 2016 
 



 

 

DATE:  June 10, 2016 
TO:       Village President Fred Winchowky and Plan Commission Members 
FROM:  Bruce Kaniewski, Village Planner  
RE:          Pam’s Fine Wines/Request for Conditional Use 
 
Pamela Turner of Pam’s Fine Wines, 100 East Main Street (downtown), is requesting a Conditional Use 
for outdoor seating and wine service.  Under the B-2, General Business Zoning District of the site, 
outdoor display and sales require a Conditional use. It has been determined 9 feet, 11 inches of sidewalk 
in front of the line of stores commonly referred to as “the square” is part of the subject property owned 
by Jay Campbell.   The remaining width of the sidewalk (about 8 feet, 6 inches) is within the STH 83 right-
of-way.   
 
The application includes a site plan showing a wood fence supported by planter boxes with the north 
side opening near the door of the business.  The plan shows three tables with seating for 12 patrons. 
 
Please see the attached report from Police Chief Kevin Schmidt.  Chief Schmidt asks that lights be added 
to the corners of the fence and that the outdoor seating and fencing be removed during the cold season 
months. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Pending the outcome of the public hearing, and pursuant to comments of the public and the 
information presented by the applicant, if the Commission feels the public health, safety and welfare 
will be protected (the basic standard for granting of a conditional use), then I encourage the Commission 
to recommend approval of the conditional use to the Village Board.   The proposal supports a healthy 
and viable downtown. 
 
Suggested findings in support of the proposal and terms of approval are listed below. 
  
Findings: 
 

1. The proposed use is in accordance with the purpose and intent of the B-2, General Business 
Zoning District. 

2. The proposed use is found not to be hazardous, harmful, offensive or adverse to the 
environment or value of the downtown and the Village of Mukwonago. 

3. The proposed use does not change the character of the neighborhood. 
 
Terms of Approval: 
 

1. The outdoor seating area shall be provided and operated in strict conformance with the 
petitioner’s public hearing presentation, and the information submitted on the Request for a 
Conditional Use Application. 



 

 

2. The Conditional Use is granted solely to Pamela Lynn Turner, and is not transferrable.  Nothing 
in this conditional use shall prohibit another owner to petition the Village for a new conditional 
use should a change in ownership occur.   

3. Use of the outdoor seating and serving of alcohol via the Conditional Use is conditioned upon 
applicant maintaining a valid liquor license from the Village of Mukwonago for outdoor service. 

4. Use of the outdoor seating and serving of alcohol via the Conditional Use is limited between 
April 1st and November 15th of each year. 

5. Applicant shall install lighting at the front corners of the enclosure subject to the approval of the 
Mukwonago Police Department and Village of Mukwonago Building Inspection and/or Zoning 
Administrator staff. 

6. The Conditional Use shall be renewed by the Plan Commission and the Village Board within one 
(1) year of approval, with a second one (1) year renewal, and then subsequent five (5) year 
renewals.  Renewal of the conditional use shall be granted if the use of the property is found to 
be operation in accordance with terms of approval of this conditional use.   Findings of 
nonconformance shall be grounds for termination of this conditional use. 

7. Use of the outdoor seating and serving of alcohol via the Conditional Use shall at all times 
conform to building codes, fire safety codes and health codes.  The use shall be subject to 
periodic inspections by the Mukwonago Police Department and Village of Mukwonago Building 
Inspection and/or Zoning Administrator staff. 

8. The use of outdoor seating and serving of alcohol shall at all times conform to federal, state and 
local laws. 
 

I appreciate the opportunity to assist the Village with this matter.   Should any questions arise, please 
feel free to contact me. 
 
Cc:  John Weidl, Village Administrator (via email) 
  Steve Braatz, Village Clerk (via email) 
  Joe Hankovich, Supervisor of Inspections/Zoning Administrator (via email) 
  Bob Harley, Code Officer (via email) 
         Mark Blum, Village Attorney (via email) 
  Jeff Stien, Fire Chief (via email) 
               Kevin Schmidt, Police Chief (via email) 
               Pam Turner, Applicant (via email) 
 

 





























 

 

1 

 

June 10, 2015 
 
Fred Winchowky, Village President 
Village of Mukwonago 
440 River Crest Court 
Mukwonago, WI 53149 
 
Re:  Site Plan and Architectural Plan Approval 
 Premier Woods Phase 2 Proposed 16 Unit Multi-Family Development 
 
Dear President Winchowky and Members of the Plan Commission: 
 
Calvin Akin of Premier Real Estate Management, Inc. requests Site Plan and Architectural Plan 
consideration to construct 16 multi-family rental units within two buildings on property located at the 
northwest corner of CTH ES (Main Street) and Phantom Woods Road. The previously approved first 
phase is under construction and was approved for 68 rental units in six buildings.  The property is zoned 
R-10, Multi-Family Residential.   
 
This second phase was identified on the plan during first phase review, but was not approved.  The 
original second phase was to have larger buildings, but now has been scaled back for 8-unit buildings.  
The 8-unit buildings are the same as the building nearest to Main Street approved for the first phase. 
 
Pursuant to policy of counting only one-half of the site’s wetland area as part of the overall density 
calculation, the first and second phases combined have a density of 5.5 dwelling units per acre. 
 
Application Summary 
 
Property Size:  17.76 Acres (According to applicant survey of site) 
Village Comprehensive Plan Designation:   Multi-Family Residential 
Zoning District:   R-10 Multi-Family Residential 
Proposal:  Additional 16 rental units in two buildings for a total of 84 rental units on site. 
 
Surrounding Conditions: 
North:                 Amato Ford; B-2 in Village 
East:         Birchrock Senior Living Complex; R-4 in Village 
                               Large Lot Single-Family; A-1 and AE in Town of Mukwonago 
South:                  Vacant; B-3 in Village 
                               Single-Family; B-2 in Town 
West:                    East Troy Railroad Track 
West of Track:      Large Lot Single-Family; R-2, EC and C-1 in Town  



 

 

2 

 

Background 
 
Several quick comments about the proposal: 
 

1. Because a second entrance to the second phase is only 250 west of the CTH ES/Phantom Woods 
Road intersection, at staff’s request a turn lane into the second entrance has been added to the 
plan. 

2. Please see the attached letter from Village Engineer Kurt Peot indicating the preliminary storm 
water management plan will meet the requirements of Village ordinance. 

3.    On-site parking meets the new parking standards adopted December, 2015. 
4.    Documents to provide the Village easements to access on-site utilities were not provided during 

first phase approvals, but have been provided with this application. 
 
Recommendation 
 
I recommend approval of the requested site plan and architectural plan approval.  The proposal is 
consistent with the first phase, and conforms to R-10 development standards.  I further recommend 
approval of the site and architectural plans subject to the following list of conditions. 
 

1. Approval of the plans for the proposed second phase of Premier Woods Multi-Family 
development at the northwest corner of Main Street (STH 83) and Phantom Woods Road, for 
two-8 unit multi-family structures, shall be subject to the package of documents and plans 
submitted by the applicant to the Village of Mukwonago on April 8, 2016 with a portion of the 
plans revised with a submittal dated May 19, 2016.  The plans may be further modified to 
conform to other conditions of approval; the building and floor plans may be modified with the 
approval of the Building Inspector to conform to Building and Fire Safety Codes and all plans 
may be further modified to conform to Village design standards.   However, the basic layout of 
the site as depicted on Sheet 5, Site Plan, shall remain unchanged. 

2. All ingress/egress drives and parking areas shown on Sheet 5 shall remain private and shall be 
maintained in a usable and passable condition at all times.  The private drive parallel to the 
western property line shall be constructed to Village public residential street standards. 

3. Approval shall be subject to approval of a Storm Water Maintenance Agreement and a 
Developer’s Agreement by the Village Board.   The Developer’s Agreement shall list these 
conditions of approval, a list of all final plans for the project, and responsibilities for off-site 
improvements. 

4. With approval, the Plan Commission and Village Board grant allowance of multiple principal 
buildings on one lot. 

5. Prior to issuance of the first building permit, a landscape plan shall be submitted for the 
approval of the Zoning Administrator and Village Planner. 



 

 

3 

 

6. The property shall be maintained in a clean condition, free of debris at all times.  No junk, 
inoperable or abandoned vehicles, or vehicles undergoing repair shall be kept on the property at 
any time.   No vehicles shall be parked in any area not designated for vehicle parking as provided 
for on Sheet 5.   

7. Only signs allowed by the Village Sign Code, and approved by either the Zoning Administrator or 
Plan Commission, shall be allowed on the property. 

8. Prior to the start of any site construction or issuance of a building permit, whichever occurs first, 
the following shall occur:    

a. The Village Engineer shall approve all site engineering plans and documents, including a 
complete Storm Water Management Plan.   

b. Village Board approval of a Storm Water Maintenance Agreement and a Developer’s 
Agreement (to include a submitted and Village approved Letter of Credit for any off-site 
improvements). 

c. Submittal of the signed easements granted to the Village of Mukwonago providing 
access to maintain on-site sanitary sewer and potable water lines and hydrants. 

d. Completion of all approvals listed in Condition No. 3, and all plans shall be consistent 
with the plans listed in Condition No. 1 or as modified and identified in the Developer’s 
Agreement. 

e. Approval of the plans by the Fire Chief, which may include, but are not limited to, the 
internal fire suppression system, external fire department connection location and 
hydrant locations. 

f. Approval of building plans by the Building Inspector after receipt of approval of building 
plans by the State of Wisconsin. 

g. Approval of building plans shall include appropriate locations of the external mechanical 
equipment to be placed hidden from view from neighboring properties.  

9.       Prior to temporary occupancy issuance for any building, and if needed prior to final occupancy 
permit, the following shall occur: 

h. Completion of all site grading and storm water management facilities in accordance with 
approved plans, including landscaping that is a part of the storm water management 
facilities.  

i. Completion of all exterior lighting for the building in accordance with approved plans. 
j. Completion of the building in accordance with approved plans and all applicable codes. 
k. Completion of a hard drive and parking surfaces from the exterior public right-of-way to 

the general area surrounding the building, including installation of handicapped parking 
signs and ramp. 

l. Completion of the dumpster enclosure for the building. 



 

 

4 

 

10.   Prior to final occupancy permit for any building, which shall be issued not later than 120 days 
after any temporary occupancy permit, the following shall occur: 

m. Completion of all items within Condition No. 9. 
n. Completion of paving and striping of the entire parking area, in accordance with 

approved plans. 
o. Installation of all site landscaping. 
p. Completion of all required public improvements as specified in the Developer’s 

Agreement. 
q. Completion of any other municipal code requirement in the interest of the health, 

safety and welfare of the public. 
 
I appreciate the opportunity to assist the Village of Mukwonago with the review of this proposal.  Should 
any questions arise, please feel free to contact me. 
  
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Bruce S. Kaniewski, AICP 
Village Planner 
 
Cc:    John Weidl, Village Administrator (email only) 

Steve Braatz, Deputy Clerk (email and hard copy) 
Joe Hankovich, Supervisor of Inspections (email only) 
Bob Harley, Codes Official (email only) 

               Mark Blum, Village Attorney (email only) 
Kurt Peot, P.E., Village Engineer (email only) 

          Kevin Schmidt, Police Chief (email only) 
    Jeff Stien, Fire Chief (email only)  
    Dave Brown, Utilities Superintendent (email only) 

Ron Bittner, Public Works Director (email only) 
Tim Seidel, Architect (email only) 
Tim Lynch, Engineer (email only) 
Joe Goldberger, Applicant’s Representative (email only)  













������
���	
��������������	�����	������
�����������
�������
����
�
������������
�����
������
������
������
�����
����� �

���
�����
!��"�#������
�����$
���
����
����������������
� %����������
������
��
�������
����
�������

��� ����	���	 
� ���

��	�����
����
�������

������	�������

���

	��������

��

���
��� 	���

� ��	

�����������

SITE IMPROVEMENT PLANS
FOR

PREMIER WOODS - PHASE 2

SHEET INDEX
�
�
�
 
�
&
'
%
�

�
����"������"����
���(���
�
�
�!������
���	��
����
��"���
����
��"���
����
��"���
�
������
������!�#�����	�����������#�����
�
���
���!�#�������	�
������#�����
�
����
������
����
�������������

�
����"�����
���(
�
�
�
�!�	��
�
���	��

����
������
����������������

SITE IMPROVEMENT PLANS
FOR

PREMIER WOODS - PHASE 2
 VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO, WAUKESHA,  WISCONSIN

VICINITY MAP SITE MAP

�����������	����

�
��
����
��

�
��
�	�
��
��
���
��
��	
�


�
��
���


�
��

��
�

���������"������ ������ �#��"������ �
����
������������������"���������%�����

� !�"!�#
� !�"!�#
� !�"!�#

��
	
���

��
	
���



���

%)

��
�

�)

�����
��������

�����(�
�
����
����!����

��
�

���)�	
��

�����������
������������$�&�
��"
��������"��������

�����(�
�
����
����!����

���)

���

�)

�)

 $%��	����	������������
����
�����&���� "� �

��#���$��' �$�

��
�

��
��
	�
��

	

�

�
��

��	�����
����
�������

������	�������

	��������

��

	���

� ��	

�����������

 *

&*

��*

����������"���������	�!�����!

�!�
����%*����� �
�

���

� !�"!�#���

�
 *����� ���"��

����	���

���������
����

��)��)���
��

���+ ���+

�*�	
��

�)

�&)��$�

���"�������	���
�$�,�*���������������
�$�,�*��
�����������

��*�����"��
���������

�����������

&* �*�	
��
&*

�)

 ) )

�)

���+���+

���"�������	���
�*���������������
&*�����"������������
�����������

�)

���"���	��
$�������


�
 *���������������

�������"�����

�
�

��)�	
��

��)
���

��
-�


��
���*

����*�����

�, *

&*

�%*

����*�����

'*

�+

������

�
������������
������������

�����(�������������������������
��������������
���
�"���������"����-�
�����
�������"
��������������"
���������������
����������������.�������������
�	���"���

����������
�������"���������	������
���������������
�������
�������/�
����������������	
�
	�	�������������

�����(���
��������
���
���������	����������
����	������
�
��������
��

 ���������
��������.�������������������
����������������
�"
����������������������������������

�����
������"�����	��
�	��
�����
��������������
�"�����
��
&�&�����"���������������
�
���
�������������������
���
���������
���

&���
		��
���!����������������
��������

.�����
�������
�������
�"��������
���

'���
����"����������������������������
������������)
���������	�����������
��
�������"���������������
��
�"�����(
���

%
�

��� �������
��

��)�	
��

�$��

�)

�)

��)

�)

�)

	��
�	��
����������
�����(�
�������
��
�����!���"�

�)

���
�����������

���

����	�(�������

�)�	
��

�0��
��
��
��

���
����������
�����
�� �����
��

��	������
��!�����

�0��
����
��

�
�

� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#

��*�0��%*��������
����
�� ��
�



%)

���	�����
���

��
�

%)

�)�)

��� ���

�
����������
�����(�
������
��

�!���"�

*�*

��)

���

 ��

*�*
�����1��2��)
�����1��2����)
�����1��2����)


������
���������
�
�
�"����
.���
����
����������������"������-�
�������
�"���(�������	
�
	�	������*���������"�����
	�������
���

�����	�
��������������	����
�"��������������"����	�����������	��"�����
	�
������������
���������������"����"���������"��
	��"������������������	���������
	�������	������
��
�"��
����

�����(�
������
�
�!�����

 $%��	����	������������
����
�����&���� "� �

��#���$��' �$�

��
�

��
��
	�
��

	

�

�
��

��	�����
����
�������

������	�������

	��������

��

	���

� ��	

�����������

�(����
����
�

�����(�
�
����
�

������
����
��

�
�������������������
������������"��

�
�
�����

�����
����
��

�����(�
�
����
����!

�����
�#���	����
�����"��
�"
�(����������


�����"��"������
����
�"���������
�"��
��
�������������������"
������
�

�)
$�
*

�)$�*�	�(�

�)$�*�	�(�

�)$�*�	�(�

�)$�*�	�(�

�

���

���
�*�	�(�

�����(�
�
����
�

�

�������������

�����3

3

3

3

3

4�"������
�
��������������-�
���5

����������
����"��)$ )
��*������"

��������

�678�9:;<7=>�?;8@9�A=��78BA=87=
�@C;:DE@=D�AF��:;=8CA:D;D7A=
�D;=9;:9��@D;7G��:;<7=>�%����$&�

�����
����
��

�����
����
��

�)$�*�	
��

�)$�*�	
��

���������

���������

�����(�
�
����
�

�����(�
�
����
�

�����(�
�
����
�

���������

���������

��
���	��"��

%)$�*����������
���������
���
�����������(�
������
��
�������

��
�

�
�
���


��

���������
�
�������������"�����
�������
	�!������-�
����
������������
�

�
�

��	�����!��
��"��"������
�������
�������  
�

��������/�
�����������
��/�������������������

�����������������
�������
����
���	��������"�����
�
�������	��
�������������	������#������������
�
�
�"������������������$�����
��������

���

��	������������


�����
���

���

 *

�
��
�����
��

������
���
������������

�
�
�

�����

������������4���������5
��
�������"��"�����


����
�
�������	
�
��	
����*�(��*�(���*

	
�������"�����-�
�����

�����
�������	������"���(�������
��
�����"��������"����"
��
�����
�"������
���������������
�
��

� *

�%*

�	��������

��
����

��� * $�����	����������"�����
�����"������-�����
���������"����"��������
�"��������	
�������

')���	�

')���	

�	������!���
��! �
�


�����������
����!���� �
�

�"!�%!�#���
�"!�%!�#���
�"!�%!�#



��/�������	������������
�"���
����������������
���
������
�����"
��������	�(
	�	��
���"�
�"��2�&*���	
�
	�	
�
���"�
�"��2��*�������������
�����"�������
���������
�"�����
��
������������������
�"
���"���
������"������������!��
�����"�
������������������
��������

	��"������	�������"������
�"����(�����������	�
���
��

������,�(������������������

��������������������
������	�����"��������	�������
����
��
�$ '%���-�
��	�����������	�����
�
���
����

/�
�����"�����������
�"�������"�����	������
���	��������
���!������������������������	��������!�������������������
���
���!�	��"����

���������
���	������
�������2���������-��
��"�����
���������

���������������
���������������	��"�������������
����
�"
��
���	��������
��������(������"�����������������(
��
������
�"���
������	��"�������
����-�
������������(
��
���
���!��������������
�������"������������������������"���
��
����	��"�������"������
����
�"���(
������!�������
�������	����
����������������������"�������
��
���

�$
��"����������"
��������������
����-�
������!�������
���$������

����"������
����	�	��"���2��*���������
���
���!�	��"���2��*���������

�����*�*���������

����$��������
�����������

�����������

�
	������

�&��, *
&*

�)$ *�	
��

 %*����
 )�$��*�	"

 ��,�*�	
��  ��,�*�	
��

 %*

��*

��*�	
��

�*

��*

�*

 *

%*

�����"��$�'���	��"
�������	��#
�$����
����	��������$�����!����

����	
���

 *��������

	
��
�%*

��	�

�����"������$�� �
����������-��

�&*��
��

����������
�������
������������

&*

&*

 $%��	����	������������
����
�����&���� "� �

��#���$��' �$�

��
�

��
��
	�
��

	

�

�
��

��	�����
����
�������

������	�������

	��������

��

	���

� ��	

�����������

����	������ �
 

���
���!���������������	��"�� �
 

������	�
��"!������
������
�� �
 

���

�
 

���������������������(�����
��  
 

����������
���#
����
�����(�4����������5

���
������������"

�����
����

������

�����"����4�!��5

�����"����4�!��5

���
������������"

���
������������"

�����"����4�!��5
���
������������"

������

�������
������������������$
�$���������������"�������������
���-������
.�������"���������
����������������������	���	���
����
��
������������������

���������"������������"���������
����
��������"���������
�
����!����
�������
������������"�

���������"���������
�������"���
��
���/�
�����
����������
��
��������
��

������	�
���"����
�����
������
��

����"����
������


���5

�"!�%!�#���
�"!�%!�#���
�"!�%!�#



�HC7B;G��:;I7DH��;GG��@BD7A=
�D;=9;:9��=7D�$��*��@D?;BJ

�AK=9;D7A=��A7G

�7=786@9��:;9@

�=:@7=FA:B@9��A=B:@D@�A:
�:K86@9��DA=@�@I@G7=>��;9

�
@8
7>
=�
"
@7
>6

D

�@D;7=@9��A7G

�=7D��:;7=;>@��7GG
4�, *��:K86@9
�ABJ�A:��DA=@5

� *

�@H8DA=@��D;=9;:9��=7D

�@H8DA=@��;C��=7D%*�	7=��A<��@:E@;?G@��A7G

 *��@:FA:;D@9������:;7=;>@��7G@
�:;CC@9�7=��7GD@:��;?:7B
4
F��@LK7:@95

�CC:A07E;D@�7E7D8
AF��0B;I;D7A=

�*�$����, *

%*

�@BD7A=

@I@G7=>��;9��@D;7G

�G@I;D7A=

&*��:K86@9��ABJ�A:
�=:@7=FA:B@9��A=B:@D@
@I@G7=>��;9

%*�A:��&*
�D@C

��AD@�
�����6@�G@I@G7=>�C;9�78�DA�?@�BA=8D:KBD@9�AF
�����B:K86@9�8DA=@�A:������C87�M�K=:@7=FA:B@9
�����BA=B:@D@�

�AC�AF��;GG��D@C8

4�5�$� *��;C��=7D8�A:
4�5�$�%*��;C��=7D

�AD@�
�����@BK:@�;GG�B;C�K=7D8�<7D6��@H8DA=@
������;C8@;G�A:�@LK;G�

%*��@H8DA=@
�=7D

 *��;C��=7D

�
&*

��N���*

�,�*�0����, *
�7?@:>G;88
�7=8
�:A=D��;B@

�D;=9;:9��=7D,�;8@��;9�
8AE@D:7B��@BD7A=��7@<
�7E@=87A=8�#��@7>6D�	;H��;:H�?H��@>7A=

�D;=9;:9��=7D

�%*
�@CD6�
"@7>6D�

�%*
�79D6� �%*

�@7>6D� ��%�G?8

�;C��=7D

�@7>6D�
"@7>6D�
�@CD6�
�79D6�

���G?8

�%*
����,�*
� *

�;8@�@I@G7=>��;9��AD@8�
����6@�G@I@G7=>�C;9�78�DA�?@
����BA=8D:KBD@9�AF�B:K86@9�8DA=@
����A:�������C87M�K=:@7=FA:B@9
����BA=B:@D@

���6@�?;8@�FAK=9;D7A=�78�DA�?@
���;CC:AI@9�?H�D6@�87D@�>@AD@B6=7B;G
���@=>7=@@:�C:7A:�DA�CG;B@E@=D�AF�D6@
���G@I@G7=>�C;9�

�0B;I;D7A=
7E7D8

&*��:K86@9��ABJ�A:
�=:@7=FA:B@9��A=B:@D@
@I@G7=>��;9

�=7D��;B@

 $%��	����	������������
����
�����&���� "� �

��#���$��' �$�

��
�

��
��
	�
��

	

�

�
��

��	�����
����
�������

������	�������
� !�"!�#

	��������

��

���

	���

� $�(

�����������

�����
�(
��
������������

�(
��
��������������#�"!�����

�(
��
���������	�
�

�(
��
������
���!�	��"��

�(
��
������
���!������

�(
��
�������	�	��"���#�
���

�(
��
�������	������

�(
��
�������"�����������

������������
���!������

������������
���!�	��"��

������������
���!��������

�������������	�������

�������������	�
����#���������
��

���������������	�
�

���������"!������#�����������

�������������
�
�����

�������������������
�����

���)

����)

����)

����)

�%*������#�������

��
��

��
��

��


�

��

�1
�

��
�
��

��
�

��


�

�
�
�1
�

�%)

��)

�������������
�� ����
����!�#����

��
	���
������������"�������������������������


�"�����������!�
�����
����!�����
����#����������
�

�
�

��
��
)

����"����������4�!��5�"����	��
���������

���
��1�

����������
�
�����
�!���"����4��������
5

����������
�
�����
�!���"����4��������
5

����������
�
�����
�!���"����4��������
5

�(����������������
�!�����������
�������!�������
��
���������%$�������

�"
��

��
�

�"
��

��
�

�')

��)

��)

	
�

��
��
��

��
�4�
�"
��
�5

����
�
����������

4�!���"���5

� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#���

���"���	��
$�������
 �
�

�����������
����!&
�

��������������
����
����
�

%)

��)

��)

��)

��)

���)

���)

�
�"����������

�)��������"�����

��)����
���!������
����	���

��)�������	�
�
����	���

�������
����
�� ��
�



%*�������	�

 $%��	����	������������
����
�����&���� "� �

��#���$��' �$�

��
�

��
��
	�
��

	

�

�
��

��	�����
����
�������

������	�������

	��������

��

	���

� "�(

�����������

�����������
�
���1�

�����������
�
���1�

���������������
�������
�

�(
��
��������������
�

�(
��
��������������

����������,�����

�
�
�1
�

�
��

��
�N

 %
��
���

��
)��

�
�

	
�2
�%
�&

��
�

��
*�

�
�
��
�
�2
�%
��

��
�

�
�
�1
�

�
��

��
�N

��
��

�

	
�2
�%
�&

�&
�

��
*�

�
�
��
�
�2
�%
��

�&
�

	
"
�1
�

�
��

��
�N

 &
��
��'

�'
)��

�
�

	
�2
�%
�'

��
 

��
*�

�
�
��
�
�2
�%
��

��
�

��
*�

�
�
��
�
�2
�%
��

��
�

��
*�

�
�
��
�
�2
�%
��

��
�

�������$���*������$�����	��������2���������,��

'&�����$���*������
$��

��	������

��2�����'����,��

��������
��
�
���1�

��������
��
�
���1�

��	�	"�1�
������N &����'�')���

��	�	"�1�
������N &����'�')���

��	����1�
������N %�������)���

��	����1�
������N���� � ������$���*������$�����	������

��2���������,��

����1 
��*�
���2�%���� 

�
"
�
�
��

	
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

���
��1�

��&���$���*������$����
��
��2��������,��

����1�
��������(
��
��

��������
��
��*�
��2�%��� �

�
 

� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#���

�"�
����

�"�
����

��	����1&
�,������"��$��&�����	�����������
������N��� ���&� )��
�
	�2�%�'�'�
��*�
��2�%� ���

& ���$���*����
������
��2���������,��

����1'
������N ��%��''��)���
��*�
��2�%� ��%

 ����$���*����
�����



��2�����%���,��	"�1�

&�����
���	��"��
������N�������%��)���

�
	�2�%�%�&�
�%*0��*��	��
������2�%� ���

��*�����
������2�%� ��%
��*�����
������2�%� ���

�(������(
��
���������
�����$��%*0��*��	�����"

��2���������,��



 $%��	����	������������
����
�����&���� "� �

��#���$��' �$�

��
�

��
��
	�
��

	

�

�
��

��	�����
����
�������

������	�������

	��������

��

	���

� "�(

�����������

���) %��%) �����)
���)

'���)

��������$�%*������$����������	�
�
��2����� ���,��

�������$�%*����
�$����������	�
�
��2���������,��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
(

�
�

�
�
��

�	
�

%*
0%
*��

�
�

�
��

��
�N

��
��
���

�'
)�
�


�
�
�2
�%
�%

��
�

%*
��
�
��

��
�
�

�
�
��

��
�N

�&
��
���

�&
)�
�


�
�%
*�2

�%
�%

��
 

"
!
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	
�
!

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�N

 �
��
��&

��
)�
�


�
�%
*�2

�%
��

�%
�


�
�&
*�2

�%
��

�%
�

��
��
�O
��
�
�
�

�
��

��
�N

�%
� 
���

� 
)�
�


�
�%
*�2

�%
��

��
&

��
��
��
O�
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�N

��
��
�� 

�%
)�
�


�
�%
*�2

�%
��

�'
�

 �
O�
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�N

��
��
���

'�
�)
�
��
2

�
��

��
�N

�'
��


�
�%
*�2

�%
��

��
 

����������,

�(
��
���������

�
�
�
�	
"
�1
�

�
��

��
�N

��
� 
���

��
��
)��

��
2

�
��

�&
�N

��

�
(
��
�
�
�	
"

�
��

�&
�N

� 
��

�

	
�2
�%
��

��
�

�
�
�
�
�%
*�

�
�
�

�2
�%
��

�&
�

�
(
�%
*�

�
�
�

�2
�%
��

�&
�

�
(
�%
*�

�
��
�
��
2�
%�

��
��

�� �����$�%*��������������

��2������'���,��

���������������

�(
��
���������

�� ) ��� )

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

��
(

�
�

�
�
��

�	
�

 �
O�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�N

� 
��

%*
�
�

�2
�%
��

��
 

�� ���$�%*����
�$����������	�
�
��2��������,��

 �
O�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�N

�'
� 

%*
�
�

�2
�%
��

�&
 

 �
O�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�N

�'
�%
�2

�
��

��
�N

��
��
���

'�
�)
�
�

%*
�
�

�2
�%
��

��
 

��� ���$�%*����
�$����������	�
�
��2����� ����,��

��������
������

�(
��
��
������

�
 

����	"�1�
������N��� �������)����2

����&�N��
�
	�2�%����&

%*�
������2�%� � &

����	"�1�
������N��� �������)����2

����&�N��

�(�����	"
����&�N� ��
�
	�2�%�����

�����%*�
��
��2�%���&�
�(�%*�
��
��2�%���&�

�(�%*�
������2�%�����

%*0%*����
������N��������')���

%*����������
������N�&������&)���

����O�����
������N�%� ���� )��

%*����������
������N���%��'�')��

���')

%*
��
�
��

��
�
�

�
�
��

��
�N

��
�%
��'

�'
)�
�

%*
�
�

�2
�%
��

�&
�

"!����������	�!
������N ��%��%�&)��

��..������2�%�����

�����O�����
������N������ �%)��

 �O�����
������N���%��'�%)��

������������(
��
�����	�
������N� ��

�
 

�
"
�
�
��

	
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

	�

�
��
��
��
��
4�
�"
��
�5

�����������
�
���1�

�����������
�
���1�

&*������
����
��
&*����������

&*����������

&*������
����
��

&*����������

�������$�&*�"!������

��������
��
�
���1�

��������
��
�
���1�

���������%*����
����������
���!���������������%*������$����������	�
�

 
 

�"��
���

�"��
���

� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#���

������������
��
������N����
��*�
��2�%� �''

������������

 �O�����
������N�������'��)��

 �
O�
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�N

��
�%
��'

�%
)�
�


�
�%
*�2

�%
��

��
�

����)

��)�������	�
�
����	���

��)����
���!������
����	���



�

�

�

�

 $%��	����	������������
����
�����&���� "� �

��#���$��' �$�

��
�

��
��
	�
��

	

�

�
��

��	�����
����
�������

������	�������

	��������

��

	���

� $�(

�����������

���������1�
����2�%�'�'�
����2�%�'���

���������1�
����2�%�'�&�
����2�%�'�%�

���2�%����
���2�%��� 

���2�%�'��
���2�%� ��

���2�%����
���2�%� ��

���2�%����
���2�%� ��

���2�%����
���2�%����

���2�%�%�'
���2�%�%��

���2�%����
���2�%�%��

���2�%���%
���2�%�%��

���2�%����
���2�%�%��

���2�%�%�&
���2�%����
���2�%�%�&
���2�%����

���2�%�%��
���2�%�&��

���2�%�%� 
���2�%�'��

	�

�
��
��
��
��
4�
�"
��
�5

�"����	��
���������

�(
��
�����*0�%*
�	�����"��
��

������2�%�����

������2�%� ��'

���
��1�

���
��1�������

�(
��
����������

���	�������	������!���
��!
����2�%����

� ���$���*0�%*��	�����"��
��
��2�����%����,��


���2�%���'&


���2�%����&

�
�

%� )

%) �&) ��)

���

 ��

��
�

��
��

 �
�

��� �����$���*����
��2���������,��

���
��������


��2�%� ��

 ����$���*����
��2����'����,�����
$���������

�	������!
��
��!
������2�%����

��%�'��

%����

%�&��

����������	
2�%����

�&) %) %) ��) %) %) �&)

�������������
�
�����

��

�(
��
���������

�(
��
���������

��
�

���

��)

%� )

%)

%� )

��)

%����

��*�#��*�
�
2�%�'��

��*�
��2�%�%�&

��������������������


��*����

��2�%�'���

�*����

��2�%�'���

�
�

������������  
�

� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#���

�)���	������
��!�
���

�)���	������
��!�
���

��*����

��2�%�'���

�*����

��2�%�'��� �����

���!������������������	����������"�
�(���
�������������������������
���
�������������������"����	��	�����
�����
���!
����"����
���������"����
���������"����,�$
��"��"
���

�����������
��

%�%��



�

�

�

�

�������
������

�����(�
������
�

�����!�����

����
�������

�
.�������������	
����
���
������
��
�����������

�����������	��4����5�2��&�0���	�4��	������5

�(�	���
�����������
��
��������	�����������������	
"�
�"����������2�������

����
���
��4����5�2��&�0������	�2�%�������

%�������
�������

2���������

��������)�0��')����
�


���������
���
����������!������	���
���
�������"�����������������"����
�����
�
��"������"����������
�����	���������

����
��������	�����!�����
������
����
�"��������"����������
.
�������"�
��	�����!�����
������
���"����
�����	
����
���"���
����!��"�������������

 $%��	����	������������
����
�����&���� "� �

��#���$��' �$�

��
�

��
��
	�
��

	

�

�
��

��	�����
����
�������

������	�������

	��������

��

	���

� $�(

�����������

	�

�
��
��
��
��
4�
�"
��
�5

�"����	��
���������

�����
������


�����������
��
���
��1�


����
��"��
�"�����
���	��
�����
���!����

����
����������	��
�����
���!����

������������

�
�������

�
�������������
��
����������4�!�5

��	����
��"��"����4�!�5

�����
�������
�

�(
��
����������

�
�

�
�

%
�

 
�

 
�

�
�

�
�������

����
���	���������
���!����

����
���	���������
���!����

�
�����

�
��"��"���

�����

���
	�������������� '
�

� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#���
� !�"!�#���

�� 
������
������������"������
����������
���"�������
�"
��	���������������������!�����
������
�
�
�������
�����

�� �����������
��"����������
��1�����������������
	���
��������
������������
��������
��1��
�������
����������������
�
�"����������
�"��"����!�
���

����������"
�������
���������������
��������!���"��
�����
�������������
�
�
������"�����
	��������������
������
��������
�����������"������
�������"���
��
���������������1�����
�����������������������

.��

		��
���!����������������
���

�� 
���������
���
����������!����
�����������������
��
����	�����!�����
������
��
��������������������
�
������������
�"��"������
�����"
���"�������"�����
�
	��������������
�"
���"�����
	������
����������
�����������

 � ������������������������������
����������
�����
�������

�� �����
�����"����	�
���������"���
���
�����������
����
����������
������"��������
��
�������������������
�"
�
���������
�"
��'���!��������������
�"
��� ���!����
�!���

'� ����"�����
���	�!����������������������

���
��
���

%� �������������!�������
�
����������
���������	
�������������	�
���������
���!���������������"
���
�������
�������������������������
		��
���!
������
������
���
��������������
�"��"������
��
�
�"���������

�� �����������	��
$�������
�

��� ���	����������
�����������	�������!������������"
����"��!��������
��������
����	����������!�/�������
����"������
���!����

��� ��	��������	�����!��	�)�����"�����
�����������
��"
�"������������
	������������������������
�������
������"�������������

.��������������	�����	�)�����

�
��������������"�������������

.�����
����
���	����������������	��"�����
���
		��
���!������
��	��
����"����	�����!��������������

��� ��������������	�������
	�������	��"�����
	���
�����������
�!����
�������
���������������"����"�
��!�
����"��������������	�����

���������
�����-�����

���������1�

���������1�
����
����������������
�� ����
��������������
��������"��������"
������
����"�

������	�����"������
�������-�
��	���������"���
�����
�
������	���������������������������������
��������
��
����������

�� �"�������
�����"���
���������"�������������������
����
�������"�����"����"�����
�"��������
��
������������
	�(
	
.�����"��������"�����������
�������

�� ������������"���"����������
����������	�������
����!���������!������
�"
��� �"��������������"�����
��"
��
������������
�����!��	�
�����������-�
�������
������	������
�"��"
��������������������"��	�
���
����
���
������
�����"
�"��"������������$�
���

 � ��	
�
	�	���� �
��"�����������
��"����������������������
�������������

�� ����
����"�����
���
�"
��'���!���������
�������
���
�
��	������

&� ����
����"��������	������-�
��	������������
���&�����
�
������������������
�
���
�������������������
���
���������
����������� ��	
(������"��������
���������������
����������������������

'� �����	��"���������
�
�������"���������������

%� �
������������������
����
����������������	������!���"�
�������

.����
�"���	�����!����������	��"����
�
����$�����������!	���

�� ��	�����!�����
���
�������!��������������G?8,����

�������������	�����!�����
���4�������������������5���
����
�"������������"��,����

���	��������
�� 4������������5�
�������	
(�������� ���������������������

��� ��!	���	����������
���������
��������������
������
���
�
������	�������!������������

��� 
���������
���
����������!���
������
��"�����
���������1��
�"��	�(
	�	���	�
��������
�����"�������
��������	�
����������������
���������
����	�������������	���
�
������������
�"���������"�
��������������&�
*�������
��*�

��� �����
��
�������
������������������"���� ���!��	������
����

.����
�"���	�����!�����
���

��� ����
����������	�����������������	�
��
����������
��"�
�
���
������

.���

� � �����
���!��������������
���!���������
���	���	����"���
�
������������"����
����
�"��������!���������

��� ���!������������!��
���������������������������
��
�
���	����
���
�����
	�!�	�������������������������	
������	����
������
��"�!�������	���������������

�&� �!��"������������"�������!���������������$�
������
	���
�����
����������������
��"�����
�
���������	��"�
���	
������
��������"
����"��������������������
�������
������������������
��"��������	��"���
���



��

�

��

����

�
	

�

����

�
	

�

����

�
	

�

����

�
	

�

����

�
	

�

����

�
	

�

����

�
	

�

����

�
	

���� ���� �� ��


����

������
������

���
�

�	���

�����

���������

������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������

������� �������� �������� �������

��
���
��
�

� 
���
��
�

�	���

�������� �������

�������� �������� ��������

����� ����� ����! ����� ������������������������� ����� ����! ����� ��������������������

"! #�!��

"� #�!��"� #�!��

���������������������������������������������

�!������

�!
���
��
�

� 
���
��
�

��
���
��

�����!�����������������


����

������
������

���
�

�#�#��

�������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� ��������

������������������������

����������

����������

�!
���
��
�

� 
���
��
�

��
���
��
�

� 
���
��
�

� 
���
��
�

���$���$

�#�#��

�#��%�#��%

�	���


����

������
������

���
�

���$

�#�#��

�#��%

�	���


����

������
������

���
�

���$

�#�#��

�#��%

�	���


����

������
������

���
�

���$

�#�#��

�#��%

�	���


����

������
������

���
�

���$

�#�#��

�#��%

�	���


����

������
������

���
�

���$

�#�#��

�#��%

�	���


����

������
������

���
�

���$

�#�#��

�#��%

���������

&'(()�*+,(-�.

�/0(�*+,(-�.

�-123�.

�-45(6)�.

&610(�.

��&

���!��

#7�4)(8

�1)(�.

��
��

��
�
�	

%
%
�
&

��
#

�%
�
��
�


&

��
%
#�

�9
��
%
�

�$

���
&�

��
��

��
�
��
�

�&

%
�#

:�


�

;�
��
<� 

��
��
��
�

;�
��
<� 

��
��
��
��
�=1
>

)7
(/
8(
01
-6
'/
)(
6)
?
2
/�-
-�6
4

+�!
��
�
@+

-/6
��
4*
-)

	
10
(7
:�	

���
�!
��
!�
 �
�!

�/
+
4)
'@
��
��&

(/
8(
0

#
-6
'/
)(
6)

�
1)
(

�
(7
6-
/A
)/4
3


4�

�'
(7
(�
�0
13
7�
1-
(�
)'
(�
A-
4A
(-
)@
�4
=��

-(
+
/(
-��

(1
0��

7)
1)
(

�
13
1B
(+

(3
):�



�
��#

3@
�*
31
*)
'4
-/C
(8
�*
7(
�4
-

-(
A-
48
*6
)/4
3�
/7
�1
�D
/4
01
)/4
3�
4=
�)'
(�
�
4A
@�
�-
4)
(6
)/4
3�
#6

)
4= � 
 �
�

�
��

�&
�%

&�
.

�
�
�	

%

#�

%
:�	

�&
�
%

&�


��"���E������� �/-7)��044-

#�����������%	�%�&�



� � �� �� � �

������
��	�

���

��	�

��

	#
���
�
%&��

F#��

�������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �����!�

����� ����� ����! ����� ��������������������

�
#���

�
#���

�
#���

!
#�!�

�
#�!�

�
#�!�

�
#�!�

�������� �������� ��������

�#&���
F#��

F#��

�#&���
F#��

F#��

�#&���
F#��

�#&���
F#��

�#&���
F#��

�#&���
F#��

�#&���
F#��

�#&���
F#��

�����!�

�����!� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �����!�

���������

�!
���
��
�

�!
���
��
�

�!
���
��
�

!�
���
��
�

��
���
��

��
���
��
�

!�
���
��
�

��
���
��

�!
���
��
�

��
���
��
�

��������������!� ����������������� ��������� ���������

F#�� F#�� F#�� F#�� F#��

	#
���
�
%&��

������
��	�

���

��	�

��

���������

&'(()�*+,(-�.

�/0(�*+,(-�.

�-123�.

�-45(6)�.

&610(�.

��&

���!��

#7�4)(8

�1)(�.

��
��

��
�
�	

%
%
�
&

��
#

�%
�
��
�


&

��
%
#�

�9
��
%
�

�$

���
&�

��
��

��
�
��
�

�&

%
�#

:�


�

;�
��
<� 

��
��
��
�

;�
��
<� 

��
��
��
��
�=1
>

)7
(/
8(
01
-6
'/
)(
6)
?
2
/�-
-�6
4

+�!
��
�
@+

-/6
��
4*
-)

	
10
(7
:�	

���
�!
��
!�
 �
�!

�/
+
4)
'@
��
��&

(/
8(
0

#
-6
'/
)(
6)

�
1)
(

�
(7
6-
/A
)/4
3


4�

�'
(7
(�
�0
13
7�
1-
(�
)'
(�
A-
4A
(-
)@
�4
=��

-(
+
/(
-��

(1
0��

7)
1)
(

�
13
1B
(+

(3
):�



�
��#

3@
�*
31
*)
'4
-/C
(8
�*
7(
�4
-

-(
A-
48
*6
)/4
3�
/7
�1
�D
/4
01
)/4
3�
4=
�)'
(�
�
4A
@�
�-
4)
(6
)/4
3�
#6

)
4= � 
 �
�

�
��

�&
�%

&�
.

�
�
�	

%

#�

%
:�	

�&
�
%

&�


��"���E������� &(6438��044-

#�����������%	�%�&�









 
 

 
 
 

W233 N2080 Ridgeview Parkway • Waukesha, WI   53188-1020 • Tel.  (262) 542-5733 
 

~12-10016 Premier Woods > 101 Phase II Review > Correspondence > Winchowky-20160608-Preliminary storm water review.docx~ 

 

June 8, 2016 
 

Mr. Fred Winchowky 
Village President 
Village of Mukwonago 
P.O. Box 206 
Mukwonago, WI  53149 
 
Re: Premier Woods Phase II 
 Preliminary Storm Water Review Letter 

Dear President Winchowky: 

We have reviewed a preliminary storm water submittal for the second phase of the 
Premier Woods development located at the northwest corner of Phantom Woods Road and 
CTH ES.  This review is required by the Village Storm Water ordinance to determine if early 
site planning has accounted for the requirements of the Ordinance.  The intent is to avoid large 
changes to developments after the Planning Commission and Village Board have approved the 
concept and site plan.  

We believe the preliminary site plan and storm water management plan submitted will 
meet the requirements of the Village Ordinance.  If the Planning Commission and the Village 
Board would choose to approve these documents we would request that you make approvals 
subject to our ongoing detailed technical review of the storm water management plan, and 
construction drawings for the requirements of Department Heads and Village Ordinances.  We 
also request that the permits to allow construction be withheld until this technical review is 
complete. 

If you or any staff member should have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Very truly yours, 
 
RUEKERT & MIELKE, INC. 

 
Kurt A. Peot, P.E. (WI) 
Principal/Senior Project Manager 
kpeot@ruekert-mielke.com 

KAP:sjs 
cc: John Weidl, Village of Mukwonago  
 Steve Braatz, Village of Mukwonago 
 Joseph Hankovich, Village of Mukwonago  

mailto:kpeot@ruekert-mielke.com


 
 
 
 
Mr. Fred Winchowky 
Village of Mukwonago 
June 8, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 

 Bruce Kaniewski, Village of Mukwonago 
 Mark Blum, Village of Mukwonago  
 Dave Brown, Village of Mukwonago   
 Ron Bittner, Village of Mukwonago 
 Chris Slater, Premier Real Estate Management, LLC 
 Timothy C. Lynch, P.E., Lynch & Associates 
 David K. Vivian, P.E., Lynch & Associates 
 Joe Goldberger, North Shore Legal 
 File 







�
�
�
�

�
�������	�
���	�	�
�
����	��

����
�
��
�����������	�
���
����	�
����������	���

�
�	�����������

�
�

�
�

�
	�
������
�

��� ��!�	��� �	�
��

����

����� ������	������� �

"#$���%��
������
�����
�
�
���
���������"��"��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
����������	�
���������������������	�������������	�����������	���������������������
���
�������������������	����������������
	�����������	����������������	���������
���
���������������������	����� �

� �



�����������������������!����"�!���	���������"�!�����#� �

� � � #�

�	��
���� ���
����
�
�%�� ������� ����� � � � � � � � � � ��

�
�%�� �
����� ���
��	�� � � � � � � � � ��
�

�%�� ��������	
����	���	� � � � � � � ��
�%�� ����	����������������	
������������	������ � � ��

�
�%�� ��������� � 	� ��	������� � � � � � � #�
�

����������������������  ��� !��� � � � � � � � #�
������"���#� ��$%���� � � � � � � � � "�
�

#%�� 
&������� ���������� � � � � � � � � "�
�
������&��'$()# #��*���� $����#���+��,�����#�(�,�#��� � � � � "�
�

"%�� ����
�� ���������� � � � � � � � ��
�

������-��'$()# #��*���� $����#���)#%#��(��#�(�,�#���� � � � ��
������.��������/���!00�)$� � � � � � � � ��
������1����,���!00�)$��#)���,���,��,�#��������2��������� � � � '�
�

�%�� �������	�
��(�	����� ������� � � � � � � $�
�
������3������������!00�)$�2��#,� ���,��4�������0#5� �� � � � $�
�

'%�� �	���
�	� 
�����	�� � � � � � � � $�
�

$%�� 
������� ������� � � � � � � � � $�
�

)%�� ����	�������
������!� �� ������� � � � � � $�
�
������6���,#)0���,�)����*7�)�����,����#)��+��,����8��)#%#��(��#�(�,�#��� � )�
������9������ ,)�,�#���# !0���!00�)$� � � � � � � )�
�

	
��� 
��
� $���	%�&� '����	������
� $���	%�#� ��	������
� $���	%�(� )%	��	���*���	�	����+��	��������,�*�������	����
� $���	%�-� !�������*���	�	����+��	��������,�*�������	����
� $���	%�.� �	��'$�������/������
� $���	%�0� ��������
���+��	��������,�*�������	����

$���	%�1� ���	�����2���*�������	����
� $���	%�3�� ��������������	���������$���������
� �
�
�
�
�
�
�



�����������������������!����"�!���	���������"�!�����#� �

� � � (�

�%�� ������� �����
�
2��������������������4�!���	��������4�!�����#4�	����������	�������������5)�6��������
���6��������	���(.4�2.54�7&3)4��	������������
�����4����������*�����4��	�����	� ����	��
���������������������
�������!���	��������4�!�����&4����������������������
�������4����
��������������	���������8*29�)�:���������������������!�������������7��� ���
�
2�	�������	�����%	�������( (�������	���	;����������	������������������������	��	����������
���
�������������
������������� �2�������������������������	�������#�����	<���	���
��	��	��� �
�
�%�� �
����� ���
��	�

�
�%�� ��������	
����	���	�

�	���������������������	�����4�!�������<�*����������	������4�*������(-�"�
)��	�������4�+	�	�	���- ������
��������������������)���	���*�������
�
������=����	��>�?2���	�	�	;����
�����������������	�������������	��������
��
��������������������������4�������������������<��������������������
�����
�	���������������������&@@<��������	��������������������%��������������������
��������������	�������������������������<��������	����������������������������
���<��������������������
������	����������������������
�<������������<�����
���	���������������������%����������������������������������	������������������
�����
�<��������	�������� A�

�
������=���	��>�?B�����	��4�����������
�����������������������������������
�����
	������<�����������������������������	���������	����������4����������
�����������������	������4��������������������������������������������>�C�����
�
���������������4�3@��������������	���	��������������������	������� A�
�
���	�����	��>�?2���	��	�����	�������	�������������	���������	��������������������;�����	��
����	�	����������������%������	����	�������������������	��	�����	���������������������
@ 0�	�����������������������	���������	�����������	����	��
��������	�����	���������
���	����%	��	�����	������	�	��� A�

�
�%�� ����	����������������	
������������	������

�+57�"�2����	��������������857�&.&�,�57�#&0:�
�
������=����	��>�?B�����	��4�B�!������������������������	���	����������������&<
����4�#-<�������������#<����4�#-<��������<���������	���������������	��������������
�������&<����4�#-<�������������#<�����#-<�������<����������������������
�	�������������4�������	����4�������������%	�����%���������	����� A��
�
������=���	��>�?B�������������������	����������������	����4�	��������4�����
��	���	���������������������������������	�������	���	���������������������<
���������	����	�����������
�>�C�����
�����������4�������	��4���������������
��%	�����%���������	�����4�����������������������	�����������3@D4�������������
�����������������	�����4�������������������������������������������� A�



�����������������������!����"�!���	���������"�!�����#� �

� � � -�

�
���	�����	��>�'�
�	����	�������>�����	�����������	�	���������������������������������<
�����������	��	�����	����������������������������E@D����������<�����������
	��	�����	���������4������������������������������	����� �
�

�%�� ��������� � 	� ��	������
�
9�����������������	�������������������������	���9����*$+4�����	���&@ @@<&.�
�	���
�����������������27<#@����������������������	������������������������	�	�������
�	������������� �!�������
������������������������������������&4�#4�&@�����&@@������������
�������
	�������*��2��������	�������	���	���	��4���	�����	���������������	���������57*��
���	���	���������%�������������������	������������
�������������
��	��2�����&>��
�

�*+,-�����-./01��*/12*,,��*,3-.�
�

�4567��-8366-18-�
�14-69*,�

�#:�536��*/12*,,�
�5,37-�;�18<-.=�

&<����� # (@�
#<����� # 1@�

&@<����� - @@�
&@@<����� . 0@�

�
$����	���������
������	��������������������������������%	��	������������������	�	����
����
�����������������	������	����������������	���	�������������
	�������27<..�
����������� �
�
2�����������	��������	������������	����������	������ ���	��������	������������	�	��������
�	�����
	��	��2�����#�����
 �$���	����������	�������������F�+$�5�������7���������
*��������	�������	���
�����	���������	�����������	��	>>-1?/@�� �
�

�*+,-�����5/,.��A>-.�51��/4-�
�*>��A7+5,� �*>��1/4��*7-� ����

*�B� *�����'���4�#����0�������������� B�
*�*#� *�����'���4�0����&#�������������4�������� B�
C�B� C�%��	���'���4�#����0�������������� B�
G�B� G������	���'���4�#����0�������������� B�
��$� �����������	���'���4�&����(�������������� B/+�
!��� !������	���'���� B/+�

�
��	���
	��	������������
�����������	�����������������	�	������9�G�B/+���	���
�	����������
9�G�+���	����������������������	��������	�	���������	���	�� ��C�����	��������4�	��	�����	���
����	������������������	�����������	�����������	�� �
�
�	��'$���8����	���E (:��������'���	������������������������8�'$��:����
������������7������!	�������H�������������
�����������������	�����������������������
������������������	�����������	�� �
�



�����������������������!����"�!���	���������"�!�����#� �

� � � .�

#%�� 
&������� ����������
�

2����	�������	�����������������
�������������
������� �2������	�����������������
���������
���
��	�������%	��	�������	�	�������	��������������	��	>>-1?/@�� �2������	����������
���
���	���������	�����&<������������	���������������������	��������������� �+���	����
��������	�������������������	������&<��4�#<��4�&@<�������&@@<����������������������������	��
	>>-1?/@�� ��2�����(�������	;���������������	����������	�����������%	��	�������	�	��� �
�

�*+,-�����A?65,50/8�	1*,A./.�52�
@/.4/10� 51?/4/51.�
�

�
+��	�����

$����

�
$����

8$����:�

�
7������*�����

5������

�
2	������

*��� �8�	� :�

!����C��
�7����8���:�
�
&<�����

�
#<�����

�
&@<�����

�
&@@<�����

)&� # 0.� 0&� &0 @� @ &#� @ -#� # #0� . -1�
�

"%�� ����
�� ����������
�
2�������������������������	�������#�����	<���	�����	��	������������	��
������
����
!�����&����!���	�������������!�������������7��� ��2����������	�������������	��# E�
������	���	;� ��
�
$�����	���	��������������
���,��
�����
	����	�������������������
���������	������	�����
���	����������
�����
���������	��������������������	�� �	>>-1?/@�#����
�������������
�	�������������
	����������	������������������	������������	����������	�� ��
�
2�����������
����������������������	�������������&@<���������������� ������	>>-1?/@���
����������������
������	��������������������	��� �
�
2�����������	�����������������������	�����
��8#:����	���������� �$����+&������������
������I��	�����������	�������
	������
��������
���������	������	��8B��	��&:����������������
����������������������	������ �2�	�����	��
	����	��������	��������
�������������	�������
�������������	���������������� ��$����+#�	������������������	������������������������������
����
���������	������	������ �
�
2�����-�������	;���������������	��������	���������������������	�	��� �
�

�*+,-�#���A?65,50/8�	1*,A./.�52�65>5.-?� 51?/4/51.�
�

�
�

�6*/1*0-�
	6-*�

�
�

	6-*�
;	86-.=�

�
�31522� 369-�
�37+-6�

�
�/7-�52�
 518%�
;�/1%=�

-*B��,5C��*4-�;82.=�
�

�:A-*6�
�

�:A-*6�
�

��:A-*6�
�

���:A-*6�

+&� # .1� 1E� . E� ( &#� - (0� 3 1(� &- .E�
+#� @ @3� 3@� & -� @ &#� @ &0� @ (#� @ .#�

2�2$'�$C2)7�*�527�'�� @ &-� @ #@� @ (E� @ E#�
�
�



�����������������������!����"�!���	���������"�!�����#� �

� � � 0�

�*+,-�"���*./1�D���377*6A�
�

�-4��-4-14/51��*./1�
����������������!�����	�
��	�	�

�
�

������)�����

�
�����
�
!����
8���:�

��%	����
������
�

7����
8���:�

��% �
������

)�����	���
8��:�

�
���������������

�����% �)��� ��
8$����"�����:�

�
������
�
*�������

����������J�
�

&<K���4�#-�9����
�

( &#�
�

@ @1� 3@1 ..� @ @E#� &�

#<K���4�#-�9���� - (0� @ @E� 3@1 13� @ &(-� &�

&@<K���4�#-�9���� 3 1(� @ &(� 3@3 .E� @ (@#� &�

&@@<K���4�#-�9���� &- .E� @ 3E� 3@E @-� @ -@.� &4�#�

�
J2�����������	����������������������	;�������
>�
� L&�M�#A�+	� ���	�	��4�����M�3@1 @@�
� L#�M�&#A�*������4���� �M�3@3 0@�

)����������	��
��4�*�����)����M�3&@ @@�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�



�����������������������!����"�!���	���������"�!�����#� �

� � � 1�

�*+,-�����*4*��377*6A�256��-4��-4-14/51��*./1�
�

�	������
�
�����
�
�
��� �
������	�	�

*����	���	������	����������������	���8+&:� �# .1�������
+	�������������������	�����
����8	�����	������<�	���
����:� N#.�C����
+	�������������	�	���
����8	�����	������<�	���
����:� N&#@@�C����
���������������	��������	�������O� 5��
G���������������	����������������	�� &D�<�.D�
$������	�����������������	�	�	���	����������O� 5����
!��������������������������������/�	��������8
/�	�������:� �#A���	�	��4�&#A�

*������4���	��
$�����
���������������������������������O��8+����	��:� �5����
C������	�4��������������
�������O� ���������

� �
�5/,��19-.4/0*4/51��*4*�;�--�*44*8<-?�7*>�!�.5/,�,50.=��

� �
5�����������	��	�����	���	������������� 5����
+��������	�������������������%�����(��� �����
��������
������O�

�/��

$���������	����%���������������������	���8F�+$:� ����������������
+	���������������������������������� N.�C����
+	�����������������������������������
����������� �/��
� �
�-1-6*,�+*./1�?-./01�?*4*�;�--�*44*8<-?�?-4*/,-?�?6*C/10.=��
!�������������������������� �03(E��C�
+��	����������������
�������������������	��� 3@1�
2����������������	���8�����������	��:�����
	���� 3&&4�&@����
	���
'�����/
	����8�	����	���/���	�:� (>&�
����������������	���8������4������4���% �����:� 3P��	��4�&@>&������

@ 3P�+������	��	���
�����

$�� �
����������8�	����������������/���	����:� - #�C����
���	��������������	;����������� @ @-������/.������
���	������������������,����	�����	��������� #��� ����������

��������,����4�&@�
�������	���������
���������

�
�
$��������	��
���������������������	�������	������������!���	�����������������������
��������
��������������������������	�������������������	��!�����& ��2����������������	��
������	�����
�����%	��	�������	�	�����%	�������
����31 1.��������	�������&@@������������
������
	���������
�����������	������3@& 3-P ��2��������������	�	�����%	�������
�	��
31 &.��������	�������&@@������������
	���������
�����������	������3@& 3@P �



�����������������������!����"�!���	���������"�!�����#� �

� � � 3�

�
�%�� �������	�
��(�	����� �������
�
2�����������	���
	�����	�	;����
���������	������	��������	�������<���������	���������

���������	�����������	�������������
	�����������������	�����	������	������������
������������	���������� �2�������	�������������	���	���	��3@D����������������2�����
������������	���82��:��������������������� ��'$���
�������������������������

���������	���	�����������������������	����I��� �+���	������������	���������'$���
	�����������������	��	>>-1?/@�" �
�

�	��
�'���/1��	����377*6A����54*,��/4-�:������-759*,.�
�

������� !���	����������	���K	����

	������*��������

!���	����������	���K	����

	���*��������

B��	��L&�8$����+&:�� .-( #� 01 1&�
$����+#� . E.&� . E.&�
�54*,� .-E &.&� 1( 00&�

�
�54*,��3.>-1?-?��5,/?.��-759*,�E�����;'�%���F"#)%�"�=�E�$�%")G�
�
'%�� �	���
�	� 
�����	��
�
$�������
�������	�����������������������������������8����$���	%�3:�����2���
������
��������	� ��$��������	������������������	�������	�����	����������	������
�������������	���������	����4������	�������������
��������������������	������
	����	��	����������	�	��������������������������	������������� �
�
$%�� 
������� �������
�
$������	�������������������������������	�������������
	����	������������
����������
�+57�����	������� ��2���������
��������	��
	���������	�	�������������������������
���	������������	������������	�� ���	;	�����������	���������������	���������	����������	��
	>>-1?/@�' �����������������	�������	���������������	�������������������	�����4��	���������
�����	���������������������	�����������	������������ ��!����������	�������	�	;��	���
	�����������������������	��������������������������	�����������	��������� �
�
����	�	;��	������������������������
���������	������	��������	�+�2�����������	��	��
�	���	���������8C+��&@<.4�$����������(. &:�	��������	��	>>-1?/@�' ���
�
)%�� ����	�������
������
�
2����	�������������������������������������������������������������� �2�����&#�
������	;����������������������	�����������������%	��	���������������������
�
��������������	�� ��2�����&(�������	;��������������	����������������	���	��	�����	���
����	������� ��
�

�



�����������������������!����"�!���	���������"�!�����#� �

� � � E�

�	��
�$���4567��*4-6��/.8<*60-��*4-.�256�
@/.4/10�!�65>5.-?� 51?/4/51.�
�

� &<�����
8���:�

#<�����
8���:�

&@<�����
8���:�

&@@<�����
8���:�

)%	��	���$����)&� @ &#� @ -#� # #0� . -1�
!�������$�����8+&�,�+#:� @ &-� @ #@� @ (E� @ E#�

�
�

�	��
�)���12/,46*4/51��5,37-��377*6A�
$���� 2�����'����8	�:� $����8��:� ���	�����	����������

8��<��:�
!��<+�������� #1 .0� # 0.� 0 @E�

)�G�52�454*,�/12/,46*4/51�95,37-�E�"%#$�*8:24�
�

$���� 2�����'����8	�:� $����8��:� ���	�����	����������
8��<��:�

B��	��L&�8�����+&:� &E 01� # .1� - #&�
+#� #1 .0� @ @3� @ &3�

�54*,�/12/,46*4/51�95,37-�E�#%#��*8:24�
�
�
�54*,��3.>-1?-?��5,/?.��-759*,�E�����;'�%���F"#)%�"�=�E�$�%")G�
�
����������	��4��������	�������	�����������������
���������	��������������
���������
������	���	���������������� �����	�����	�������	������������������������������������	���
������	����������������	��	�����	�� ��
�



�����������������������!����"�!���	��������� �

� � �

�
�
�

$���	%�&�
�

'����	������
� �



�����������������������!����"�!���	��������� �

� � �

�
�

6-7/-6��55?.�
�
'�������	����������������6�������������
����6��������	���(.4�2�
��.�5����4�7�����&3�)���4�	��

�����	������������
�����4�*�����������������4�����������	�����	� �



�����������������������!����"�!���	��������� �

� � �

$���	%�#�
�

��	������
� �



�������	
����������������������������������������

��������	
����
�
����
���������
���


���������������
������������	�������������������

��� ��!�"
#�$�����%�&

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

	�
�

��
��

	�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

�

�

��
��

�	
�

��
��


�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

	�
�

��
��

	�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

�

�

��
��

�	
�

��
��


�
�

����
� ����	� ������ ������ ������ ���	�� ������

����
� ����	� ������ ������ ������ ���	�� ������

����
�����
		

�
�
��
�
��
��

����
�����

		
�
�
��
�
���

�����������

		
�
�
��
�
��
��

�����������

		
�
�
��
�
���

�

����������������������������������������� ��!"	�#�$���� �%&�'���
���!"	�
� 
�� ��� ��� ���

(���
� �� 	� 
�� ���

����� 
���"��)��
��*����+���������,��������-	.�/0

/1 2���.



�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

	
�

�
��

�
�

�
�


��
��

���
�


�

��

���
�

� 
'

��
��

�%
�(�

��
��

��
�)'

*
(+

��
���

�
��

���
�	

�,
��

��#
��

�$
��

�

�
��

���
�	

�,
��

��-
��

��

�
��

���
�	

�,
��

��#
��

��
�

�!



��
���

��
��

��

�

��
�


�
.

��
�

��
�

.
��

��
�

�#
��

�
��

��
�

	�
�

�
��

��
��

/
�	

��
��

��
�

0
��

��
��#

��

0
��

��
���

��
	�

�

-�
��

%��
�

-�
��

�1
��

�

�
��

��
��

���
�

�2
	

�
��

��
��

�3
��

��
�

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

#
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

4
��

�
*

��
��

�	

�
��

��
��

�
	�

�

�
��

��
��

	�
�

�
��

��
��

��
5

��
��

��
�

	�
�

�
��

�
��

�

�
���

��
��

��
��	

�
��

��
��

	�
�

�
	�

���
'

��
�

�
��

��
��

	�
�

6
��

��
�

��
��

��
	�

�

�
��

��
	�

�

*
��

��

�
	�

��
��

�-
��

��
1�

��
��

��

"
��


�
��


�
��

�

�

�
���

�2
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

�!
��

��
���

�
4

��
��

(�
��

��
��

��
�7

�$
��

��
�

,
�

�4
��

��
�

�
�8

��
�4

��
��

-�
��

��4
��

��

#
�

$%
��

��
& '

��
��

��#
��

��
$�

�	
��

9�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

	�
��

��
��

��
�'

*
(��

��
��

2
�	

	�
��

��
��

:�
;�

<!
!=

�
��

��
�$

:��
��

���
�	

�2
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
��

�=

5
��

��
$�

2
��

���
%�2

�	
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�%
�2

�	
	�

�$
��

��
��

��
��

2
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

$�
�%

���
��

��
��

���
�%

�2
�	

	�
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�%

��
��

���
��

�
	�

��
�2

��
�=�

9�
��

2
�	

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
���

��
�2

��
���

��
��

��
%��

��
���

��
��

$
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�2

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�=

#
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�2
�	

��
��

��
�%�

��2
�	

2
��

��
��

2
��

��
=

�
��

��
��

�%
��

�	
:�

��
��

��
��

�4
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

,
4

-:
�

��
��	

:��
�

��
��

���
��

��
�=

��
��

=�
��

�=
$�

�
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

2
:�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��)
5

#
�

0
:&

<;
 +

�
�	

��
%��

2
���

��
�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

	�
�8

��
���

��
��

��
��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�	

��
��

���
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�=
�'

�	
��

8�
��

��
��

��
��

�	
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
�

'
��

��
��

�>
��

�?�
��

��
��

��
��

	�
�8

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�%�

2
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

%��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

>�
���

�=

9�
��

�	
��

��
��

���
�$

��
��

��
��

�%�
�2

���
��

,
�

/
'

?�
4

�
�

��
��

��%
��

��
��

��
��

��
�%

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

)�
+��

��
��

��
��

��
�

=

�
��

���
��

��
��

'
��

�:
�

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
�

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

'
��

��
/

��
�:

�
�6

��
��

��
��

��
��

�	
��

;�
��

!�
;

�
��

��2
�	

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
)�

��
�	

��
��

��
��

�
�+

�%�
��2

�	
��

��
��

��
�:

;!
�!

!!
��

���
�$

��
=

/
��

�)
�+

��
��

��
���2

�$
��

��
��

��
	�

��
�$

��
	�

��
:�

�'
	�

��
@�

��
!�

�

�

��
��

<�
�!

��

9�
��

��
��

�	
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

2
�	

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
�

��
2

	�
��

��
��

��
��

$�
��A

��
�	

��
��

��
��

��
%%�

��
�%�

�2
���

��
��

�
$�

��
��

�2
�$

��
��

��
�	

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
2

�	
�=

�'
��

��
��

��
���

��
�2

��
2

��
��

��
��

%��
�$

�%
�2

�	
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
2

��
��

��
��

��
��

�=

�
��

���
�	



�

���
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�
��

��
��

�	

�

��
�


�
�

��
�


��
��

��
��

�

��

�



�
��

��
��

���
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

���
��

	�
��

���
��

�
��

���
��

��
�

��
� 

��
!�

"
#

�$
��

��
�%

�&



��!�'�����
%
�&

���(��$

���&�"��$
�)��������
�*�"���������"�+,- 

��!�'�����./0�� ��!�'������/
 ��
�������� �
�
���������

��. ���������2�������"�	������
���	��

�=&  = B

���� ���������2��"�������	������
���	����������

C=; �"=;B

��5 �����?4��2�����2	��D���!���
&!�	����������	��

!=! !=&B

1�. 1�D����2�������"�	����������	�� �=" @=;B

1�. 1�D���������2�������"�	������
���	��

�=� ��=&B

0�. 0�������������2�������"�	������
���	��

!=! !=!B

�2' ������������������2�������&
	����������	��

�=! "=!B

*� *$����2�� !=! !=!B

#� #�������������2��!������	������
���	��

"=C & ="B

�������������
��������
�
�� 1+23 1,,2,4

�������	
����������������������������������������

��������	
����
�
����
���������
���


���������������
������������	�������������������

��� ��!�"
#�$��&��%�&



�����������������������!����"�!���	��������� �

� � �

�
�
�

$���	%�(� �
�

)%	��	���*���	�	����+��	��������
)%	��	���*���	�	����9����*$+�������

� �



��
��
��
��	


�
��
�
�

��
�
�


�

	
��

�
�
��
�	
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
�

����
����������


�

�
��

�

��
�	

�
� 

�
!

��

�
�
��
���
��
��



��
�

��
"�
#"
��

� 



��
��

�

�$�!
�

��
��



�
��
%

&�
�'

�
��
��

�

TO
TA

L 
A

R
E

A
 =

 2
.6

5 
A

C
A

R
E

A
 E

1 Tc
 P

A
TH

PHANTOM W
OODS R

OAD

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 W
E

TL
A

N
D

S

MAIN STREET (C
TH ES)

��
"�
#"
��

�!
�

��
"�
#"
��

LE
G

E
N

D
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 A
R

E
A

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

Tc
 P

A
TH

S
O

IL
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y



)&

)&

�534/10��/*06*7�256��#:��'�<*.-����

!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*4��!�	�����#/&1/#@&0

9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

������ 7���� !��� '	��



�����  �!"#����$#�������
���%!&'()�#:��'�<*.-����

��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

2	������M. @@<#@ @@����4���M@ @.����4�(@&��	���
7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*5

7���������	����������<���S2�������������<��!��������	����������<����������

7������$���M# 0.@������@ @@D������	������7������+���N@ &&T�3+8*48<7-14�
���
�
���C��
�'�����M.-@U���2�M&0 @��	����*5M0&���7�����M@ &#������@ @#.���

�54*,��31522�	6-*�E��%�"��*8����31522��5,37-�E��%��"�*2���	9-6*0-��31522��->4<�E��%��H
���%��G�-69/53.�E��%�"��*8������%��G��7>-69/53.�E��%����*8



�����  �!"#����$#�������
���%!&'()�#:��'�<*.-����

��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����(9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�
���
�

7����� M @ &#�����V� &# #@����4��������M @ @#.���4��+���N @ &&T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����&<���7�	�����M# (@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
& E1@ .. �����4�G���4�9�G�B
@ 03@ 11 �����4�G���4�9�G�+
# 0.@ 0& ��	������$������
# 0.@ &@@ @@D�!���	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:
&( 0 3@ @ @.@@ @ &@ �<--4��,5C��

�����>�'	������������������M�@ -@@���!#M�# 1@T
# - -0@ @ @-@@ ( ## �<*,,5C� 518-146*4-?��,5C��

F��������W�M�&0 &���
&0 @ .-@ 2����

�3+8*48<7-14�
���
�

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

@ &(.
@ &(

@ &#.
@ &#

@ &&.
@ &&

@ &@.
@ &

@ @E.
@ @E

@ @3.
@ @3

@ @1.
@ @1

@ @0.
@ @0

@ @..
@ @.

@ @-.
@ @-

@ @(.
@ @(

@ @#.
@ @#

@ @&.
@ @&

@ @@.
@

�A>-�����#:<6
�:A6��*/12*,,E�%��H

�31522�	6-*E�%�"��*8
�31522��5,37-E�%��"�*2

�31522��->4<I�%��H
�,5C��-104<E"#�J

�8E��%��7/1
 �E��

@ &#����



�����  �!"#����!#�������
���%!&*()�#:��'�<*.-����

��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����-9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

2	������M. @@<#@ @@����4���M@ @.����4�(@&��	���
7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*5

7���������	����������<���S2�������������<��!��������	����������<����������

7������$���M# 0.@������@ @@D������	������7������+���N@ #&T�3+8*48<7-14�
���
�
���C��
�'�����M.-@U���2�M&0 @��	����*5M0&���7�����M@ -#������@ @-1���

�54*,��31522�	6-*�E��%�"��*8����31522��5,37-�E��%�#'�*2���	9-6*0-��31522��->4<�E��%��H
���%��G�-69/53.�E��%�"��*8������%��G��7>-69/53.�E��%����*8



�����  �!"#����!#�������
���%!&*()�#:��'�<*.-����

��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����.9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�
���
�

7����� M @ -#�����V� &# &.����4��������M @ @-1���4��+���N @ #&T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����#<���7�	�����M# 1@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
& E1@ .. �����4�G���4�9�G�B
@ 03@ 11 �����4�G���4�9�G�+
# 0.@ 0& ��	������$������
# 0.@ &@@ @@D�!���	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:
&( 0 3@ @ @.@@ @ &@ �<--4��,5C��

�����>�'	������������������M�@ -@@���!#M�# 1@T
# - -0@ @ @-@@ ( ## �<*,,5C� 518-146*4-?��,5C��

F��������W�M�&0 &���
&0 @ .-@ 2����

�3+8*48<7-14�
���
�

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

@ -0
@ --
@ -#
@ -

@ (3
@ (0
@ (-
@ (#
@ (

@ #3
@ #0
@ #-
@ ##
@ #

@ &3
@ &0
@ &-
@ &#
@ &

@ @3
@ @0
@ @-
@ @#

@

�A>-�����#:<6
�:A6��*/12*,,E�%'�H

�31522�	6-*E�%�"��*8
�31522��5,37-E�%�#'�*2

�31522��->4<I�%��H
�,5C��-104<E"#�J

�8E��%��7/1
 �E��

@ -#����



�����  �!"#����$(#�������
���%"&(()�#:��'�<*.-����

��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����09����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

2	������M. @@<#@ @@����4���M@ @.����4�(@&��	���
7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*5

7���������	����������<���S2�������������<��!��������	����������<����������

7������$���M# 0.@������@ @@D������	������7������+���N@ 1&T�3+8*48<7-14�
���
�
���C��
�'�����M.-@U���2�M&0 @��	����*5M0&���7�����M# #0������@ &.1���

�54*,��31522�	6-*�E��%�"��*8����31522��5,37-�E��%�"'�*2���	9-6*0-��31522��->4<�E��%'�H
���%��G�-69/53.�E��%�"��*8������%��G��7>-69/53.�E��%����*8



�����  �!"#����$(#�������
���%"&(()�#:��'�<*.-����

��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����19����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�
���
�

7����� M # #0�����V� &# &&����4��������M @ &.1���4��+���N @ 1&T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����&@<���7�	�����M- @@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
& E1@ .. �����4�G���4�9�G�B
@ 03@ 11 �����4�G���4�9�G�+
# 0.@ 0& ��	������$������
# 0.@ &@@ @@D�!���	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:
&( 0 3@ @ @.@@ @ &@ �<--4��,5C��

�����>�'	������������������M�@ -@@���!#M�# 1@T
# - -0@ @ @-@@ ( ## �<*,,5C� 518-146*4-?��,5C��

F��������W�M�&0 &���
&0 @ .-@ 2����

�3+8*48<7-14�
���
�

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

#

&

@

�A>-�����#:<6
��:A6��*/12*,,E#%��H

�31522�	6-*E�%�"��*8
�31522��5,37-E�%�"'�*2

�31522��->4<I�%'�H
�,5C��-104<E"#�J

�8E��%��7/1
 �E��

# #0����



�����  �!"#����$((#�������
���%+&,()�#:��'�<*.-����

��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����39����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

2	������M. @@<#@ @@����4���M@ @.����4�(@&��	���
7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*5

7���������	����������<���S2�������������<��!��������	����������<����������

7������$���M# 0.@������@ @@D������	������7������+���N& .0T�3+8*48<7-14�
���
�
���C��
�'�����M.-@U���2�M&0 @��	����*5M0&���7�����M. -1������@ (-.���

�54*,��31522�	6-*�E��%�"��*8����31522��5,37-�E��%�#"�*2���	9-6*0-��31522��->4<�E��%"�H
���%��G�-69/53.�E��%�"��*8������%��G��7>-69/53.�E��%����*8



�����  �!"#����$((#�������
���%+&,()�#:��'�<*.-����

��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����E9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�
���
�

7����� M . -1�����V� &# &@����4��������M @ (-.���4��+���N & .0T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����&@@<���7�	�����M. 0@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
& E1@ .. �����4�G���4�9�G�B
@ 03@ 11 �����4�G���4�9�G�+
# 0.@ 0& ��	������$������
# 0.@ &@@ @@D�!���	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:
&( 0 3@ @ @.@@ @ &@ �<--4��,5C��

�����>�'	������������������M�@ -@@���!#M�# 1@T
# - -0@ @ @-@@ ( ## �<*,,5C� 518-146*4-?��,5C��

F��������W�M�&0 &���
&0 @ .-@ 2����

�3+8*48<7-14�
���
�

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

0

.

-

(

#

&

@

�A>-�����#:<6
���:A6��*/12*,,E"%��H
�31522�	6-*E�%�"��*8

�31522��5,37-E�%�#"�*2
�31522��->4<I�%"�H
�,5C��-104<E"#�J

�8E��%��7/1
 �E��

. -1����



�����������������������!����"�!���	��������� �

� � �

�
�

�
$���	%�-�

�
!�������*���	�	����+��	��������

!�������*���	�	����9����*$+�������
� �



��
��
��
��	


�
��
�
�

��
�
�


�

	
��

�
�
��
�	
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
�

����
����������


�

�
��

�

��
�	

�
� 

�
!

��

�
�
��
���
��
��



��
�

��
"�
#"
��

� 



��
��

�

�$�!
�

��
��



�
��
%

&�
�'

�
��
��

�

TO
TA

L 
A

R
E

A
 =

 2
.5

7 
A

C
A

R
E

A
 D

1

Tc
 P

A
TH

P
R

O
P

. B
LD

G
 #

1

PHANTOM W
OODS R

OAD

B
A

S
IN

 #
1

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 W
E

TL
A

N
D

S

MAIN STREET (C
TH ES)

P
R

O
P

. B
LD

G
 #

2

��
"�
#"
��

�!
�

��
"�
#"
��

TO
TA

L 
A

R
E

A
 =

 0
.0

8 
A

C
A

R
E

A
 D

2

LE
G

E
N

D
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 A
R

E
A

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

Tc
 P

A
TH

S
O

IL
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y



+&

+&

+#

+#

�F2

�F2

B&

B$��5�&

�534/10��/*06*7�256��#:��'�<*.-������
!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*4��!�	�����#/&1/#@&0

9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

������ 7���� !��� '	��



�����  �!"#����$#�������
���%!&'()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

2	������M. @@<#@ @@����4���M@ @.����4�(@&��	���
7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*5

7���������	����������<���S2�������������<��!��������	����������<����������

7������$���M# .1@������-& #.D������	������7������+���N@ 0-T�3+8*48<7-14�������
���C��
�'�����M(&.U���2�M. E��	����*5M1E���7�����M( &#������@ &(0���

7������$���M@ @3@������@ @@D������	������7������+���N@ 03T�3+8*48<7-14�������
���C��
�'�����M#@U�������M@ ((@@�U/U���2�M& -��	����*5M3@���7�����M@ &#������@ @@.���

��������
M@ &-������@ @.&����-*8<���������
���������
M@ &-������@ @.&���

!����)���M3@1 ..U���������M@ @E#�����������
M( &#������@ &(0���51?������	�����
���������
M@ @1������@ @-0���

�54*,��31522�	6-*�E��%�"��*8����31522��5,37-�E��%�#��*2���	9-6*0-��31522��->4<�E��%�#H
��%��G�-69/53.�E��%")��*8�����#�%��G��7>-69/53.�E��%����*8



�����  �!"#����$#�������
���%!&'()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����(9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�������

X-EY�9	��>�2�Z#�����������	�������������

7����� M ( &#�����V� && E3����4��������M @ &(0���4��+���N @ 0-T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����&<���7�	�����M# (@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
& @0@ E3 !��������	��4�9�G�$
& &#@ 0& N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�B
@ (E@ 3@ N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�+
# .1@ 1E ��	������$������
& .&@ .3 1.D�!���	����$���
& @0@ -& #.D������	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:

. & #. @ @#@@ @ @3 �<--4��,5C��
G����>�+��������M�@ #-@���!#M�# 1@T

@ 1 ##@ @ @&3@ - E# &&3 &&  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�#- @�����!��	�M�#@ .U���M�& &1U���M�@ @-.

@ & -@ @ &#.@ &# (. &E1 00  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�&0 @�����!��	�M�&- 1U���M�& @EU���M�@ @-.

@ @ (@ @ #.@@ &1 -1 #1E .(  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�&0 @�����!��	�M�&- 1U���M�& @EU���M�@ @-.

. E (&. 2����



�����  �!"#����$#�������
���%!&'()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����-9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�3+8*48<7-14�������

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

(

#

&

@

�A>-�����#:<6
�:A6��*/12*,,E�%��H

�31522�	6-*E�%"'��*8
�31522��5,37-E�%����*2

�31522��->4<I�%�#H
�,5C��-104<E��"J

�8E"%)�7/1
 �E')

( &#����



�����  �!"#����$#�������
���%!&'()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����.9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�������

X-EY�9	��>�2�Z#�����������	�������������

7����� M @ &#�����V� && E#����4��������M @ @@.���4��+���N @ 03T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����&<���7�	�����M# (@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
@ @3@ 3@ N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�+
@ @3@ &@@ @@D�!���	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:

& - #@ @ ((@@ @ #- �<--4��,5C��
G����>�+��������M�@ #-@���!#M�# 1@T

�3+8*48<7-14�������

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

@ &(
@ &#.
@ &#

@ &&.
@ &&

@ &@.
@ &

@ @E.
@ @E

@ @3.
@ @3

@ @1.
@ @1

@ @0.
@ @0

@ @..
@ @.

@ @-.
@ @-

@ @(.
@ @(

@ @#.
@ @#

@ @&.
@ @&

@ @@.
@

�A>-�����#:<6
�:A6��*/12*,,E�%��H

�31522�	6-*E�%�$��*8
�31522��5,37-E�%��"�*2

�31522��->4<I�%�$H
�,5C��-104<E��J
�,5>-E�%�����JFJ

�8E�%#�7/1
 �E$�

@ &#����



�����  �!"#����$#�������
���%!&'()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����09����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��-*8<���������

X-@Y�9	��>�5���+����	����8������
M�����
:

�����
�$����M # 0.@���4 -@ @@D������	���4�������
�+����N� @ #(T���������&<��������
�����
 M @ &-�����V� && E(����4��������M @ @.&���
������
 M @ &-�����V� && E(����4��������M @ @.&���4��$����M�@D4��'��M�@ @��	�

7���	����������<���S2�����������4�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����

�-*8<���������

�����

������


�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

@ &.

@ &-

@ &(

@ &#

@ &&

@ &

@ @E

@ @3

@ @1

@ @0

@ @.

@ @-

@ @(

@ @#

@ @&

@

�12,5C�	6-*E�%�"��*8
@ &-����@ &-����



�����  �!"#����$#�������
���%!&'()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����19����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256�51?������	�����

�����
�$����M # .1@���4 -& #.D������	���4�������
�+����N� @ 0-T���������&<��������
�����
 M ( &#�����V� && E3����4��������M @ &(0���
������
 M @ @1�����V� &1 #E����4��������M @ @-0���4��$����M�E3D4��'��M�(&3 .��	�
!�	���� M @ @1�����V� &1 #E����4��������M @ @-0���

7���	����������<����������4�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
!����)���M�3@1 ..U�V�&1 #E����������� $���M�@ &1E�������������M�@ @E#���

!���<C��
�������	����	��M�#-E E��	�����������������@ @-0����8(-D����	����
:
*�����<��<�������� ��	��M�&.( 3��	��8�E0- 0�<�3&@ E�:

������ ������ $��	� ������� ��������+����	�	��
L& 3@1 @@U @ E10���  3.457��4*0-��*4*�;6/.7*4/8=�'	���������
�87�����:

)�����	�� ���� $��� ��� ����� *�� �����
8����: 8�����: 8����<����: 8����<����:

3@1 @@ @ &.1 @ @@@ @ @@@
3@3 @@ @ &E1 @ &11 @ &11
3@E @@ @ #-@ @ #&E @ (E.
3&@ @@ @ #E@ @ #0. @ 00@
3&& @@ @ (-# @ (&0 @ E10

+��	�� 7���	������� ������ �������+��	���
L& !�	���� 3@1 @@U ��%�H���531?�� K�531?����H���

'M�-@ @U���7*!4�����������������
���4��W�M�@ .@@���
������/��������������M�3@1 @@U�/�3@- @@U����M�@ @1.@�U/U���*�M�@ E@@���
�M�@ @&&4��C��
�$���M�@ 1E������

L# +��	���& 3@1 @@U �%�H��-64%��6/2/8-F�6*4-����*M�@ 0@@���
L( !�	���� 3@3 0@U ��%�H���531?�� K�531?����H���

'M�(. @U���7*!4�����������������
���4��W�M�@ .@@���
������/��������������M�3@3 0@U�/�3@- @@U����M�@ &(&-�U/U���*�M�@ E@@���
�M�@ @&&4��C��
�$���M�@ 1E������

6/7*6A��34�,5C����%M@ @1�����V�&1 #E������9�M3@1 ..U���8C����+	�������:
�E� K�531?����H��8!������@ @1��������& &#����������	������
:
�E�6/2/8-F�6*4-��8��	�	���*��������@ @1�����V�( #E���:

�E� K�531?����H��8�*��������@ @@����:



�����  �!"#����$#�������
���%!&'()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����39����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

51?������	�����

�����

!�	����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

(

#

&

@

�12,5C�	6-*E�%"'��*8
-*B�
,-9E$�'%""J
�456*0-E�%�)��*2

( &#����

@ @1����



�����  �!"#����!#�������
���%!&*()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����E9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

2	������M. @@<#@ @@����4���M@ @.����4�(@&��	���
7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*5

7���������	����������<���S2�������������<��!��������	����������<����������

7������$���M# .1@������-& #.D������	������7������+���N@ 33T�3+8*48<7-14�������
���C��
�'�����M(&.U���2�M. E��	����*5M1E���7�����M- (0������@ &3E���

7������$���M@ @3@������@ @@D������	������7������+���N@ E-T�3+8*48<7-14�������
���C��
�'�����M#@U�������M@ ((@@�U/U���2�M& -��	����*5M3@���7�����M@ &0������@ @@0���

��������
M@ #@������@ @0(����-*8<���������
���������
M@ #@������@ @0(���

!����)���M3@1 13U���������M@ &(-�����������
M- (0������@ &3E���51?������	�����
���������
M@ @E������@ @.1���

�54*,��31522�	6-*�E��%�"��*8����31522��5,37-�E��%�)"�*2���	9-6*0-��31522��->4<�E��%$$H
��%��G�-69/53.�E��%")��*8�����#�%��G��7>-69/53.�E��%����*8



�����  �!"#����!#�������
���%!&*()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&@9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�������

X-EY�9	��>�2�Z#�����������	�������������

7����� M - (0�����V� && E3����4��������M @ &3E���4��+���N @ 33T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����#<���7�	�����M# 1@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
& @0@ E3 !��������	��4�9�G�$
& &#@ 0& N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�B
@ (E@ 3@ N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�+
# .1@ 1E ��	������$������
& .&@ .3 1.D�!���	����$���
& @0@ -& #.D������	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:

. & #. @ @#@@ @ @3 �<--4��,5C��
G����>�+��������M�@ #-@���!#M�# 1@T

@ 1 ##@ @ @&3@ - E# &&3 &&  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�#- @�����!��	�M�#@ .U���M�& &1U���M�@ @-.

@ & -@ @ &#.@ &# (. &E1 00  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�&0 @�����!��	�M�&- 1U���M�& @EU���M�@ @-.

@ @ (@ @ #.@@ &1 -1 #1E .(  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�&0 @�����!��	�M�&- 1U���M�& @EU���M�@ @-.

. E (&. 2����



�����  �!"#����!#�������
���%!&*()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&&9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�3+8*48<7-14�������

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

-

(

#

&

@

�A>-�����#:<6
�:A6��*/12*,,E�%'�H

�31522�	6-*E�%"'��*8
�31522��5,37-E�%�$)�*2

�31522��->4<I�%$$H
�,5C��-104<E��"J

�8E"%)�7/1
 �E')

- (0����



�����  �!"#����!#�������
���%!&*()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&#9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�������

X-EY�9	��>�2�Z#�����������	�������������

7����� M @ &0�����V� && E&����4��������M @ @@0���4��+���N @ E-T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����#<���7�	�����M# 1@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
@ @3@ 3@ N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�+
@ @3@ &@@ @@D�!���	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:

& - #@ @ ((@@ @ #- �<--4��,5C��
G����>�+��������M�@ #-@���!#M�# 1@T

�3+8*48<7-14�������

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

@ &3

@ &1

@ &0

@ &.

@ &-

@ &(

@ &#

@ &&

@ &

@ @E

@ @3

@ @1

@ @0

@ @.

@ @-

@ @(

@ @#

@ @&

@

�A>-�����#:<6
�:A6��*/12*,,E�%'�H

�31522�	6-*E�%�$��*8
�31522��5,37-E�%����*2

�31522��->4<I�%)#H
�,5C��-104<E��J
�,5>-E�%�����JFJ

�8E�%#�7/1
 �E$�

@ &0����



�����  �!"#����!#�������
���%!&*()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&(9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��-*8<���������

X-@Y�9	��>�5���+����	����8������
M�����
:

�����
�$����M # 0.@���4 -@ @@D������	���4�������
�+����N� @ #ET���������#<��������
�����
 M @ #@�����V� && E#����4��������M @ @0(���
������
 M @ #@�����V� && E#����4��������M @ @0(���4��$����M�@D4��'��M�@ @��	�

7���	����������<���S2�����������4�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����

�-*8<���������

�����

������


�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

@ ##
@ #&
@ #

@ &E
@ &3
@ &1
@ &0
@ &.
@ &-
@ &(
@ &#
@ &&
@ &

@ @E
@ @3
@ @1
@ @0
@ @.
@ @-
@ @(
@ @#
@ @&

@

�12,5C�	6-*E�%�"��*8
@ #@����@ #@����



�����  �!"#����!#�������
���%!&*()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&-9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256�51?������	�����

�����
�$����M # .1@���4 -& #.D������	���4�������
�+����N� @ 33T���������#<��������
�����
 M - (0�����V� && E3����4��������M @ &3E���
������
 M @ @E�����V� &1 11����4��������M @ @.1���4��$����M�E3D4��'��M�(-1 -��	�
!�	���� M @ @E�����V� &1 11����4��������M @ @.1���

7���	����������<����������4�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
!����)���M�3@1 13U�V�&1 11����������� $���M�@ &33�������������M�@ &(-���

!���<C��
�������	����	��M�#.# E��	�����������������@ @.1����8(@D����	����
:
*�����<��<�������� ��	��M�&.E (��	��8�E0( &�<�3@( 3�:

������ ������ $��	� ������� ��������+����	�	��
L& 3@1 @@U @ E10���  3.457��4*0-��*4*�;6/.7*4/8=�'	���������
�87�����:

)�����	�� ���� $��� ��� ����� *�� �����
8����: 8�����: 8����<����: 8����<����:

3@1 @@ @ &.1 @ @@@ @ @@@
3@3 @@ @ &E1 @ &11 @ &11
3@E @@ @ #-@ @ #&E @ (E.
3&@ @@ @ #E@ @ #0. @ 00@
3&& @@ @ (-# @ (&0 @ E10

+��	�� 7���	������� ������ �������+��	���
L& !�	���� 3@1 @@U ��%�H���531?�� K�531?����H���

'M�-@ @U���7*!4�����������������
���4��W�M�@ .@@���
������/��������������M�3@1 @@U�/�3@- @@U����M�@ @1.@�U/U���*�M�@ E@@���
�M�@ @&&4��C��
�$���M�@ 1E������

L# +��	���& 3@1 @@U �%�H��-64%��6/2/8-F�6*4-����*M�@ 0@@���
L( !�	���� 3@3 0@U ��%�H���531?�� K�531?����H���

'M�(. @U���7*!4�����������������
���4��W�M�@ .@@���
������/��������������M�3@3 0@U�/�3@- @@U����M�@ &(&-�U/U���*�M�@ E@@���
�M�@ @&&4��C��
�$���M�@ 1E������

6/7*6A��34�,5C����%M@ @E�����V�&1 11������9�M3@1 13U���8C����+	�������:
�E� K�531?����H��8!������@ @E��������& E1����������	������
:
�E�6/2/8-F�6*4-��8��	�	���*��������@ @E�����V�- @#���:

�E� K�531?����H��8�*��������@ @@����:



�����  �!"#����!#�������
���%!&*()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&.9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

51?������	�����

�����

!�	����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

-

(

#

&

@

�12,5C�	6-*E�%"'��*8
-*B�
,-9E$�'%'$J
�456*0-E�%��#�*2

- (0����

@ @E����



�����  �!"#����$(#�������
���%"&(()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&09����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

2	������M. @@<#@ @@����4���M@ @.����4�(@&��	���
7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*5

7���������	����������<���S2�������������<��!��������	����������<����������

7������$���M# .1@������-& #.D������	������7������+���N& 3&T�3+8*48<7-14�������
���C��
�'�����M(&.U���2�M. E��	����*5M1E���7�����M3 1(������@ (31���

7������$���M@ @3@������@ @@D������	������7������+���N& 33T�3+8*48<7-14�������
���C��
�'�����M#@U�������M@ ((@@�U/U���2�M& -��	����*5M3@���7�����M@ (#������@ @&(���

��������
M@ (E������@ @E3����-*8<���������
���������
M@ (E������@ @E3���

!����)���M3@3 .EU���������M@ (@#�����������
M3 1(������@ (31���51?������	�����
���������
M@ &(������@ @30���

�54*,��31522�	6-*�E��%�"��*8����31522��5,37-�E��%�))�*2���	9-6*0-��31522��->4<�E��%$�H
��%��G�-69/53.�E��%")��*8�����#�%��G��7>-69/53.�E��%����*8



�����  �!"#����$(#�������
���%"&(()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&19����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�������

X-EY�9	��>�2�Z#�����������	�������������

7����� M 3 1(�����V� && E1����4��������M @ (31���4��+���N & 3&T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����&@<���7�	�����M- @@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
& @0@ E3 !��������	��4�9�G�$
& &#@ 0& N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�B
@ (E@ 3@ N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�+
# .1@ 1E ��	������$������
& .&@ .3 1.D�!���	����$���
& @0@ -& #.D������	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:

. & #. @ @#@@ @ @3 �<--4��,5C��
G����>�+��������M�@ #-@���!#M�# 1@T

@ 1 ##@ @ @&3@ - E# &&3 &&  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�#- @�����!��	�M�#@ .U���M�& &1U���M�@ @-.

@ & -@ @ &#.@ &# (. &E1 00  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�&0 @�����!��	�M�&- 1U���M�& @EU���M�@ @-.

@ @ (@ @ #.@@ &1 -1 #1E .(  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�&0 @�����!��	�M�&- 1U���M�& @EU���M�@ @-.

. E (&. 2����



�����  �!"#����$(#�������
���%"&(()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&39����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�3+8*48<7-14�������

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

E

3

1

0

.

-

(

#

&

@

�A>-�����#:<6
��:A6��*/12*,,E#%��H

�31522�	6-*E�%"'��*8
�31522��5,37-E�%�$'�*2

�31522��->4<I�%$�H
�,5C��-104<E��"J

�8E"%)�7/1
 �E')

3 1(����



�����  �!"#����$(#�������
���%"&(()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����&E9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�������

X-EY�9	��>�2�Z#�����������	�������������

7����� M @ (#�����V� && E&����4��������M @ @&(���4��+���N & 33T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����&@<���7�	�����M- @@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
@ @3@ 3@ N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�+
@ @3@ &@@ @@D�!���	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:

& - #@ @ ((@@ @ #- �<--4��,5C��
G����>�+��������M�@ #-@���!#M�# 1@T

�3+8*48<7-14�������

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

@ (-

@ (#

@ (

@ #3

@ #0

@ #-

@ ##

@ #

@ &3

@ &0

@ &-

@ &#

@ &

@ @3

@ @0

@ @-

@ @#

@

�A>-�����#:<6
��:A6��*/12*,,E#%��H

�31522�	6-*E�%�$��*8
�31522��5,37-E�%����*2

�31522��->4<I�%$$H
�,5C��-104<E��J
�,5>-E�%�����JFJ

�8E�%#�7/1
 �E$�

@ (#����



�����  �!"#����$(#�������
���%"&(()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#@9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��-*8<���������

X-@Y�9	��>�5���+����	����8������
M�����
:

�����
�$����M # 0.@���4 -@ @@D������	���4�������
�+����N� @ -.T���������&@<��������
�����
 M @ (E�����V� && E&����4��������M @ @E3���
������
 M @ (E�����V� && E&����4��������M @ @E3���4��$����M�@D4��'��M�@ @��	�

7���	����������<���S2�����������4�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����

�-*8<���������

�����

������


�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

@ -#
@ -

@ (3
@ (0
@ (-
@ (#
@ (

@ #3
@ #0
@ #-
@ ##
@ #

@ &3
@ &0
@ &-
@ &#
@ &

@ @3
@ @0
@ @-
@ @#

@

�12,5C�	6-*E�%�"��*8
@ (E����@ (E����



�����  �!"#����$(#�������
���%"&(()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#&9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256�51?������	�����

�����
�$����M # .1@���4 -& #.D������	���4�������
�+����N� & 3&T���������&@<��������
�����
 M 3 1(�����V� && E1����4��������M @ (31���
������
 M @ &(�����V� &E @#����4��������M @ @30���4��$����M�EED4��'��M�-#( #��	�
!�	���� M @ &(�����V� &E @#����4��������M @ @30���

7���	����������<����������4�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
!����)���M�3@3 .EU�V�&E @#����������� $���M�@ ##(�������������M�@ (@#���

!���<C��
�������	����	��M�#0( E��	�����������������@ @30����8##D����	����
:
*�����<��<�������� ��	��M�&03 (��	��8�E.1 &�<�133 3�:

������ ������ $��	� ������� ��������+����	�	��
L& 3@1 @@U @ E10���  3.457��4*0-��*4*�;6/.7*4/8=�'	���������
�87�����:

)�����	�� ���� $��� ��� ����� *�� �����
8����: 8�����: 8����<����: 8����<����:

3@1 @@ @ &.1 @ @@@ @ @@@
3@3 @@ @ &E1 @ &11 @ &11
3@E @@ @ #-@ @ #&E @ (E.
3&@ @@ @ #E@ @ #0. @ 00@
3&& @@ @ (-# @ (&0 @ E10

+��	�� 7���	������� ������ �������+��	���
L& !�	���� 3@1 @@U ��%�H���531?�� K�531?����H���

'M�-@ @U���7*!4�����������������
���4��W�M�@ .@@���
������/��������������M�3@1 @@U�/�3@- @@U����M�@ @1.@�U/U���*�M�@ E@@���
�M�@ @&&4��C��
�$���M�@ 1E������

L# +��	���& 3@1 @@U �%�H��-64%��6/2/8-F�6*4-����*M�@ 0@@���
L( !�	���� 3@3 0@U ��%�H���531?�� K�531?����H���

'M�(. @U���7*!4�����������������
���4��W�M�@ .@@���
������/��������������M�3@3 0@U�/�3@- @@U����M�@ &(&-�U/U���*�M�@ E@@���
�M�@ @&&4��C��
�$���M�@ 1E������

6/7*6A��34�,5C����%M@ &(�����V�&E @#������9�M3@3 .EU���8C����+	�������:
�E� K�531?����H��8!������@ &(��������( E0����������	������
:
�E�6/2/8-F�6*4-��8��	�	���*��������@ &(�����V�. E#���:

�E� K�531?����H��8�*��������@ @@����:



�����  �!"#����$(#�������
���%"&(()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����##9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

51?������	�����

�����

!�	����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

E

3

1

0

.

-

(

#

&

@

�12,5C�	6-*E�%"'��*8
-*B�
,-9E$�$%")J
�456*0-E�%����*2

3 1(����

@ &(����



�����  �!"#����$((#�������
���%+&,()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#(9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

2	������M. @@<#@ @@����4���M@ @.����4�(@&��	���
7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*5

7���������	����������<���S2�������������<��!��������	����������<����������

7������$���M# .1@������-& #.D������	������7������+���N( @3T�3+8*48<7-14�������
���C��
�'�����M(&.U���2�M. E��	����*5M1E���7�����M&- .E������@ 00&���

7������$���M@ @3@������@ @@D������	������7������+���N( &3T�3+8*48<7-14�������
���C��
�'�����M#@U�������M@ ((@@�U/U���2�M& -��	����*5M3@���7�����M@ .#������@ @#&���

��������
M@ E#������@ (-0����-*8<���������
���������
M@ E#������@ (-0���

!����)���M3@E @-U���������M@ -@.�����������
M&- .E������@ 00&���51?������	�����
���������
M@ 3E������@ (#-���

�54*,��31522�	6-*�E��%�"��*8����31522��5,37-�E��%�$��*2���	9-6*0-��31522��->4<�E��%�)H
��%��G�-69/53.�E��%")��*8�����#�%��G��7>-69/53.�E��%����*8



�����  �!"#����$((#�������
���%+&,()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#-9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�������

X-EY�9	��>�2�Z#�����������	�������������

7����� M &- .E�����V� && E1����4��������M @ 00&���4��+���N ( @3T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����&@@<���7�	�����M. 0@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
& @0@ E3 !��������	��4�9�G�$
& &#@ 0& N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�B
@ (E@ 3@ N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�+
# .1@ 1E ��	������$������
& .&@ .3 1.D�!���	����$���
& @0@ -& #.D������	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:

. & #. @ @#@@ @ @3 �<--4��,5C��
G����>�+��������M�@ #-@���!#M�# 1@T

@ 1 ##@ @ @&3@ - E# &&3 &&  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�#- @�����!��	�M�#@ .U���M�& &1U���M�@ @-.

@ & -@ @ &#.@ &# (. &E1 00  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�&0 @�����!��	�M�&- 1U���M�& @EU���M�@ @-.

@ @ (@ @ #.@@ &1 -1 #1E .(  <*11-,��,5C��
$���M�&0 @�����!��	�M�&- 1U���M�& @EU���M�@ @-.

. E (&. 2����



�����  �!"#����$((#�������
���%+&,()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#.9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�3+8*48<7-14�������

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

&0

&.

&-

&(

&#

&&

&@

E

3

1

0

.

-

(

#

&

@

�A>-�����#:<6
���:A6��*/12*,,E"%��H
�31522�	6-*E�%"'��*8

�31522��5,37-E�%����*2
�31522��->4<I�%�$H
�,5C��-104<E��"J

�8E"%)�7/1
 �E')

&- .E����



�����  �!"#����$((#�������
���%+&,()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#09����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��3+8*48<7-14�������

X-EY�9	��>�2�Z#�����������	�������������

7����� M @ .#�����V� && E&����4��������M @ @#&���4��+���N ( &3T

7����������*��27<#@�������4�F9M�*�4���	�����<*54�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
2������#-<����&@@<���7�	�����M. 0@T

$����8��: *5 +����	�	��
@ @3@ 3@ N1.D�G����������4�G���4�9�G�+
@ @3@ &@@ @@D�!���	����$���

2� '����� ���� �����	�� *���	�� +����	�	��
8�	�: 8����: 8��/��: 8��/���: 8���:

& - #@ @ ((@@ @ #- �<--4��,5C��
G����>�+��������M�@ #-@���!#M�# 1@T

�3+8*48<7-14�������

7�����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

@ ..

@ .

@ -.

@ -

@ (.

@ (

@ #.

@ #

@ &.

@ &

@ @.

@

�A>-�����#:<6
���:A6��*/12*,,E"%��H
�31522�	6-*E�%�$��*8

�31522��5,37-E�%����*2
�31522��->4<I�%�$H

�,5C��-104<E��J
�,5>-E�%�����JFJ

�8E�%#�7/1
 �E$�

@ .#����



�����  �!"#����$((#�������
���%+&,()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#19����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256��-*8<���������

X-@Y�9	��>�5���+����	����8������
M�����
:

�����
�$����M # 0.@���4 -@ @@D������	���4�������
�+����N� & .1T���������&@@<��������
�����
 M @ E#�����V� &# 3@����4��������M @ (-0���
������
 M @ E#�����V� &# 3@����4��������M @ (-0���4��$����M�@D4��'��M�@ @��	�

7���	����������<���S2�����������4�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����

�-*8<���������

�����

������


�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

&

@

�12,5C�	6-*E�%�"��*8
@ E#����@ E#����



�����  �!"#����$((#�������
���%+&,()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#39����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

�377*6A�256�51?������	�����

�����
�$����M # .1@���4 -& #.D������	���4�������
�+����N� ( @3T���������&@@<��������
�����
 M &- .E�����V� && E1����4��������M @ 00&���
������
 M @ 3E�����V� &# 3(����4��������M @ (#-���4��$����M�E-D4��'��M�.& E��	�
!�	���� M @ 3E�����V� &# 3(����4��������M @ (#-���

7���	����������<����������4�2	������M�. @@<#@ @@����4���M�@ @.����
!����)���M�3@E @-U�V�&# 3(����������� $���M�@ #-#�������������M�@ -@.���

!���<C��
�������	����	��M�#@# @��	�����������������@ (#(����8-ED����	����
:
*�����<��<�������� ��	��M�&#( 3��	��8�E@@ E�<�111 #�:

������ ������ $��	� ������� ��������+����	�	��
L& 3@1 @@U @ E10���  3.457��4*0-��*4*�;6/.7*4/8=�'	���������
�87�����:

)�����	�� ���� $��� ��� ����� *�� �����
8����: 8�����: 8����<����: 8����<����:

3@1 @@ @ &.1 @ @@@ @ @@@
3@3 @@ @ &E1 @ &11 @ &11
3@E @@ @ #-@ @ #&E @ (E.
3&@ @@ @ #E@ @ #0. @ 00@
3&& @@ @ (-# @ (&0 @ E10

+��	�� 7���	������� ������ �������+��	���
L& !�	���� 3@1 @@U ��%�H���531?�� K�531?����H���

'M�-@ @U���7*!4�����������������
���4��W�M�@ .@@���
������/��������������M�3@1 @@U�/�3@- @@U����M�@ @1.@�U/U���*�M�@ E@@���
�M�@ @&&4��C��
�$���M�@ 1E������

L# +��	���& 3@1 @@U �%�H��-64%��6/2/8-F�6*4-����*M�@ 0@@���
L( !�	���� 3@3 0@U ��%�H���531?�� K�531?����H���

'M�(. @U���7*!4�����������������
���4��W�M�@ .@@���
������/��������������M�3@3 0@U�/�3@- @@U����M�@ &(&-�U/U���*�M�@ E@@���
�M�@ @&&4��C��
�$���M�@ 1E������

6/7*6A��34�,5C����%M@ 3E�����V�&# 3(������9�M3@E @-U���8C����+	�������:
�E� K�531?����H��8!������@ &.��������- 0E����������	������
:
�E�6/2/8-F�6*4-��8��	�	���*��������@ &.�����V�0 1(���:

�E� K�531?����H��8������*��������@ 1-�����V�# #.���:



�����  �!"#����$((#�������
���%+&,()�#:��'�<*.-������
��!�	������#/&1/#@&0!����������'�����,�$����	�����)��	����	���*����������4�''*

!����#E9����*$+Q�&@ @@<&.���/��@#EE0��R�#@&.�9����*$+�����
���������	����''*

51?������	�����

�����

!�	����

�A?6506*><

�/7-��;<536.=
#@&E&3&1&0&.&-&(&#&&&@E310.

�,
5C
��;
82
.=

&0

&.

&-

&(

&#

&&

&@

E

3

1

0

.

-

(

#

&

@

�12,5C�	6-*E�%"'��*8
-*B�
,-9E$�)%�#J
�456*0-E�%#�"�*2

&- .E����

@ 3E����



�����������������������!����"�!���	��������� �

� � �

�
�
�

$���	%�.� �
�

�	��'$�������/������
� �



�������
	
�
������
�������������������
������������������������ ��!��"��������
�������#������$��%���$&�����'&���
���������� �
�
�(�))�*������+ , ,
-
�������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�-
��/����#��)�0
12���3+ -��
�
���1�
���������.�������
���������
�����.�����'�
��
/����#��(�))�#�4�*5�� 6��
-1�����.��������������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4�(�3�	���3 ��7
�
���1�
���-���1��	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��
/����#��(�))�#�4	(*�� 6��
-������
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
�����1���
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
��
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
.������
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
���1���
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
8�����9�:
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
/���0
&��������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���8����
9�:
��	���3 ���
�66�&��������	��7��&�/����������1�������������%7����(�
���������	���)
���
�
�
������/
���
����1�
���-��
�7��.�������
���������
�����.�����'�
��
/����#��(�))�#�45%8�� 66�
����������
������1�:���'����
����������
��1�&�6�������
���'��
������,;�<;3+���������1�&�6���������'��
�����
��;�3;3+
	
���������!����3���������������������������"������,��=��=
/�
���������
����&6�����	�
�
'���&��������7�'���1�&�
��
�
������� ��5�
����0
������
������� ��9���7���6�����
�������
����������.1�:�
���51�����>�?7
���&�@>������
�����0
������
�����������, ���������������A���7��&���
�B���
������������ ��/
������������
�����������= ��5������������A���7��&�����6B���
���������
��������������A�-%��	�B

���������������������������CDEEEEE����
�������
�����1����A
����B�EEEEEFC
���������������������������-�����������1��.������
�����1���
���8����
������������������������������
�������
���������
����������
����9�:
�
��1�������
�������������������
��������
������������������������������
�
-��������������������������� �+������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-��������������������������� �+������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-�����,��������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-��������������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-�����=��������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�
7����
�2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�
7����
�2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�
7����
�2�';����
'��,����� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
9�6
7�����2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
9�6
7�����2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
&'��1�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
&'��1�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
	�7�0
&�������������������� �<������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
	�7�0
&�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
	�7�0
&��,����������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
���0
�2�;#
�2�������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
���0
�2�;#
�2�������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����������
����������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����������
����������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����������
�,��������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
(
�'��(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
(
�'��(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
9���7���6������
������������ ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
���(
����
6������
������� =�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��

�
'���



�������
��
���(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
���(
����
6������
�,����� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����
���;#
�������&����
���� �3������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
8��������7�1�����
��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
8�����	��.�������6����
���� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
8������
���.�������6����
��� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
������������������������������������������������������������������������
"��
���������������������� =!��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�������������������������������������������������������������������

/���0
&���1�������
�����������
�A
����B

�
7��(
���G����������
�������� ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�������� ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�,������ ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�������� ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�=������ ��
(
�'��"1������
��������������� ��
9���7���6������
�������������� ��
8��������7�1�����
����������� ��
8�����	�����&�.��������6����� ��
8������
��
��&�.��������6���� ��
�����������������������������������
"��
�������������������������� ��

"��
�����������1�������
����������������� =!
�������������������������������������������������
"��
�����������1�������
�
������������������
�������
�������������� ��
����������������������������������������EEEEEEEEE

���������������������1�������
�.���������
�����������
���
(
���9�����-������
�
���-������������1����
��
��1�:�������
���������"����������6�����
���������"�����1�������
�����
��'����
�6��7�1��
��
�A6
��
��&�����������
�6��7�1��
��
B
���������"����.��$&�����'������"&6�������&
���-������������1����
��
��1�:�������
���������"����������6�����
���������"�����1�������
���������&����������������
��'����
�������&�
����������
��

����
7����
�2�';����
'���������1����
��
��1�:�����3�
���������"�����1�������
���������&����������������
��'����
�������&�
����������
��

���	�7�0
&���������1����
��
��1�:������,�
���������"�����1�������
���������&����������������
��'����
�������&�
����������
��

�����
���(
����
6������
��������1����
��
��1�:��������
���������"����.��$&�����'������"&6�������&
�������
���;#
�������&����
������1����
��
��1�:������!�
���������"�����1����
��
���
�0
����:��&�0�����
����
��
������������������
:���1����>�0������6
���1�
�����������
��'

	�
�
'���&����

81��
��
������.���������
����������#���	�������������
���������� �����
����7���:&����������6�����A
����BE��� =!�
���������� ���
�������H��	���:1���������
�����.���-85-�)�
/�(%��#���(�))4+,,��9-� .�I
���������, �����
����
'�����7
����A��B����=�
���������� ����
2�����7��
'��/��0�-
������, <�
= ��)
J�1�����0�
���0�������6����A���B�������
J�1��7
�1���������
���������3 ��81�����.�
�
���������
��������������81������1�:�����

�
'���



�������
����������������81������&6����8����
���������������������� ��8������
������A��B����� �=�
���������������������� ����7�������7
����
:�7���
�1��A��B����=�
��������������81������1�:�����
����������������81������&6�������
��.�������#��
���������������������� ��#������������'���A��B�������
���������������������� ��#���������0����A��B�����!�
���������������������, ��	���
�'��.���������A��B����, ��
���������������������� ��$�'������0����6���'�A���B������
���������������������= ��$�'���������
�1�����:���������0����6���'����<�
��������������81������1�:���,�
����������������81������&6����8����
���������������������� ��8������
������A��B������
���������������������� ����7�������7
����
:�7���
�1��A��B����3 =�
���������! ���������
'��
����1��
���
��

�������������������%���&������
'��������������
����
�1�
�����6
'����8�����
81����0
��������������������1�:������A��B������A
����B��������A�;��B�����������A���B
����������������������������� ����������� ��������������� ��������������� ����
�
����������������������������� ����������� ��<������������ ��������������� ����
�
����������������������������� ����������� �<������������� ��������������� ����
�
�������������������,��������= ����������� �=<������������ ��������������� ����
�
����������������������������3 ����������� ��������������� ��������������� ����
�
�������������������=��������+ ����������� ,3=������������ ��������������� ����
�

����1�
�������:����
�&H���
����������
�������������1�
����
����������������������1�
���"&6�
�����������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������
���1�
��
�

�
'��,



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
8
1
�
6
1
�
�
�
1
�
�


�
&

�
(
�
)
)
�
�
�
�
�
#

�
�
�
0
�
�
*
�
�
�

�
�
�
+
 
,
 
,

A
�
B
�
.
�
6
&
�

'
�
�
�
-
�
:
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�


�
�
�
K
�
�
�
�
*
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
,

�
�
�
�
-

'
�
�
�
�
-
�
�
�
�
7
�
�

	


�


�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
!
�
�
"

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
#
�
�
�
�
�
�
$
�
�
%
�

�
�
$
&
�
�
�
�
�
'
&
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�


�

	


�


�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

6
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A
�
-
%
�
�
	
�
B

-



�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
-



�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#
�
�
)

�
0


1
2
�
�
�
3
+
 
-
�
�

�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
�
*
5
�
�
 
6
�
�

-
1
�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
�
(
�
3
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
7

�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�
�
-
�
�

�
1
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
	
(
*
�
�
 
6
�
�

-
�
�

�
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
1
�

�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

.
�
�
�
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

�
�
�
1
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

/
�
�
�
0


&
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
1
�


�
�
�
-
�
�


�

7
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
5
%
8
�
�
 
6
6
�

�
6
6
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
/

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
%
7
�
�
�
�
(
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�
�
)


�
�
�
�


�


�
�
�
�
�
�
/


�
�
�

)
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
	


�
�
�
�
�
�
,
;
�
<
;
3
+
�
�
�
�
)
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
%
�
�
�
	


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
;
�
3
;
3
+

	


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
!
�
�
�
�
3
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
,
�
�
=
�
�
+

"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�


�
)
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A


�
�
�
�
B
�
�
�
�
�
 
=
!
�

L
�


�
�
�

�
�
)
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
�
�
�
 
3
!

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�
�
�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
*
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A
�
1
�
�
�
B
�
�
�
�
�
�
*
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
L

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
-
�
�
1
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A
�
'
;
(
B
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A
�
:
�
B
�
�
�
-
�
�
1
�
�

�
�

�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
"
�
�


�
�
0

�
�
�
1
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
<
!
�
=
+
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
M
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
+
+
 
!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
=
�
,
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
M

"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�



�


'
�
�
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
<
!
�
=
!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
M
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
+
+
 
<
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
=
�
,
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
M

"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�



�


'
�
�
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
<
!
�
=
!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
M
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
+
+
 
<
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
=
�
,
 
!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
+
M

"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
8
1
�
�


�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
<
!
�
=
!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
M
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
,
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
3
!
 
!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
<
!
 
=
,
M

�
�
�
1


�

H
�
�
�
"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
8
1
�
�


�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
,
�
�
3
3
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�


'
�
�
�



�-%��	�
	
�
������
�������������������
������������������������ ��!��"��������
�������#������$��%���$&�����'&���
����-%��	� �
�
�(�))�*������+ , ,
-
�������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�-
��/����#��)�0
12���3+ -��
�
���1�
���������.�������
���������
�����.�����'�
��
/����#��(�))�#�4�*5�� 6��
-1�����.��������������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4�(�3�	���3 ��7
�
���1�
���-���1��	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��
/����#��(�))�#�4	(*�� 6��
-������
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
�����1���
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
��
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
.������
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
���1���
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
8�����9�:
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
/���0
&��������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���8����
9�:
��	���3 ���
�66�&��������	��7��&�/����������1�������������%7����(�
���������	���)
���
�
�
������/
���
����1�
���-��
�7��.�������
���������
�����.�����'�
��
/����#��(�))�#�45%8�� 66�
����������
������1�:���'����
����������
��1�&�6�������
���'��
������,;�<;3+���������1�&�6���������'��
�����
��;�3;3+
	
���������!����3���������������������������"������,��=�=�
/�
���������
����&6�����	�
�
'���&��������7�'���1�&�
��
�
������� ��5�
����0
������
������� ��9���7���6�����
�������
����������.1�:�
���51�����>�?7
���&�@>������
�����0
������
�����������, ���������������A���7��&���
�B���
������������ ��/
������������
�����������= ��5������������A���7��&�����6B���
���������
�������-%��	�

���������������������������CDEEEEE����
�������
�����1����A
����B�EEEEEFC
���������������������������-�����������1��.������
�����1���
���8����
������������������������������
�������
���������
����������
����9�:
�
��1�������
�������������������
��������
������������������������������
�
-��������������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-��������������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-�����,��������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-��������������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-�����=��������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�
7����
�2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�
7����
�2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�
7����
�2�';����
'��,����� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
9�6
7�����2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
9�6
7�����2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
&'��1�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
&'��1�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
	�7�0
&�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
	�7�0
&�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
	�7�0
&��,����������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
���0
�2�;#
�2�������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
���0
�2�;#
�2�������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����������
����������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����������
����������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����������
�,��������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
(
�'��(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
(
�'��(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
9���7���6������
������������ ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
���(
����
6������
������� �<������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��

�
'���



�-%��	�
��
���(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
���(
����
6������
�,����� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����
���;#
�������&����
���� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
8��������7�1�����
��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
8�����	��.�������6����
���� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
8������
���.�������6����
��� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
������������������������������������������������������������������������
"��
���������������������� �<��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�������������������������������������������������������������������

/���0
&���1�������
�����������
�A
����B

�
7��(
���G����������
�������� ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�������� ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�,������ ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�������� ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�=������ ��
(
�'��"1������
��������������� ��
9���7���6������
�������������� ��
8��������7�1�����
����������� ��
8�����	�����&�.��������6����� ��
8������
��
��&�.��������6���� ��
�����������������������������������
"��
�������������������������� ��

"��
�����������1�������
����������������� �<
�������������������������������������������������
"��
�����������1�������
�
������������������
�������
�������������� �<
����������������������������������������EEEEEEEEE

���������������������1�������
�.���������
�����������
���
(
���9�����-������
�
�����
���(
����
6������
��������1����
��
��1�:��������
���������"����.��$&�����'������"&6�������&

	�
�
'���&����

81��
��

����1�
�������:����
�&H���
����������
�������������1�
����
����������������������1�
���"&6�
�����������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������
���1�
��
�

�
'���



�
-
%
�
�
	
�
�
�
�
8
1
�
6
1
�
�
�
1
�
�


�
&

�
(
�
)
)
�
�
�
�
�
#

�
�
�
0
�
�
*
�
�
�

�
�
�
+
 
,
 
,

A
�
B
�
.
�
6
&
�

'
�
�
�
-
�
:
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�


�
�
�
K
�
�
�
�
*
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
,

�
�
�
�
-

'
�
�
�
�
-
�
�
�
�
7
�
�

	


�


�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
!
�
�
"

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
#
�
�
�
�
�
�
$
�
�
%
�

�
�
$
&
�
�
�
�
�
'
&
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
-
%
�
�
	
�
 
�


�

	


�


�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

6
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
-
%
�
�
	
�

-



�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
-



�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#
�
�
)

�
0


1
2
�
�
�
3
+
 
-
�
�

�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
�
*
5
�
�
 
6
�
�

-
1
�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
�
(
�
3
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
7

�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�
�
-
�
�

�
1
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
	
(
*
�
�
 
6
�
�

-
�
�

�
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
1
�

�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

.
�
�
�
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

�
�
�
1
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

/
�
�
�
0


&
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
-
�
�
�


�
�
�
8
�
�
�
�
�
9
�
:


�
�
	
�
�
�
3
 
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
1
�


�
�
�
-
�
�


�

7
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
'
�


�
�
/

�
�
�
�
#

�
�
(
�
)
)
�
#
�
4
5
%
8
�
�
 
6
6
�

�
6
6
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�

7
�
�
&
�
/

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
%
7
�
�
�
�
(
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�
�
)


�
�
�
�


�


�
�
�
�
�
�
/


�
�
�

)
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
	


�
�
�
�
�
�
,
;
�
<
;
3
+
�
�
�
�
)
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
%
�
�
�
	


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
;
�
3
;
3
+

	


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
!
�
�
�
�
3
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
,
�
�
3
�
�
�

"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�


�
)
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A


�
�
�
�
B
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
<
�

L
�


�
�
�

�
�
)
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
�
�
�
 
3
!

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�
�
�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
*
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
-
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�

�
1
�


�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A
�
1
�
�
�
B
�
�
�
�
�
�
*
�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
.
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
L

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
-
�
�
1
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A
�
'
;
(
B
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
A
�
:
�
B
�
�
�
-
�
�
1
�
�

�
�

�
�
1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
"
�
�


�
�
0

�
�
�
1
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
+
 
3
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
M
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
!
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
=
 
+
�
3
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
M

"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�



�


'
�
�
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
+
 
=
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
M
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
!
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
=
 
+
�
3
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
M

"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
�



�


'
�
�
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
+
 
=
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
M
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
!
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
=
 
+
=
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
<
M

"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
8
1
�
�


�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
+
 
=
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
M
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
!
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
=
 
+
=
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
<
M

�
�
�
1


�

H
�
�
�
"
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
8
1
�
�


�
�
�
.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
3
,
�
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
<
 
+
,
+
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�


'
�
�
�



�-%��%�
	
�
������
�������������������
������������������������ ��!��"��������
�������#������$��%���$&�����'&���
����-%��%� �
�
�(�))�*������+ , ,
-
�������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�-
��/����#��)�0
12���3+ -��
�
���1�
���������.�������
���������
�����.�����'�
��
/����#��(�))�#�4�*5�� 6��
-1�����.��������������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4�(�3�	���3 ��7
�
���1�
���-���1��	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��
/����#��(�))�#�4	(*�� 6��
-������
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
�����1���
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
��
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
.������
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
���1���
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
8�����9�:
���������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���
8�����9�:
��	���3 ���
/���0
&��������	��7��&������
�����.�����'�
��/����#��(�))�#�4-���
���8����
9�:
��	���3 ���
�66�&��������	��7��&�/����������1�������������%7����(�
���������	���)
���
�
�
������/
���
����1�
���-��
�7��.�������
���������
�����.�����'�
��
/����#��(�))�#�45%8�� 66�
����������
������1�:���'����
����������
��1�&�6�������
���'��
������,;�<;3+���������1�&�6���������'��
�����
��;�3;3+
	
���������!����3���������������������������"������,�=+�=�
/�
���������
����&6�����	�
�
'���&��������7�'���1�&�
��
�
������� ��5�
����0
������
������� ��9���7���6�����
�������
����������.1�:�
���51�����>�?7
���&�@>������
�����0
������
�����������, ���������������A���7��&���
�B���
������������ ��/
������������
�����������= ��5������������A���7��&�����6B���
���������
�������-%��%�

���������������������������CDEEEEE����
�������
�����1����A
����B�EEEEEFC
���������������������������-�����������1��.������
�����1���
���8����
������������������������������
�������
���������
����������
����9�:
�
��1�������
�������������������
��������
������������������������������
�
-��������������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-��������������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-�����,��������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-��������������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
-�����=��������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�
7����
�2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�
7����
�2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�
7����
�2�';����
'��,����� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
9�6
7�����2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
9�6
7�����2�';����
'�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
&'��1�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
&'��1�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
	�7�0
&�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
	�7�0
&�������������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
	�7�0
&��,����������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
���0
�2�;#
�2�������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
���0
�2�;#
�2�������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����������
����������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����������
����������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����������
�,��������������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
(
�'��(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
(
�'��(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
9���7���6������
������������ 3=������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
���(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��

�
'���



�-%��%�
��
���(
����
6������
������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
��
���(
����
6������
�,����� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
����
���;#
�������&����
���� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
8��������7�1�����
��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
8�����	��.�������6����
���� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
8������
���.�������6����
��� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
������������������������������������������������������������������������
"��
���������������������� 3=��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��
�������������������������������������������������������������������

/���0
&���1�������
�����������
�A
����B

�
7��(
���G����������
�������� ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�������� ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�,������ ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�������� ��
�
7��(
���G����������
�=������ ��
(
�'��"1������
��������������� ��
9���7���6������
�������������� ��
8��������7�1�����
����������� ��
8�����	�����&�.��������6����� ��
8������
��
��&�.��������6���� ��
�����������������������������������
"��
�������������������������� ��

"��
�����������1�������
����������������� 3=
�������������������������������������������������
"��
�����������1�������
�
������������������
�������
�������������� 3=
����������������������������������������EEEEEEEEE

���������������������1�������
�.���������
�����������
���
(
���9�����-������
�
���9���7���6������
������1����
��
��1�:������,�
���������"����.��$&�����'������"&6�������&

	�
�
'���&����

81��
��

����1�
�������:����
�&H���
����������
�������������1�
����
����������������������1�
���"&6�
�����������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������
���1�
��
�

�
'���



��
��

��
��
�
	
	

�

��
�

��
��

�
��
��
�

�
��
	
��

�
��
	
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
���
��

��
�
��
�

�

��
��
��
���
���

���
���

��
��
��
 !
��
"


�
��
��#
�$
�%
$�
 �
��
&
��
��
�'
!�
'(
��
�

��
��
�

�)
*+
�,
��-

��
�
��

�
�� ��

��
��
-�
��

�
�.

�/
��
-,

�.
�
+�
�

��
�.

��
)�
��
-�
��
)

�/
�-
��
���
-)
)�
)�0
��
�1

2�
�*
��
��
�.

�2
"
3

��
&
&
�+
4�
5-
+�

���
�/
��

�)
�
��
�&

�&
�

#�
#�

#
#

#
#�
#�

"
6

�
�7
�&

�&
�

��
! 

8%
��

8%
��

#�
�

��
'%

!#
�8

/
�+
�9
��

#�
88

�'
%�
!

�'
%�
!

#�
#'

#�
8�

!�
��

�-
��
��

�!
�#
�

�8
(!
!

�8
(!
(

�%
�'
 


�
��
��
���
��:

�
�"
��
�

�

��
��
��
���
���

���
���

��
��
��
 !
��
"


�
��
��#
�$
�%
$�
 �
��
&
��
��
�'
'�
�(
��
�

��
��
�

�)
*+
�,
��-

��
�:
�

�"
��
�0

��
�

�

1

��
��
��
-�
��

�-
-5
)��

�-
-5
)��

��
/�
.�
��
+�
��
96
�

��
-+
�9
��
�


+
�/
��

�4
)��

�&
��
���
��
.)
*�
,�

.�
+
��
��

�-
��
���
-)
)�
)�0
��
�1

2�
�*
��
��
�.

�2
"
3

�
��
�&

�&
�

#�
#�

#
#

�
#

#
#�
#�

( 
�8

�
�7
�&

�&
�

��
! 

� 
 

�8
8(

�'
�!

�(
'�

��
�'

��
#(

!!
�%

/
�+
�9
��

#�
88

��
�8
;

�#
!�
�

�#
!�
'

�(
#�
�

!#
�#
�

#�
��

! 
� 

�-
��
��

�!
�#
�

!!
(

�(
;#
(

�(
;8
 

�;
 ;
'

%!
��

�!
� 
%


�
��
��
���
��

��
�

�

�

�

��
��
��
���
���

���
���

��
��
��
 !
��
"


�
��
��#
�$
�%
$�
 �
��
&
��
��
�#
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

�)
*+
�,
��-

��
�
��

�

� ��

��
��
-�
��

�&
��
���
��
.)
*�
,�

.�
+
��
��

��
�.

��
)�
��
-�
��
)

�/
�-
��
���
-)
)�
)�0
��
�1

2�
�*
��
��
�.

�2
"
3

�
��
�&

�&
�

#�
#�

#
#

#
#�
#�

"
6

�
�7
�&

�&
�

��
! 

��
�

��
�

#�
�

��
'%

!#
�8

/
�+
�9
��

#�
88

;�
%8
!

;�
% 
%

#�
#'

#�
8�

!�
��

�-
��
��

�!
�#
�

;�
%

;�
!�
'

�%
�'
 

��
&
&
�+
4�
5-
+�

���
�/
��

�)

��
&
&
�+
4�
5-
+�

���
�/
��

�)

�



�����������������������!����"�!���	��������� �

� � �

�
�
�

$���	%�0� �
�

��������
���*�������	����
� �



��
��
��
��	


�
��
�
�

��
�
�


�

	
��

�
�
��
�	
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
�

����
����������


�

�
��

�

��
�	

�
� 

�
!

��

�
�
��
���
��
��



��
�

��
"�
#"
��

� 



��
��

�

�$�!
�

��
��



�
��
%

&�
�'

�
��
��

�

P
R

O
P

. B
LD

G
 #

1

PHANTOM WOODS ROAD

B
A

S
IN

 #
1

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

W
E

TL
A

N
D

S

M
AI

N
 S

TR
EE

T 
(C

TH
 E

S)

P
R

O
P

. B
LD

G
 #

2

��
"�
#"
��

�!
�

��
"�
#"
��

LE
G

E
N

D
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 A
R

E
A

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

Tc
 P

A
TH

S
O

IL
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

C
B

1

C
B

2

C
B

6

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

C
U

LV
E

R
T



S
ce

n
ar

io
: 

B
as

e

T
itl

e
: 

P
re

m
ie

r 
W

o
o
d
s 

P
h
a
se

 2
c:

\.
..

\1
4
-0

1
7
 p

h
a
se

 2
 s

to
rm

.s
tm

0
5
/1

2
/1

6
  

0
9
:3

4
:0

3
 A

M
R

S
V

 E
n

g
in

ee
ri

n
g

©
 B

e
n
tle

y 
S

ys
te

m
s,

 I
n
c.

  
  

H
a
e
st

a
d
 M

e
th

o
d
s 

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 C

e
n
te

r 
  

 W
a
te

rt
o
w

n
, 

C
T

 0
6
7
9
5
 U

S
A

  
  

+
1
-2

0
3
-7

5
5
-1

6
6
6

P
ro

je
ct

 E
n
g
in

e
e
r:

 D
K

V
S

to
rm

C
A

D
 v

5
.6

 [
0
5
.0

6
.0

1
2
.0

0
]

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

1
���

��
�

���

��
�

���

��
	



�

�

�
�

��
��



�

�

�
�

�
	

��
��

�
��

��
��



S
ce

n
ar

io
: 

B
as

e

S
to

rm
 S

ew
er

 W
o

rk
sh

ee
t 

10
 y

ea
r 

st
o

rm

T
itl

e
: 

P
re

m
ie

r 
W

o
o
d
s 

P
h
a
se

 2
c:

\.
..

\1
4
-0

1
7
 p

h
a
se

 2
 s

to
rm

.s
tm

0
5
/1

2
/1

6
  

0
9
:3

5
:0

3
 A

M
R

S
V

 E
n

g
in

ee
ri

n
g

©
 B

e
n
tle

y 
S

ys
te

m
s,

 I
n
c.

  
  

H
a
e
st

a
d
 M

e
th

o
d
s 

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 C

e
n
te

r 
  

 W
a
te

rt
o
w

n
, 

C
T

 0
6
7
9
5
 U

S
A

  
  

+
1
-2

0
3
-7

5
5
-1

6
6
6

P
ro

je
ct

 E
n
g
in

e
e
r:

 D
K

V
S

to
rm

C
A

D
 v

5
.6

 [
0
5
.0

6
.0

1
2
.0

0
]

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

1

La
be

l
U

p.
N

od
e

D
n.

N
od

e
U

ps
tr

ea
m

In
le

t
A

re
a

(a
cr

es
)

U
ps

tr
ea

m
In

le
t

R
at

io
na

l
C

oe
ffi

ci
en

t

U
ps

tr
ea

m
In

le
t

C
A

(a
cr

es
)

P
ip

e
F

lo
w

T
im

e
(m

in
)

U
ps

tr
ea

m
C

al
cu

la
te

d
S

ys
te

m
 C

A
(a

cr
es

)

S
ys

te
m

T
c

(m
in

)

I
(in

/h
r)

U
ps

tr
ea

m
In

le
t

R
at

io
na

l Q
(c

fs
)

T
ot

al
F

lo
w

(c
fs

)

A
vg

.
v

(f
t/s

)

Q F
ul

l
(c

fs
)

L (f
t)

S
(f

t/f
t)

S
iz

e
U

p.
In

ve
rt

E
le

v.
(f

t)

D
n.

In
ve

rt
E

le
v.

(f
t)

U
p.

R
im

E
le

v.
(f

t)

D
n.

R
im

E
le

v.
(f

t)

P
-1

C
B

1
M

H
3

0
.4

5
0

.5
8

0
.2

6
0

.4
5

0
.2

6
5

.0
0

6
.3

0
1

.6
6

1
.6

6
2

.7
9

2
.7

2
9

9
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
1

2
 in

ch
8

2
3

.5
9

8
2

3
.1

0
8

2
6

.5
5

8
2

7
.3

4

P
-3

C
B

2
M

H
3

0
.5

4
0

.5
8

0
.3

1
0

.2
9

0
.3

1
5

.0
0

6
.3

0
1

.9
9

1
.9

9
3

.3
4

3
.2

8
7

6
.0

0
0

.0
0

7
1

2
 in

ch
8

2
3

.6
5

8
2

3
.1

0
8

2
6

.6
5

8
2

7
.3

4

P
-2

M
H

3
F

E
S

4
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
0

.2
0

0
.5

8
5

.4
5

6
.2

0
N

/A
3

.6
0

1
2

.7
4

1
1

.2
5

1
5

3
.0

0
0

.0
8

5
1

2
 in

ch
8

2
3

.0
0

8
1

0
.0

0
8

2
7

.3
4

8
1

1
.2

5

P
-4

C
B

6
M

H
5

0
.2

5
0

.3
8

0
.1

0
0

.3
8

0
.1

0
5

.0
0

6
.3

0
0

.6
0

0
.6

0
2

.7
1

2
.7

3
6

4
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
1

2
 in

ch
8

2
4

.9
0

8
2

4
.5

8
8

2
7

.7
0

8
2

8
.6

0

P
-5

E
X

 C
U

L
VM

H
5

4
.3

7
0

.1
9

0
.8

3
0

.0
2

0
.8

3
8

.0
0

5
.6

7
4

.7
2

4
.7

2
3

.4
6

3
3

.7
3

1
0

.0
0

0
.0

3
2

2
8

.5
 x

 1
8

.
8

2
4

.5
7

8
2

4
.2

5
8

2
6

.0
7

8
2

8
.6

0

P
-6

M
H

5
F

E
S

7
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
0

.1
3

0
.9

2
8

.0
2

5
.6

7
N

/A
5

.2
6

5
.2

6
3

6
.6

8
4

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

8
3

0
 in

ch
8

2
4

.1
5

8
2

3
.8

3
8

2
8

.6
0

8
2

5
.3

3



Detailed Report for Inlet: CB1

Title: Premier Woods Phase 2
c:\...\14-017 phase 2 storm.stm
05/13/16  12:41:32 PM

RSV Engineering
© Bentley Systems, Inc.    Haestad Methods Solution Center    Watertown, CT 06795 USA    +1-203-755-1666

Project Engineer: DKV
StormCAD v5.6 [05.06.012.00]

Page 1 of 2

Note:
The input data may have been modified since the last calculation was performed.
The calculated results may be outdated.

Scenario Summary

Scenario Base

Physical Properties Alternat Base-Physical Properties

Catchments Alternative Base-Catchments

System Flows Alternative Base-System Flows

Structure Headlosses Altern Base-Structure Headlosses

Boundary Conditions Altern Base-Boundary Conditions

Design Constraints Alternat Base-Design Constraints

Capital Cost Alternative Base-Capital Cost

User Data Alternative Base-User Data

Geometric Summary

X 9,884.96 ft Calculated Station 2+52 ft

Y 9,988.80 ft

Elevations

Ground Elevation 826.55 ft Hydraulic Grade Line In 824.16 ft

Rim Elevation 826.55 ft Hydraulic Grade Line Out 824.16 ft

Sump Elevation 823.59 ft

Headlosses

Gravity Element Headloss 0.00 ft Depth Out 0.57 ft

Headloss Method Absolute Velocity Out 3.63 ft/s

Absolute Headloss 0.00 ft Velocity Head Out 0.20 ft

System Flow Summary

Total System Flow 1.66 cfs System Rational Flow 1.66 cfs

System Flow Time 5.00 min System Additional Flow 0.00 cfs

System Intensity 6.30 in/hr System Known Flow 0.00 cfs

System CA 0.26 acres Total Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs

Incoming Diverted Flow

Local Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs Global Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs

Total Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs

Inlet Flow Summary

Area 0.45 acres Composite Rational C 0.58

Inlet CA 0.26 acres Carryover CA 0.00 acres

Total Inlet CA 0.26 acres Total Inlet Intensity 6.30 in/hr

Total Inlet Rational Flow 1.66 cfs Total Inlet Time of Concentr 5.00 min

Total Inlet Additional Flow 0.00 cfs Total Inlet Known Flow 0.00 cfs

Total Flow To Inlet 1.66 cfs

Inlet Characteristics

Inlet Type Generic Inlet Inlet Location In Sag

Inlet Generic Default 100% Inlet Section Properties Gutter Section

Road Cross Slope 0.020 ft/ft Depressed Gutter? false

Gutter Cross Slope 0.020 ft/ft Gutter Width 0.00 ft



Detailed Report for Inlet: CB1

Title: Premier Woods Phase 2
c:\...\14-017 phase 2 storm.stm
05/13/16  12:41:32 PM

RSV Engineering
© Bentley Systems, Inc.    Haestad Methods Solution Center    Watertown, CT 06795 USA    +1-203-755-1666

Project Engineer: DKV
StormCAD v5.6 [05.06.012.00]

Page 2 of 2

External Pipe Flow

External CA 0.00 acres External Time of Concentra 0.00 min

Intercepted Flow Summary

Intercepted Rational Flow 1.66 cfs Intercepted CA 0.26 acres

Intercepted Additional Flow 0.00 cfs Intercepted Intensity 6.30 in/hr

Intercepted Known Flow 0.00 cfs Intercepted Tc 5.00 min

Total Intercepted Flow 1.66 cfs Capture Efficiency 100.0 %

Upstream Piped Flow Summary

Upstream Rational Flow 0.00 cfs Upstream CA 0.00 acres

Upstream Additional Flow 0.00 cfs Upstream Intensity 0.00 in/hr

Upstream Known Flow 0.00 cfs Upstream Time Of Concent 0.00 min

Total Upstream Flow 0.00 cfs

Design Constraints Summary

Pipe Matching Inverts Allow Drop Structure? true

Matchline Offset 0.00 ft Local Pipe Matching Constr false

Design Structure Elevation? true Desired Sump Depth 0.00 ft

Subwatershed
Information

Area
(acres)

Inlet
C

0.10 0.13

0.08 0.75

0.27 0.70

User Data

Date Installed



Detailed Report for Inlet: CB2

Title: Premier Woods Phase 2
c:\...\14-017 phase 2 storm.stm
05/13/16  12:42:03 PM

RSV Engineering
© Bentley Systems, Inc.    Haestad Methods Solution Center    Watertown, CT 06795 USA    +1-203-755-1666

Project Engineer: DKV
StormCAD v5.6 [05.06.012.00]

Page 1 of 2

Note:
The input data may have been modified since the last calculation was performed.
The calculated results may be outdated.

Scenario Summary

Scenario Base

Physical Properties Alternat Base-Physical Properties

Catchments Alternative Base-Catchments

System Flows Alternative Base-System Flows

Structure Headlosses Altern Base-Structure Headlosses

Boundary Conditions Altern Base-Boundary Conditions

Design Constraints Alternat Base-Design Constraints

Capital Cost Alternative Base-Capital Cost

User Data Alternative Base-User Data

Geometric Summary

X 10,020.64 ft Calculated Station 2+29 ft

Y 10,065.60 ft

Elevations

Ground Elevation 826.65 ft Hydraulic Grade Line In 824.25 ft

Rim Elevation 826.65 ft Hydraulic Grade Line Out 824.25 ft

Sump Elevation 823.65 ft

Headlosses

Gravity Element Headloss 0.00 ft Depth Out 0.60 ft

Headloss Method Absolute Velocity Out 4.03 ft/s

Absolute Headloss 0.00 ft Velocity Head Out 0.25 ft

System Flow Summary

Total System Flow 1.99 cfs System Rational Flow 1.99 cfs

System Flow Time 5.00 min System Additional Flow 0.00 cfs

System Intensity 6.30 in/hr System Known Flow 0.00 cfs

System CA 0.31 acres Total Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs

Incoming Diverted Flow

Local Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs Global Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs

Total Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs

Inlet Flow Summary

Area 0.54 acres Composite Rational C 0.58

Inlet CA 0.31 acres Carryover CA 0.00 acres

Total Inlet CA 0.31 acres Total Inlet Intensity 6.30 in/hr

Total Inlet Rational Flow 1.99 cfs Total Inlet Time of Concentr 5.00 min

Total Inlet Additional Flow 0.00 cfs Total Inlet Known Flow 0.00 cfs

Total Flow To Inlet 1.99 cfs

Inlet Characteristics

Inlet Type Generic Inlet Inlet Location In Sag

Inlet Generic Default 100% Inlet Section Properties Gutter Section

Road Cross Slope 0.020 ft/ft Depressed Gutter? false

Gutter Cross Slope 0.020 ft/ft Gutter Width 0.00 ft



Detailed Report for Inlet: CB2

Title: Premier Woods Phase 2
c:\...\14-017 phase 2 storm.stm
05/13/16  12:42:03 PM

RSV Engineering
© Bentley Systems, Inc.    Haestad Methods Solution Center    Watertown, CT 06795 USA    +1-203-755-1666

Project Engineer: DKV
StormCAD v5.6 [05.06.012.00]

Page 2 of 2

External Pipe Flow

External CA 0.00 acres External Time of Concentra 0.00 min

Intercepted Flow Summary

Intercepted Rational Flow 1.99 cfs Intercepted CA 0.31 acres

Intercepted Additional Flow 0.00 cfs Intercepted Intensity 6.30 in/hr

Intercepted Known Flow 0.00 cfs Intercepted Tc 5.00 min

Total Intercepted Flow 1.99 cfs Capture Efficiency 100.0 %

Upstream Piped Flow Summary

Upstream Rational Flow 0.00 cfs Upstream CA 0.00 acres

Upstream Additional Flow 0.00 cfs Upstream Intensity 0.00 in/hr

Upstream Known Flow 0.00 cfs Upstream Time Of Concent 0.00 min

Total Upstream Flow 0.00 cfs

Design Constraints Summary

Pipe Matching Inverts Allow Drop Structure? true

Matchline Offset 0.00 ft Local Pipe Matching Constr false

Design Structure Elevation? true Desired Sump Depth 0.00 ft

Subwatershed
Information

Area
(acres)

Inlet
C

0.12 0.13

0.08 0.75

0.34 0.70

User Data

Date Installed



Detailed Report for Inlet: CB6

Title: Premier Woods Phase 2
c:\...\14-017 phase 2 storm.stm
05/13/16  12:42:31 PM

RSV Engineering
© Bentley Systems, Inc.    Haestad Methods Solution Center    Watertown, CT 06795 USA    +1-203-755-1666

Project Engineer: DKV
StormCAD v5.6 [05.06.012.00]

Page 1 of 2

Note:
The input data may have been modified since the last calculation was performed.
The calculated results may be outdated.

Scenario Summary

Scenario Base

Physical Properties Alternat Base-Physical Properties

Catchments Alternative Base-Catchments

System Flows Alternative Base-System Flows

Structure Headlosses Altern Base-Structure Headlosses

Boundary Conditions Altern Base-Boundary Conditions

Design Constraints Alternat Base-Design Constraints

Capital Cost Alternative Base-Capital Cost

User Data Alternative Base-User Data

Geometric Summary

X 9,794.57 ft Calculated Station 1+04 ft

Y 9,996.90 ft

Elevations

Ground Elevation 827.70 ft Hydraulic Grade Line In 825.22 ft

Rim Elevation 827.70 ft Hydraulic Grade Line Out 825.22 ft

Sump Elevation 824.90 ft

Headlosses

Gravity Element Headloss 0.00 ft Depth Out 0.32 ft

Headloss Method Absolute Velocity Out 2.75 ft/s

Absolute Headloss 0.00 ft Velocity Head Out 0.12 ft

System Flow Summary

Total System Flow 0.60 cfs System Rational Flow 0.60 cfs

System Flow Time 5.00 min System Additional Flow 0.00 cfs

System Intensity 6.30 in/hr System Known Flow 0.00 cfs

System CA 0.10 acres Total Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs

Incoming Diverted Flow

Local Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs Global Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs

Total Diverted Flow In 0.00 cfs

Inlet Flow Summary

Area 0.25 acres Composite Rational C 0.38

Inlet CA 0.10 acres Carryover CA 0.00 acres

Total Inlet CA 0.10 acres Total Inlet Intensity 6.30 in/hr

Total Inlet Rational Flow 0.60 cfs Total Inlet Time of Concentr 5.00 min

Total Inlet Additional Flow 0.00 cfs Total Inlet Known Flow 0.00 cfs

Total Flow To Inlet 0.60 cfs

Inlet Characteristics

Inlet Type Generic Inlet Inlet Location In Sag

Inlet Generic Default 100% Inlet Section Properties Gutter Section

Road Cross Slope 0.020 ft/ft Depressed Gutter? false

Gutter Cross Slope 0.020 ft/ft Gutter Width 0.00 ft



Detailed Report for Inlet: CB6

Title: Premier Woods Phase 2
c:\...\14-017 phase 2 storm.stm
05/13/16  12:42:31 PM

RSV Engineering
© Bentley Systems, Inc.    Haestad Methods Solution Center    Watertown, CT 06795 USA    +1-203-755-1666

Project Engineer: DKV
StormCAD v5.6 [05.06.012.00]

Page 2 of 2

External Pipe Flow

External CA 0.00 acres External Time of Concentra 0.00 min

Intercepted Flow Summary

Intercepted Rational Flow 0.60 cfs Intercepted CA 0.10 acres

Intercepted Additional Flow 0.00 cfs Intercepted Intensity 6.30 in/hr

Intercepted Known Flow 0.00 cfs Intercepted Tc 5.00 min

Total Intercepted Flow 0.60 cfs Capture Efficiency 100.0 %

Upstream Piped Flow Summary

Upstream Rational Flow 0.00 cfs Upstream CA 0.00 acres

Upstream Additional Flow 0.00 cfs Upstream Intensity 0.00 in/hr

Upstream Known Flow 0.00 cfs Upstream Time Of Concent 0.00 min

Total Upstream Flow 0.00 cfs

Design Constraints Summary

Pipe Matching Inverts Allow Drop Structure? true

Matchline Offset 0.00 ft Local Pipe Matching Constr false

Design Structure Elevation? true Desired Sump Depth 0.00 ft

Subwatershed
Information

Area
(acres)

Inlet
C

0.11 0.70

0.14 0.13

User Data

Date Installed



�����������������������!����"�!���	��������� �

� � �

�
�
�

$���	%�1� �
�

)���	���*�������*�������	����
� �



FD
M

 1
0-

5 
A

tta
ch

m
en

t 3
5.

1 
 C

ha
nn

el
 E

ro
si

on
 C

on
tro

l M
at

rix
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
7,

 2
00

4 
A

tta
ch

m
en

t 3
5.

1 
P

ag
e 

1 

C
H

A
N

N
EL

 E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

M
A

TR
IX

 
(C

on
ce

nt
ra

te
d 

Fl
ow

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n)

 



�����������������������!����"�!���	��������� �

� � �

�
�
�

$���	%�3��
�

��������������	���������$���������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�



��9����-5����
�

�4567��*4-6��*1*0-7-14�6*84/8-��*/14-1*18-�	06--7-14�
�+�&��+��--.)<��)�=	���+>�-5��?��,+-,�+�4�.�)*+�@�.�����7?�@���<�����**-+.��*�����?�2?�,��+�8;�-5��?��
�����9��-5�����-��9-�����*�,���2-.�<��9+��)��-���)�������.�&��������)�-+&�����+�@�)��&���9�&����
,+�*��*�)�0+�5�++�.��-�?�+�����)�-+�:��1���-���?��)�@A�*��,+-,�+�4�����**-+.��*�����?��,,+-/�.�,���)���.�
��-+&�����+���+&���*-�.���-�)����?��-���+�5�+�?�+��9+��)��-��?����+&)�)����.�����?�)�.-*�&�����-��
��)�+���?����?��)�-+&�����+�:��B)�*-�������)�+/��9��?�������.�.�5��*��-�)����,�+,�����4����
�?�)�9+��&������*��.�)��?��5-��-���9��7?�@��)���
�

@</+/4�	����9���
�)*+�,��-��-5��?��+�����)�����5-+��?�*?��?�)�9+��&�����,,���)�0=�+-,�+�4>1��

@</+/4�����-*���-����,�$�)?-�)�����**�+�����-*���-��-5���*?�)�-+&�����+�&���9�&����,+�*��*��
�55�*��.�@4��?�)�9+��&�����

@</+/4� �����������*�������$�,+�)*+�@�)��?-)���*��/����)��?���&�)��@��*�++��.�-����-�&��������
*-&,����*�����?��?�)�9+��&�����

@</+/4����
�)�9����&&�+4�$�*-�����)���)�&&�+4�-5���4���9����+��9�*��*�����-�)���.�-�?�+�.�����)�.�
�-�.�)�9���?��:��B)��

@</+/4�
��)$@�����)�+/�4�$�)?-�)���.������.�=�)$@����>�*+-))�)�*��-����.�,����/����-5��?��:��B)��

@</+/4����)�9����+��962-�)�+�*��-����+�5�*���-��$�,+-/�.�)�/�+�5�*���-��5+-&��?��,+-A�*����9����+��?���
�?��.�)�9����.�*-�)�+�*��-��-5��?������.������-��@�)���*-&,���)����?������,,��*�@�����*?��*���)���.�+.)�
��.��?��/����9�B)�+�C��+�&���)��
�
�?+-�9?��?�)�9+��&���<��?��	���+�?�+�@4�)�@A�*�)��?���+-,�+�4��-��?��5-��-���9�*-/�����)<�*-�.���-�)�
��.�+�)�+�*��-�)��
�

��� �?��	���+�)?����*-�)�+�*�<�&����������.��5���*�))�+4�+�*-�)�+�*���?��)�-+&�����+�:��)�)-��)��-��
� &���������?��+�*-&,����*�����?��,,��*�@���9-/�+�&�����<�)������)<�-+.����*�)�-5�+���)����?���
� 	���+�)?����@��+�),-�)�@���5-+��?��+-��������.��7�+�-+.���+4�&��������*����.�+�,��+�-5��?���
� )�-+&�����+�:��B)��.����5��.�����7?�@���:�����**-+.��*�����?��?��&��������*��,����*-������.�����
� �7?�@���2��

�
��� �,-���+�������-��5�*���-��@4������9��-5�����-��9-�-+���)�.�)�9������.��-����))��?���@��������4<��
� �?��	���+�)?���<�����?��+�-���*-)����.����?�����+��)-��@�����&��,�+�-.�.���+&���.�@4��?���
� �����9��-5�����-��9-<�?�/�������),�*��-��-5��?��)�-+&�����+�&���9�&����:��B)�*-�.�*��.�@4��
� ��C����5��.�,+-5�))�-���<��?-�)?�����?���5������+�,-+�����?��?�������9��-5�����-��9-���.��?��
� 	���+�)?�����?�+��5��+���&��4�*-&,�������4�&��������*��-+�+�,��+��-+��+�*-&&��.�.�����?���
� +�,-+�����?��	���+�)?����@�����@���5-+��?��5����+���-���.�+�������4�&��������*��-+�+�,��+)��
�
�
�
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�:�)��&���9�&����,+�*��*�)�-+�:����+��.�5���.��)�)�+�*��+�����.��-�)�+�*��+���&��)�+�)<�
,+�*��*�)<���*?��C��)�-+�.�/�*�)��&,�-4�.��-��/-�.�-+�&���&�D��)�.�&����-+�-�?�+�,-�������)�*�++��.�
���+��-55���
�����?���/�����?�)�9+��&�����)�+�C��+�.��-�@��+�*-+.�.�@4��?�������9�����-+.�+�5-+����	**�,��*4�
��+&����-�@���))��.�,+�-+��-�����*-�)�+�*��-��-5��?����-+&�����+�����9�&�����+�*��*�)�@���9�
*-&,����.�-+�/�+�5�*���-��@���9��**�,��.�@4��?�������9�<��?����?�������9��&�4�+�C��+�����
�..��.�&0)1��-��?�)��9+��&�����-�@��+�*-+.�.�@4��?��	���+�)?-���9�.�)�9����.�*-�)�+�*��-��
.�����)����?���..��.�&�&�4�*-������)�/�+����..���-�����7?�@��)<��)�.�)*+�@�.�����7?�@�������.���
�7?�@������



��9����-5����
�

8�� ����..���-�<���.���.�,��.����-5��?��+�C��+�&���)���.�+�,�+�9+�,?����@-/�<��?�������9��-5��
� ����-��9-<�-+���)�.�)�9���<��)����?-+�D�.�@����-��+�C��+�.��-��**�))��?��,+-,�+�4��)���*�))�+4��
� �-�*-�.�*����),�*��-�)�-5��?��)�-+&�����+�&���9�&����:��B)��-��)*�+�����*-&,����*�����?��?���
� ��+&)���.��������-5��?�)�9+��&������.��?���*��/����)�,+�)*+�@�.�����7?�@���2����?�������9��-5��
� ����-��9-�&�4�+�C��+���-+���-�@��.-����?�*?�.�55�+)�5+-&��?��+�,-+��.�)*+�@�.����,�+�9+�,?��
� ���@-/�<��5��?�������9��-5�����-��9-�+��)-��@�4�*-�*��.�)��?���)�*?��-+���)���*�))�+4���.��
� *-�)�)��������?��?���������-5��?�)��9+��&�������,-���-��5�*���-��@4��?�������9��-5�����-��9-�-5��
� +�C��+�.�&��������*��-+�+�,��+)<��?��	���+�)?����*-&,������?��),�*�5��.�&��������*��-+�+�,��+)��
� ���?�����+��)-��@�����&��5+�&�<��)�.���+&���.�@4��?�������9��-5�����-��9-��

�
;�� �5��?��	���+�.-�)��-��*-&,����������),�*��-����.�+����@-/��-+�*-&,������?��+�C��+�.��
� &��������*��-+�+�,��+)���.�+�8���@-/�����?����?��),�*�5��.���&��,�+�-.<��?�������9��-5��
� ����-��9-��)����?-+�D�.<�@����-��+�C��+�.<��-�,�+5-+&��?��),�*�5��.���),�*��-�)<�&��������*���
� -+�+�,��+)�������?��*�)��-5�����&�+9��*4�)������-�<��)�.���+&���.�@4��?�������9��-5�����-��9-<��
� �-��-��*��)?����@��+�C��+�.�,+�-+��-��?�������9��-5�����-��9-�,�+5-+&��9��&�+9��*4��
� &��������*��-+�+�,��+)��
�
� �?��*-)��-5���),�*��-�)�-+�&��)�+�)���.�+������@4��?�������9��,�+)������-��?�)��9+��&����)?�����
� @��5�+)��,��.�5+-&��?��,+-*��.)�-5���4�)�+��4�&��������.��-�)�*�+���?��,�+5-+&��*��@4��?���
� 	���+6
�/��-,�+�-5���)�-@��9���-�)���.�+��?�)��9+��&������.��?��*-�.���-�)�-5��?���)�<�)������.��
� �+*?���*��+����,,+-/���������?���/�����?����?��*-)�)�-5�)��.�&��)�+�)�)?�����7*��.��?��/�����-5��?���
� )�+��4�-+��?��)�+��4�?�)��7,�+�.�-+�@������+&�����.<���?�������?����/�����?��*-)��-5�)��.��
� &��)�+�)�)?����@���))�))�.��)���),�*����*?�+9��5-+�*�++����)�+/�*�)�,�+)������-���)��������*���
�   �# �%���4�)�*?��))�))&�����?�*?��)��-��,��.����?��� #�.�4)��5��+�@�����9�)?����@��.��&�.����
� .����C�����),�*����*?�+9����.�)?����@�*-&����������,-���?��,�+*����9���)���?�*?�)�*?�*?�+9��?�)��
� @�����))�))�.�����*?�.����C�����*?�+9�)�)?����@���7���.�.��,-���?��*�++����-+���7����7�+-����)����
� .����C�������7��9���)���?��,�+*��)�5-+��?�*?�,�4&����?�)��-��@����+�*��/�.�@4��?�������9����.��
� ����,+-*��.��9)����+�����-���-��?��*-���*��-�<�+���+����.�)����-5�,+-,�+�4�5-+�.����C�����+�����
� �)�������7�)�)?�����,,�4��-�)�*?�),�*����*?�+9�)����?��
�/��-,�+�?�+�@4�*-�)���)��-��?����/4�-5��
� )�*?�*?�+9����.����/�)��-��*����.��?��+�9?���-�?��+��9��
�
'�� �?�)�9+��&����)?����+������?��?��,+-,�+�4���.�@��@��.��9��,-������?��+)<�)�**�))-+)���.��
� �))�9�)���5��+��?��	���+�+�*-+.)��?�)�.-*�&���<��?�������9��-5�����-��9-�)?����?�/���?��)-����
� ���?-+��4��-�&-.�54��?�)��9+��&����*-����9�����,-���?�������9��-5�����-��9-�,+-/�.��9���
� 8#�.�4��+�������-��*���-��?��*�++����	���+����4�&-.�5�*���-�)�)?����*-�5-+&��-��?��&���&�&��
� +�C��+�&���)�-5�2?�,��+�8;�0-+���)�)�**�))-+1���.�@���+������)-��)��-���)�+���?���-�9$��+&��
� &��������*��-5��?��)�-+&����+�:��B)��
�
 ��� �?��	���+6
�/��-,�+��9+��)��-�,��.9����)�+��4������5-+&��**�,��@����-��?�������9��-5��
� ����-��9-��-�)�*�+��,�+5-+&��*��-5��?��-@��9���-�)��+�)��9�5+-&��?��*-�)�+�*��-����.��
� &��������*��-5��?��)�-+&�����+�:��)�,+-/�.�.�5-+���.�+��?�)�9+��&��������?���&-����-5��
� ��#E��-5��?���*�����*-)��-5��?��)�-+&�����+�:��)������.�)�+��4�)?����+�&��������55�*��5-+���,�+�-.��
� -5��?+���081�4��+)�5+-&��?��.����-5��?���7�*���-��-5��?�)�9+��&����-+�������.+�����,-�����5�����
� @4��?�������9��-+�-���4��+0�1�5+-&��?��.����-5��?��*�+��5�*���-��-5��?��)�-+&�����+��&,+-/�&���)��
� �?�*?�/�+�-**�+)�5�+)����������)��-5��?��)�+��4�,+�-+��-��?��.��.����)�)����.�?�+����)?����@���
� 9-/�+��.�@4�����-��9-������9��*-.��)�*��-��8;$�#(0*1��)��&��.�.�
�
�



��9����-5����
�

%��� �?�)�9+��&����)?����@��9-/�+��.���.�*-�)�+��.�����**-+.��*�����?��?�����)�-5��?��������-5��
� ��)*-�)����

�

���.��?�)�FFFF�.�4�-5�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF<��#�FFFF�
�
	���+��
FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�
�
�
��?-+�D�.���,+�)������/��-5�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�
�
FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�
0�+����.�"�&��-5���?-+�D�.���,+�)������/�1�
�
�
������-5���)*-�)����
2-���4�-5������)?��
�
�
��+)-����4�*�&��@�5-+��&���?�)�FFFF�.�4�-5�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF<��#�FFF<��?���@-/����&�.�
FFFFFFFFFFF�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF<��)��?�����?-+�D�.���,+�)������/��-5�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�
5-+��?��,�+,-)��-5�)�9���9��?�)�.-*�&���<��-�&����-����-�@���?��,�+)-���?-��7�*���.��?��5-+�9-��9�
��)�+�&������.��*��-���.9�.��?��)�&���
�
� � � � � �����������������������������������FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�
� � � � � � � ������G"�&�H�
� � � � � � � ������"-��+4���@��*<������)?��2-���4<����
� � � � � � � �������4�*-&&�))�-���7,�+�)��FFFFFFFFFFFFF�
�
�
**�,��.�@4��?�������9��-5�����-��9-��?�)�FFFF�.�4�-5�FFFFFFFFFFFFFF<��#�FF��
�
�
FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�
�+�.����*?-��4<������9���+�)�.����
�
�
FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�
���/���:+���D<�I+�<������9��2��+��
�
�?�)�.-*�&������)�.+�5��.�@4��
��-+��4��?����"�������4��
��,,��&�4�+<������4<��--.���J�:��&<���2���
��	��:-7�%  ��
�����)?�<�����'8�(%$#%  ��
����,?-����0� �1�';!$(�(���
��*)�&�����0� �1�';!$(�!���
�&�����)+����4K?+&@���5�+&�*-&�



��9����-5����
�

�	
�������������������������
�

�?��5-��-���9�.�)*+�,��-����.�+�.�*�.�*-,4�&�,��.����5��)��?�����.�,�+*��0)1��55�*��.�@4��?�)�
9+��&������-+�����+9�+�)*����/����-5��?��+�5�+��*�.�.-*�&���<�*-���*���?�������)?��2-���4���9�)��+�
-5�
��.)�-55�*���
�
��+/�4�.���9���
�)*+�,��-���
�
����?���,�+��-5��?��"���6;�-5��?������6;<��?������6;�-5��?��"���6;���.�,�+��-5��?��"���6;�-5��?������6;�
-5���*��-��8'<��-���'�"-+�?<����9���(���)�<������9��-5�����-��9-<������)?��2-���4<���)*-�)���@���9�
&-+��,�+��*���+�4�.�)*+�@�.��)�5-��-�)��
�
:�9�����9�����?����)���6;�*-+��+�-5�)��.���*��-��8'L��?��*�����?��?���-+�?������-5��?������6;�-5�)��.�
)�*��-���!#M;;N' O�<���.�)���*��-5��8('�'%N��-��?��,-����-5�@�9�����9L�)��.�,-������)-�@���9�-���?��
�-+�?��)��+�4������-5�2���O��OL��?��*�����?���*�+/���-��?��+�9?�������9�?�-5� ��;8N<�)��.�*�+/��?�/��9���
+�.��)�-5� �!��%N<���*?-+.��?�*?�@��+)��8;M;;N8!O�<� ��;#N��-���,-���L��?��*���8%M8%N''O�<��;8 � #N��
�-���,-���L��?��*���%�M#8N�'O�<���.�)���*��-5�'��; N��-���,-���L��?��*�����?��?����)�������-5��?���-&�
�--.)��-�.�";;M�8N'%O�<���.�)���*��-5�;!��  N��-���,-���L��?��*�����/��9�)��.���)���������.����?��?��
)-��?������-5��?���+���.)�-5���)���+-4�������-�.�"8#%M#;N;'O�<���#��%!N��-���,-���L��?��*�����/��9�)��.�
)-��?������-5�)��.�������-�.��%(M��N#%O�<���.�)���*��-5�;(%�%#N��-���*-�*+����&-��&����&�+���9��?���
*����+�-5�)��.�)�*��-��8'L��?��*�����?��?���-+�?������-5��?������6;�-5�)��.�)�*��-���!#M;;N' O�<���.�)���*��
-5��%'�;'N��-��?��,-����-5�@�9�����9������.�,�+*���*-�������9��%�% ��*+�)�&-+��-+���))��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�



��9����-5����
�

�	
���������������
 ��!�"�#����$�������"��
�%���������������������

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�



��9��&�-5����
�

�	
����'�����������(���
 ��#�)����(�����#���*��������+�!������"�
��������#���

�
�?��)�-+&�����+�&���9�&����,+�*��*�)�*-/�+�.�@4��?�)�9+��&�����+��.�,�*��.�����?��+�.�*�.�*-,4�-5�
��,-+��-��-5��?��*-�)�+�*��-��,���)<��)�)?-���@��-����
�
��-+&�����+��+�*��*�)�������
������-��:�)���P�L���
�

,��������
����������-5���-+&�����+��+�*��*�)�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�



��9��-�-5����
�

�	
����+��� ��#�)����*�������(����������*����
�

�?�)��7?�@����7,����)��?��@�)�*�5��*��-��-5���*?�-5��?��)�-+&�����+�,+�*��*�)���)��.�����7?�@���:���.�
,+�)*+�@�)��?��&���&�&�&��������*��+�C��+�&���)��-�+�&����*-&,���������?��?�)�9+��&������?��
&��������*���*��/����)���)��.�@��-���+����&�.��-���)�+���?�)��,+�*��*�)�*-�������)�+/��9��?��+������.�.�
5��*��-�)����,�+,�����4���?����)��-5��*��/����)��)��-��������*��)�/�<�@���+��?�+���.�*���)��?��&���&�&��4,��-5�
&��������*���?���*���@���7,�*��.�5-+��?�)�,�+��*���+�)�����**�))��-��?��)�-+&����+�,+�*��*�)�5-+�
&��������*��/�?�*��)��)�)?-�������7?�@���:���4�5����+��-5���)�-+&�����+�,+�*��*���?����)�*��)�.�@4�����*��
-5�&��������*�������)�@A�*���?��	���+0)1��-���5-+*�&����-5��?��,+-/�)�-�)���)��.�-��,�9����-5��?�)�
9+��&����@4��?�������9��-5�����-��9-��
�
�������	��
���������
����
������-��:�)���P�������+�*��/��+��-55�@4���.+����9��)������-��?��)-��?�-5��?��@�)�����.�.�+�*��4�
5+-&���-�)�-+&�)���+�-��5���)����?��@�)��������)�+/���?��,�+,-)��-5�,����5�-����.�����+�C�����4�*-��+-�����
�?������@�)���+�*��/�)�+��-55�5+-&�����'%��*+��.+����9���+�������-+&�����+�+��-55������.+�����?+-�9?��?��
@�)�����.�-��5�����-��?��������.�-��)������.��?����-��?���-+�?�-5��?��)�������?��@�)���?�)���'�5--��.��,�
5-+�@�4����?��5-+�@�4�������+�,�*-�+)��)�.�&�������+��-55��?�)�+�.�*��9�&��������*��-5��?��&����@�)�����
�?��&����,--��������+�,��?��5���+�)�.�&�������-�.-��?�)��?��,-�.�)�D�<�����+���/�����.�-������)�+�*��+�)�
&�)��@��&��������.��)�),�*�5��.�����?�)��9+��&�����
�
������/���-�)�����?��5�9�+�)�+�,+�)����,�����.�/����)���.��+��,+�)����.����5�����@-/��&����)�����/���
0"
�!�!1����?�)���+��+�C��+�.��-�@��5���.�/�+�5��.��,-��*-�)�+�*��-����*��������/���-�)�0��.�&-+��
.������.���5-+&���-��-���?��.�)�9�)1�*���@��-@�����.�@4�*-���*���9��?�������9��-5�����-��9-���.�*���
@���)�.��)���+�5�+��*��,-����.�+��9�&��������*����),�*��-�)��
�
�����������������
�����������������
�-���)�+���?��,+-,�+��-�9$��+&�5��*��-��-5��?��)�-+&�����+�&���9�&����,+�*��*�)�.�)*+�@�.��@-/�<�
�?��5-��-���9��*��/����)�&�)��@��*-&,����.���
������-������,�,�)�&�)��@��*?�*��.�&-��?�4��-���)�+���?�+���)��-�@�-*��9��5+-&�5�-����9�.�@+�)�-+��*���
�4�@�-*��9��&�)��@��+�&-/�.��&&�.�����4���
���Q+�))�)����)�)?����@��,+�)�+/�.��-����-��5+���5�-���9�-5�)�+5�*��+��-55�����**-+.��*�����?��,,+-/�.�
9+�.��9�,���)��"-�@���.��9)�-+�-�?�+�)�+�*��+�)��+�����-��.�����?�)���+��)��"-�9+�.��9�-+�5�����9��)����-��.�
�?���&�4�����++�,��5�-�)������4���4���
8��Q+�))�)����)<������)���.�-�����)�&�)��@��*?�*��.��5��+�?��/4�+���)�0&���&�&�-5��������41�5-+�)�9�)�-5�
�+-)�-����4��+-.��9��+��)�&�)��@��+�,��+�.��&&�.�����4��-�,+�/����,+�&���+��)�.�&����@���.$�,����
�?��.-��)�+��&�5-+�@�4�-+�@�)�����+-)�-��&�����9��)�+�*-&&��.�.�5-+�+�,��+��9�9+�))�.��+��)���
;��"	��+��)��+���-�@��,�����.�-+����-��.��-�9+-��-���?����+�?���@�+&)���+���+--��)4)��&)�*���+�.�*��
)-���*-&,�*��-����.�*��)��@�+&�5����+����?��@�+&)�&�)��@����),�*��.��������4���.���4��--.4�
/�9�����-��+�&-/�.���
'����/�)�/��,�������.����&���),�*��)�)?����@��&���9�.����*-&,����*�����?���)*-�)���.&���)�+���/��
2-.��2?�,��+�"��;#���?�)�&�4�+�C��+���+�.�*���-��-5���/�)�/��),�*��)����)-&��*�)�)���
 ���5��?��,�+&������,--��5���)�@��-���?��)�5��4�)?��5<���+�/����)?����@��,�+5-+&�.��-�.���+&�����?��?�+�
�?��*��)���)�����+������9��-+������)�55�*���������+�@�.9�����5��?��*��)���)������9�<��?������+�)?����@��
+�,��+�.�������9��.����-�&�)�+���@�++-�)�&�4�+�C��+��+�&-/���-5��?�����&��)<�+�,��+�-5��?������+����?�
*��4<���.��&@�..��9���+��&�)?�����?������+��-�.���+�5�+�?�+�@�++-���9���5��?��,�+&������,--��*���-��@��
)�)�����.�����?��.�)�9�����/���-�<�@��*?��9�-5��?��)�5��4�)?��5�&�4�@����*�))�+4���



��9��.�-5����
�

%���5�5�-����9���9���-+����.�9+-��?�@�*-&�)������)��*��0.�*�4�-.-+)<���*�1<����&�)��@��+�&-/�.�5+-&��?��
@�)���-+��?��5-+�@�4���.�.�,-)���.��?�+�����*���-��.+����@�*�����-��?��@�)������&-/���-5��?��/�9�����-��
5+-&��?������+�+�.�*�)�+�9+-��?��?��5-��-���9�)��)-��0@4�?�+/�)���9��?�����+����)1��������.�
/�9�����-��&�)��@��&��������.���-�9��?������+)��.9��5-+�)�5��4���.�,-��������+�&-/���,�+,-)�)���
(���5�&-)C���-�)�@�*-&�������)��*�<��?���)��-5�&-)C���-���+/�*�.��*-�������9�����+���4$-**�++��9�:���)-���
@�*��+����)�+�*-&&��.�.���
!���?���)�.�&��������?��5-+�@�4�-+��?��@�)���?�)��**�&�����.��-�������/���-��-5��?+���5����@��-���?��
-���������/���-�<����&�)��@��+�&-/�.�0)����7?�@���
1�����+�&-/�.�)�.�&����&�)��@��,��*�.�������
�,,+-,+������,���.�.�),-)���)������.�)��@���D�.�09+�))�*-/�+1��-�,+�/����)�.�&����5+-&���)?��9�@�*�����-�
�?��@�)�����?��5-+�@�4�����������4����.�)�.�&����+�&-/���5�+)��������+���-�+�&-/��)�.�&����5+-&��?��
5-+�@�4������*��)��+�)�),��)�-��-5�,+�/�-�)�4��+�,,�.�)�.�&���)���.���*+��)��.-��)�+��&�.�,-)���-����
�#��"-�9+�.��9�-+�5�����9�-5��?��@�)���-+�@�+&�-�?�+��?���5-+�)�.�&����+�&-/����)����-��.<�����))�
-�?�+��)���,,+-/�.�@4��?�������9��-5�����-��9-���
������+�-.�*�&-���9�-5��?��9+�))�)����)��������*-�+�9��/�9-+-�)�9+�))�*-/�+���.����-��@����+���),�*��-�)�
5-+��+-)�-���������9��������5��+��9�)����������/-�.�.�)��+@��9���)���9����.��5����-���9��+-��.��?��@�)���
-+��?��5-+�@�4)�&�4����+�*�����)��*��,-,�����-�)�-5�9��)���-��?��,+-,�+�4���.��)��-����*�))�+4�-+�
+�*-&&��.�.���
�����4�-�?�+�+�,��+�-+�&��������*�����.�.��-���)�+���?��*-������.�5��*��-��-5��?��)�-+&�����+�
,+�*��*�)�-+��)�-+.�+�.�@4��?�������9��-5�����-��9-���.�+��?��,+-/�)�-�)���)��.�-��,�9����-5��?�)�
9+��&������
�8���+��-+)6�-������)�R��5������+��-+�-+�5-��������)�.�)�+�.�5-+�/�)������.�-�?�+���)�?���*��55�*�)�
0��+��-+)�.�)�9��.��-�&�7��?��*-�����)�-5��?��,-�.��+��,+-?�@���.1��?�4�&�)��&��������-5��?�����&)�
@��-����

•� �)�������+��-+65-��������?���.-�)��-��?�/����.�,�?�-5���5����*���?����7���.)����-��?��)�.�&����
)�-+�9��.�,�?�0�����&-+���?����?+���5����@��-���?���-+&�������+�)�+5�*�1���

•� �5��?������+�)�+5�*��.+-,)�.����-�.+-�9?��-+������9�<��?����+��-+�6�5-�������&�4��-��@��
-,�+���.��������?������+�+�)�)���-�9?�5-+��?��.�,�?�-5���5����*���-�@���@-/���?��)�.�&����
)�-+�9����4�+���?�+�5-+�<��5��?��.�,�?�-5���5����*��-5��?����+��-+�6�5-��������)���-�5���<��?������+�
)�+5�*��&�)��@�����?���-���5--��-+���))�-5��?���-��)��,-�.�-��������

•� �+-/�.��������-&���*�)?��$-55�-5��?����+��-+65-��������)��?��,-�.�)��+�)��-�+�)��.�+��9���)�-+&�
�/������?����+��-+65-�������&�)��+�&����-55��?�����?��,-�.�.�,�?�+���+�)��-��?��,�+&������
,--�����/���-����.<�5�+�?�+<�)?����+�&����-55�5-+�����..���-����;(�?-�+)<��)�+�C��+�.�5-+��?��
.�)�9��&�*+-��,�+��*���)�D���-�)�������-�@��-���?��.+���.�,�?�-5��?��,�&,���

•� 2-�5�9�+���?��,�&,���������-�.+�������+�,+�&�+��4�5+-&���?-+�D-�����,�����)-��)��-�&���&�D��
�?��*+����-��-5���*�+*����-+4�,����+��5+-&�@-��-&��-��-,��?+-�9?-����?��,-�.��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�



��9��/�-5����
�

�	
��������������� �##��"�
�

�-4��-4-14/51��*./1�
����������������!�����	�
��	�	�

�
�

������)�����

�
�����
�
!����
8���:�

��%	����
������
�

7����
8���:�

��% �������
)�����	���

8��:�

�
���������������

�����% �)��� ��
8$����"�����:�

�
������
�
*�������

����������J�
�

&<K���4�#-�9����
�

( &#�
�

@ @1� 3@1 ..� @ @E#� &�

#<K���4�#-�9���� - (0� @ @E� 3@1 13� @ &(-� &�

&@<K���4�#-�9���� 3 1(� @ &(� 3@3 .E� @ (@#� &�

&@@<K���4�#-�9���� &- .E� @ 3E� 3@E @-� @ -@.� &4�#�

�
J2�����������	����������������������	;�������
>�
� L&�M�#A�+	� ���	�	��4�����M�3@1 @@�
� L#�M�&#A�*������4���� �M�3@3 0@�

)����������	��
��4�*�����)����M�3&@ @@�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�



��9�����-5����
�

�*4*��377*6A�256��-4��-4-14/51��*./1�
�

�	������
�
�����
�
�
��� �
������	�	�

*����	���	������	����������������	���8+&:� �# .1�������

+	�������������������	�����
����8	�����	������<�	���
����:� N#.�C����

+	�������������	�	���
����8	�����	������<�	���
����:� N&#@@�C����
���������������	��������	�������O� 5��
G���������������	����������������	�� &D�<�.D�
$������	�����������������	�	�	���	����������O� 5����
!��������������������������������/�	��������8
/�	�������:� �#A���	�	��4�&#A�

*������4���	��
$�����
���������������������������������O��8+����	��:� �5����
C������	�4��������������
�������O� ���������

� �
�5/,��19-.4/0*4/51��*4*�;�--�*44*8<-?�7*>�!�.5/,�,50.=��

� �
5�����������	��	�����	���	������������� 5����
+��������	�������������������%�����(��� �����
��������������O� �/��
$���������	����%���������������������	���8F�+$:� ����������������
+	���������������������������������� N.�C����
+	�����������������������������������
����������� �/��
� �
�-1-6*,�+*./1�?-./01�?*4*�;�--�*44*8<-?�?-4*/,-?�?6*C/10.=��
!�������������������������� �03(E��C�
+��	����������������
�������������������	��� 3@1�
2����������������	���8�����������	��:�����
	���� 3&&4�&@����
	���
'�����/
	����8�	����	���/���	�:� (>&�
����������������	���8������4������4���% �����:� 3P��	��4�&@>&������

@ 3P�+������	��	���
�����

$�� �
����������8�	����������������/���	����:� - #�C����
���	��������������	;����������� @ @-������/.������
���	������������������,����	�����	��������� #��� ������������������

,����4�&@������
��	���������
���������

�

�



 

 

DATE:  June 10, 2016 
TO:       Village President Fred Winchowky and Members of the 
FROM:  Bruce Kaniewski, Village Planner  
RE:          Add Parking Spaces/GS Global 
 
GS Global at 926 Perkins Drive requests site plan approval to add 14 parking spaces to the north end of 
their parking lot.  The parking lot is located east of the building.   The property is zoned M-4, 
Medium/Heavy Industrial District. 
 
GS Global purchased the property several years ago from Empire Level.  When the entire complex of 
buildings was divided to facilitate the purchase, storm water management on the site was approved by 
the Village and the work completed.   In addition, an asphalt drive from the north providing access to 
the connection between the two buildings was removed (see attached aerial photos).   Therefore, 
Supervisor of Inspections/Zoning Administrator Joe Hankovich has determined no additional storm 
water management measures are needed for the additional parking since the pavement of the 14 
additional spaces is less than the pavement previously removed.  The additional pavement is 2,460 
square feet in area. 
 
Recommendation 
 
I recommend approval of the site plan for 14 additional parking spaces with the following conditions: 
 

1. Site plan approval is subject to the drawing submitted by GS Global. 
2. During construction, applicant shall adhere to proper erosion control measures. 
3. Applicant shall replace the trees to be removed for the additional parking. 

 
I appreciate the opportunity to assist with this matter.  Should questions arise, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
Cc:      John Weidl, Village Administrator (via email) 
 Steve Braatz, Jr., Village Clerk (via email) 
 Joe Hankovich, Supervisor of Inspections (via email) 
           Bob Harley, Code Official (via email) 
 Kurt Peot, P.E., Village Engineer (via email) 
           John Thornton, GS Global (via email) 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

2010 Aerial Photo 

 

2015 Aerial Photo with driveway removed 

 



I

vlllage of Mukwonago
440 River Crest Court, P.O. Box 206

Mukwonago, Wl 53149
Phone: (262) 363-6420
Fax: (262) 363-6425
www.villageof mu kwonago.com

Date Submitted ó

VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO
S¡TE PLAN, ARCHITECTURAL, AND PLANNED

uNlT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) APPLICATION
Application Fee: Below

FEES

(Please check one)

u Minor Site Plan (Buildings less than 600 sq. ft.): S135.00 plus S.02 per sq. ft.

)1' Site Plan and/or Architectural Review: 5250.00 plus S.02 per sq. ft.
D Conceptual Site Plan and/or Architectural Review: 5200.00 plus S.02 per sq. ft
tr Planned Unit Development (PUD) Review: 5185.00 plus S25.00/unit

CONTACTS I

Zoning Department
Contact: Joe Hankovich

Phone: {.262l'363-6419
Fax: (2621363-6425
Email: jhankovich@villageofmukwonago.com

Planning Department
Contact: Bruce Kaniewski

Phone: (414) 339-4105

Fax: (262) 363-6425
Email: planner@villageofmukwonago.com

GUIDETINES

The undersigned petition is to consider a request, as stated herein, for the specified parcel(s) of land and will be reviewed

by the Plan Commission and Village Board of the Village of Mukwonago. The application packet must be filed with the

Village Clerk at least 30 davs prior to the meeting of the Planning Commission at which action ¡s desired. The Plan

Commission meets on the second Tuesday of each month at 6:30 p.m.

Materials listed below must be provided to the Village of Mukwonago in accordance with Village Municipal Code Chapter

100 Article lX. Section 1OO-601(f) and other pertinent sections of Village ordinances, and, as necessary, to permit review

that is consistent with proper planning practice. The Village will strive to accommodate reasonable requests for informal

preliminary staff review, however the Village shall not place any ¡tems on the agenda for Plan Commission consideration

until such time as the application is complete in accordance with all requirements specified on this and other attached

application forms.

Mail completed applications to:

Deliver to

Email to

Village Planner

ATTN: Site Plan/Architectural Plan/Planned Unit Development

PO Box 206

Mukwonago, Wl 53149

Village Clerk's Office
440 River Crest Court
planner@vil lageof mu kwonago.com

Complete, accurate and specific information must be entered. Please Print.

APPIICANT (Full LegalName)

Name: ôY\

Company:

Address: q24 Pa¡ltws
Dayt¡me Phone: 2¿à-<1e ^<

City:

Fax:

E-Mail

7t't\
xaæz þJ! zipt lfln



APPIICANT lS REPRESENTED BY (Full Lesal Name)

Name:

Company:

Address: City:

Fax:

State: Zip: _
Daytime Phone:

ARCHITECT

I
E-Mail:

Name:

Company:

Address¡ City:

Fax:

State: _ Zip: 

-Dayt¡me Phone:

E-Mail:

PROFESSIONAT ENGINEER

Name:

Company:

Address: City:

Fax:

State: Zip: _
Daytime Phone:

E-Mail: I

REGISTERED SURVEYOR

Name:

Company:

Address: City: State: _ Zip

Daytime Phone:

E-Mail:

Fax:

CONTRACTOR

Name

Companyl

Address:

Daytime Phone: .ft4- l.
cityt 2c¿no¡uat¿)ac starc: h)/ zipt {30/;6&^

Fax:

I

e,

E-Mail: @ a-5
L
l.c¿rn

Site Plan/Arch¡tectural/PUD Review Application (Rev 0U16)



I

PROPERTY ¡NFORMATION

Property

Address:

Owner (sl (iT d¡Íferent from applicont)

1Lb ?"rb,nt bÊ-
Joü,n 7\o,'^fun, 121 Pr'p"rlies

state: ÂJ/ zipt 53lfîCity:

Fax:Daytime Phone:

E-Mail

Present Zoning:

f o¡l r

Tax Key No(s).: lllf kt/nq'î88æt
f"*.location/Address:

Present Use: lntended Use tr-^L

pRocEDURAt CHECKUST FOR S|TE PLAN/ARCHTTECTURAt PIAN/PUD REVIEW AND APPROVAT

Submittals for review must include and be accompanied by the following:

Application:
tr Completed application form including the procedural checklist.
0 Application fee: See page L.

tr Agreement for Reimbursable Services (separate application).

Other Documents:
B Five(s) complete sets of Application and materials, in addition to the original, for Village of

Mukwonago review.
tr Project Summary: Please attach a statement detailing the reasons and background for this

request including: details of proposal, services provided, wares sold, plans and hours of
operation, number of employees, frequency of customer visits, frequency of deliveries to site,

description of any interior/exterior modifications or additions to be made to property, any

outside storage (dumpsters, trucks, materials...), number of parking stalls, screening/buffer
type, any other information available. PLEASE EXPLAIN IN DETAIL,

tr Electronic Submittals are required. Email (or CD ROM) with all plans and submittal materials in

Adobe PDF to pla nner(ôvillaeeofmu kwonago.com.
B Any additional information as determined by Village staff.

Upon receipt of a complete submittal, staff review will be conducted within ten business

days.
All Site Plan, Architectural, and Planned Unit Development rev¡ew requests require Plan

Commission review and Village Board approval.

I

a

o

Site Plan/Architectural/PUD Review Application (Rev 01/16)



CERTIFICAT¡ON

Applicant hereby certifies that:

t. All of the above statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best of his or her

knowledge.
2. Affirms that no Village of Mukwonago elected or appointed official or employee has a proprietary interest in the above referenced

property for which this applications being filed (except as stated below under "Exceptions").

3. None of the above referenced individuals has been promised or given any contract for consultation, planning or construction in

relation to this project (except as stated below under "Exceptions").

4. Applicant has read and understands all information in this packet.

Applicant further understands the policies of the Village regarding change of zonings and property development. Conditions of the

resolution regarding all approvals are strictly followed. Certificates of Occupancy are not given until all conditions of approval have been

met

By the execution of this application, applicant hereby authorizes the V¡llage of Mukwonago or its agents to enter upon the property

during the hours of 7:00 am to 7:00 pm daily for the purpose of inspection. Applicant grants this authorization to enter even if this land

has been posted against trespassing pursuant to Section 943.13 Wl Stats.

(The oppticont's signature must be from a Monogíng Member if the business is an LLÇ or lrom the President or Vice President if the

business is a corporotion. A signed opplicont's outhorizøtion letter moy be provided in lieu of the applicønt's signature below, ond a signed

property owner's outhorization letter moy be provided in lieu of the property owner's signøture[s] below. lf more than one, all of the

owners of the property this Application).

- Property Owner cant

t

t-yr Ìil,* ¡(
Name & Title (PRINT)

,t
Date

Name & Title NT)

5 IL
Date

Signature - Property Owner Signature - Applicant's Representãtive

Name & Title (PRINT)

Date

Name & Title (PRINT)

Date

Receipt #Date Paid

Village Board Date{sfPlan Commission Date(s)

Escrow Amount
Escrow Required? E Yes üNo

Vlllage Eoard Disposition

ISite Plan/Architectural/PUD Review Application (Rev 0U16)



Village of Mukwonago, Post Office Box 206, 440 River Crest Court, Mukwonago, Wisconsin 53149
www.villaqeofmukwonaoo.com, (262) 363-6420, (262) 363'6425

Agreement for Reimbursable Seryices
Petitioner/Appl icanUProperty Owner

ln accordance with Village Ordinance 70-15, the Village may retain the services of professional consultants
(including planners, engineers, architects, attorneys, environmental specialists, recreation specialists, and
other experts) to assist in its review of a proposal coming before the Plan Commission/Board of Building and
Zoning Appeals. The Village reserves the right to apply the charges for these services as well as for staff time
expended in the administration, investigation and processing of applications to the Applicant.

The Applicant is required to provide the Village with an executed copy of this agreement as a prerequisite to
the processing of the development application. The submittal of a development proposal application or petition

shall be construed as an agreement to pay for such professional review services applicable to the proposal.
The Village may delay acceptance of the application or petition as complete, or may delay final approval of the
proposal, until such fees are paid by the Applicant. The Property Owner acknowledges that review fees which
are applied to an Applicant, but which are not paid by such Applicant, may be charged by the Village as an

assessment against the subject property for current services provided the property.

Note: Consultant services (e.g. engineering, planning, surveying, legal, etc.) and Village administrative time
may be charged in addition to the normal costs payable by the ApplicanVPetitioner/Property Owner (e.9.

application filing fees, permit fees, publication expenses, recording fees, impact fees, etc.)

lzt Q'k;^, - P*L;^,L! $p^;^
(Project Name/Nature of Appfi cation)

l{tuw t1r'l qßÕÞ1

I

I

(Property Tax Key Numbers lnvolved in Project)

(Print Name of ner)

(s of Appl ica nt/Petitioner)
slt+l P

(Da{e)

[^ (
(Print Name Owner)

re of Property 0

luP.rt',^t Þ

(Date)

(Mailing Address)

(City, ST Zip)

(Form I, Rev 4/15)

I

lilt ,¿q

5



--.-

GLOBAL
RESOURCES

926 Perkins Dr. - Parking Lot Expansion

We are looking to add 14 parking spaces to our existing parking area on the East side

of the g26 Perkins Drive building for our office professionals working in this building.

We are retaining the existing landscaping in the area to maintain the current aesthetic

appearance of the area. This parking addition covers approximately 2,460 square feet,

which is a minimal amount of the total area of the parcel (approximately .6%).

s

ú*d
.ùñ

hoo^

92ó Perkins Drive. Mukwonogo, t{l 53149 .262-378-5200. tAX: 2ó2-378-5400 ¡ 800-2ól-8735. www.gsglobolresources.tom





Ordinance No.  ____ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 62-20 (d) OF CHAPTER 64 OF THE VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO 
MUNICIPAL CODE, KNOWN AS THE SIGN CODE, PERTAINING TO DIRECTIONAL SIGNS IN 

MANUFACTURING ZONING DISTRICTS 

Whereas, the Plan Commission of the Village of Mukwonago from time to time reviews regulations 
pertaining to the Sign Code; and  
 
Whereas, the Plan Commission with recommendation from Village staff has determined that in the 
interest of orderly development and public safety in the Village that the regulation to allow on-site 
directional signs should be amended to allow larger directional signs in manufacturing zoning districts to 
assist with the orderly and safe flow of truck traffic on a site separate from other vehicle and pedestrian 
flow; and 
 
Whereas, the Plan Commission at a regularly scheduled meeting of June 14, 2016 recommended to the 
Village Board that the Section 62-20 (d) pertaining to directional signs be amended as provided here-in; 
and 
 
Whereas, as the amendment is minor and does not affect the whole Village, the Plan Commission 
recommends the Village Board does not need to conduct a public hearing before consideration in 
accordance with Section 64-40 (c) of the Sign Code. 
 
Now, Therefore, the Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Mukwonago, Waukesha and Walworth 
Counties, Wisconsin, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section I.   Section 64-20 (d) of the Sign Code shall be replaced with the following: (changes shown in 
red for purposes of this draft). 
 
(d)  Traffic directional signs, off-street on private property.
(1)  Off-street traffic directional signs on private property that direct traffic from public right-of-way shall 
require permits.  
(2)  No more than one single-faced or double-faced freestanding off-street traffic directional sign shall 
be permitted for each driveway; except that multiple signs may be allowed for orderly traffic flow within 
manufacturing zoning districts, with approval of the Zoning Administrator.  
(3)  The traffic directional sign shall be installed on a durable base of at least 12 inches in height, and at 
least as wide as the sign. The sign base shall be in a color and material consistent with the sign. The 
traffic directional sign shall not be placed on a pole.  
(4)  The traffic directional sign shall not exceed two square feet per side; except shall not exceed nine 
square feet per side within manufacturing zoning districts. 
(5)  The traffic directional sign shall not exceed three feet in height; except shall not exceed five feet in 
height within manufacturing zoning districts. 
(6)  The traffic directional sign shall be setback a minimum of five feet from any property line and shall 
be located so as not to impede vehicular or pedestrian traffic flow.  
(7)  If a driveway is shared by two or more businesses or other premises the size and height maximums 
remain as above.  
(8)  A traffic directional sign shall not identify any business or organization name, logo or advertising; 
except within manufacturing zoning districts with approval of the Zoning Administrator.  
(9)  Notwithstanding procedures elsewhere in this chapter 64, any traffic directional sign permit may be 
approved by the building inspector after approval by the zoning administrator; however, review 
assistance by the plan commission may be requested.  



 

 
 
Section II:  Severability.   The several sections of this ordinance are declared to be severable.  If any 
section shall be declared by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decisions shall not 
affect the validity of other portions of the ordinance. 
 
Section III:  Effective Date.   This ordinance shall take effect upon publication.  Passed and adopted this 
___ day of ___________, 2016. 
 
                                            _______________________________________ 
 Fred H. Winchowky, Village President 
 
                                                                                       Attest: _______________________________________ 
 Steven A. Braatz, Jr., Village Clerk 
 
 
 
Date Adopted:    
Date Published: 
Date Effective: 



1 
 

Land Use Category Descriptions Approved By Steering Committee 
June 2, 2016 
 
Business Mixed Use Overlay (new) 
Where undeveloped land or land with redevelopment potential in the Village is within the 
Interstate Planning District or the Main Street/River South Planning District that with the 
addition of residential dwelling units or a combination of uses (commercial, retail, office or 
other related uses) will enhance the business/commercial environment, efficiently utilizes land, 
provides housing choices to enhance an active and growing economic base and improves 
aesthetics of the built environment.   Mixed-use development may be within a single building or 
within a unified development blending a combination of business with dwelling units on upper 
floors or in a separate building where the mix of uses are physically and functionally integrated.   
Sites designated with this land use category may be solely residential if compatible with existing 
or planned and approved adjacent business/commercial uses in terms of pedestrian friendly, 
good traffic flow and proper utilities to provide for the greater intensity of land use.  A density 
of up to 20 dwelling units per acre should be allowed in business mixed use with appropriate 
height and design standards, although densities exceeding 20 dwelling units per acre may be 
allowed if on-site and off-site amenities (such as dedicated open space) completed with the 
development are provided, and the site is part of a Village designated redevelopment plan or 
tax incremental financing district.   Furthermore, this Business Mixed Use Overlay land use 
category is solely to be applied as an optional development style to specific properties or areas 
only within the Interstate Planning District or the Main Street/River South Planning District. 
 
Recommend Zoning District:  New Planned Unit Development standards to allow for mixed use 
as an overlay district with appropriate base zoning district for business. 
 
High Density Multi-Family (new) 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village located only solely within the 
Interstate Planning District near existing or planned higher intensity non-residential land use 
areas with good access to utilities and arterial streets with the purpose to provide high density 
and potentially taller multi-family (3 or more dwellings per building).   A density to a maximum 
of 15 dwelling units per acre should be allowed in high density multi-family.   
 
Recommended Zoning District:  New R-15, High Density Multi-Family District. 
 
Medium Density Multi-Family (new) 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village is at an appropriate location with good 
access to utilities and arterial streets to provide for moderate density and low level multi-family 
buildings (3 or more dwellings per building).  Furthermore, this land use category is intended to 
be located as a transition between more intense and less intense land use districts.   A density 
of between five (5) and 10 dwelling units per acre should be allowed in medium density multi-
family at a maximum of two (2) stories.  This land use category is intended to be applied to 
existing and built multi-family sites with density levels over 10 dwellings per acre with no more 
density/dwelling units added to those existing developments. 
 



2 
 

Recommended Zoning District:   Amended R-10, Medium Density Multi-Family District for 
existing or new multi-family development. 
 
Low Density Multi-Family (new description) 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village, with good access to utilities and 
arterial streets, can serve as transitional land use been land uses of varying intensities serving 
the purpose of providing an alternative quality housing choice from traditional single family 
detached housing.  Two-family detached dwellings (duplexes) either on individual lots or in a 
unified complex; or one multi-family building or a unified complex of multi-family buildings (3 
or more dwellings per building) should be allowed in low density multi-family at a density of no 
more than five (5) dwelling units per acre at a maximum of two (2) stories.   Housing dedicated 
to senior citizens may exceed five (5) dwelling units per acre, up to 20 dwelling units per acre 
and exceed stated building height restriction. 
 
Recommended Zoning District:   New R-5, Low Density Multi-Family District for existing or new 
multi-family development (current R-5 Planned Mobile Home District to be eliminated). 



 

1 
 

Village of Mukwonago Comprehensive Plan Update 
Goals and Objectives Statement 

As approved by Steering Committee; May 19, 2016 
 
The foundation of a comprehensive plan is goals and objectives.   They provide overall policy guidance 
as the plan is prepared, adopted and implemented.   Goals are statements to provide a long term end 
result desired by the Village.  Objectives are specific and sometime measurable statements that mark 
progress to a goal, while policies are principles creating a course of action, or a task to achieve a goal or 
objective. 

Comprehensive Plan 2035 for the Village of Mukwonago adopted in 2009 listed 13 overall goals, and 
then listed detailed goals, objectives and policies for each separate plan element.   The overall goals 
were as follows: 

1. To preserve and enhance the Village’s quality of life including its historical identity, its small 
town atmosphere, its community events, and its traditional downtown. 

2. To protect and preserve the Village’s sensitive ecosystems and cooperatively support 
environmental quality of the surrounding region. 

3. To provide outdoor recreation opportunities for Village residents of all ages through the 
development and maintenance of Village parks, recreational areas, trails and open space. 

4. To provide health and recreational programming for youth and adults and encourage private 
facilities to provide such programming. 

5. To maintain the accepted levels of public services for residents and business owners in a fiscally 
conservative manner being able to withstand the ever-fluctuating economic marketplace. 

6. To develop a land use plan that provides ample new development opportunities and identifies 
redevelopment opportunities. 

7. To provide a variety of housing options in the Village that are affordable for residents of various 
socioeconomic income levels including first-time homebuyers and public servants. 

8. To attract and retain high quality development that enhances and diversifies the Village’s 
economic base. 

9. To support the long-term economic vitality and viability of the Village’s downtown. 
10. To promote and provide multi-modal transportation including public transportation throughout 

the Village and its neighboring communities. 
11. To promote a sustainable downtown that balances the need for public investment and a 

revitalized atmosphere of economic development taking advantage of opportunities to attract 
new businesses to underutilized storefronts. 

12. To track desirable development throughout the Village with a focus on the Gateway District and 
beyond. 

13. To maintain and improve intergovernmental cooperation efforts with neighboring municipalities 
to provide efficient and cost-effective community services, infrastructure and facilities.  



 

2 
 

With the above goal statements in mind, a review of the progress the Village has achieved from 2009 to 
today yields a generally positive result, but plenty remains left to achieve toward community 
betterment.  Some of the progress toward the goals since 2009 includes the following: 

� Dialogue between the Village and downtown business owners and property owners resulting in 
shared solutions of traffic flow, parking and business expansion.  Today the downtown is 
healthier than it has been in the past 30 years. 

� Village officials regularly meet with local industries and businesses to understand their needs 
resulting in improved communications that has enhanced business expansion and relocation 
within the Village (with new job creation). 

� A local industry, a local property owner and the Village working together to begin development 
of a new business park. 

� The Mukwonago Area School District working together with local industries and businesses 
toward improved work force development and training. 

� The Village supporting property owners and developers toward new retail development at both 
the north and south side business hubs of the Village. 

� A steady level of new single family housing starts, along with several new high-quality multi-
family developments. 

� Entire community support of a new YMCA providing health and recreation to the community, 
along with support of an expanded public library. 

� Community support of expanded medical services with a 24 hour/7 days a week fully staffed 
emergency department. 

The above points highlight several of the many advances made in the community by following the goals 
of the Comprehensive Plan 2035.  Yet, in 2016, precipitated by a regional shift of housing demand and 
proposed new developments to fill the local demand, and external economic factors dictating the need 
for continued growth through development, the Village has reached a critical crossroads regarding how 
the Village will look and feel in the future.   The Village Board decided the land use element and policies 
associated with land use needed an update.   A Steering Committee representing a cross-section of 
residents and community leaders was appointed to assist the Village Plan Commission and Village Board 
to determine the future look and feel of the Village through land use.    

The Steering Committee was asked to respond to a question with the purpose of gauging their individual 
and initial thoughts of where the Village has been and should be.   While there was no right or wrong 
answers, the responses provided great insight toward the overall direction the committee will pursue. 

The Question:  What Type of Community are we and should we be, pertaining to the future look and 
feel? 

The Individual Responses were: 

� (We are a) bedroom community. 
� (Must have) growth that responds to demand. 



 

3 
 

� Need multi-family.  
� (Need) focused senior housing. 
� (Continue) sense of community. 
� (Need) more industrial. 
� (Need) business (that) supports good paying jobs. 
� (Should be) like Oconomowoc (with downtown redevelopment and perimeter quality business) 
� (Must have) sustainable and responsible growth. 
� (Need) senior housing and flexible housing (that can be converted over the years to fit housing 

need) for future use. 
� (Need to be) desirable, exciting and family (oriented). 
� Need to be forward thinking. 
� (Maintain) romantic, community atmosphere. 
� (Must be) fiscally wise. 
� (Need) land use plan to enhance sustainability and livable (community). 
� (Need to advance) community through start of modern era. 
� Need to address (maintaining) a healthy downtown. 
� (Need to address development) projects that don’t pan out. 
� (Need to address) vacant buildings (that) look terrible. 
� (Need to address) downtown (that) doesn’t look great. 
� (Should pursue) burying of power lines. 
� (Need) middle of the road growth. 
� (Village is a) good hometown. 
� (Retain and attract) locally (owned) business. 
� (Need) more multi-family. 
� (Need to address) downtown parking versus keep buildings—(do we need a) parking structure? 
� (Need to identify) redevelopment (opportunities) and where? 

The overall conclusion drawn from the responses and subsequent comments shared between 
committee members is that the committee desires to steer the community in a similar direction as 
approved in 2009.  At the same time, the responses recognize the need to adjust policy for community 
improvement. 

Therefore, the committee created the following goal and objectives to guide the preparation and 
implementation of the plan update focusing on land use. 

 

 

 



 

4 
 

Goal: The land use goal of the Village of Mukwonago is to maintain the atmosphere of a village life style 
that maintains a healthy and prosperous downtown, that provides support for well-maintained and an 
aesthetically appealing built environment, that provides sustainability through moderate growth of all 
land uses and that recognizes the need to continually provide quality life cycle housing; while developing 
specific opportunities for more intensive use of the land to serve the community with quality jobs and 
housing without impacting the overall village life style. 

The objectives to meet the land use goal are as follows:   

� To continually work with business owners, property owners and community organizations 
toward policies that enhance the continuous prosperity of Village. 

� To provide land uses and redevelopment opportunities in and around the downtown that is 
complementary to and supports a strong business community. 

� To safeguard that new development or redevelopment protects the livability of existing Village 
neighborhoods. 

� To create opportunities for land conservation promoting developments that create quality jobs, 
provide goods and services to the community, and provides life-cycle housing. 

� To seek land uses that allow for a variety of housing types for a growing and diverse population 
meeting the needs of all age groups while sustaining a suitable ratio of single family detached 
homes. 

� To encourage alternative styles of new housing development or redevelopment that can be 
adjustable to meet future housing demands. 

� To evaluate all new development or redevelopment in conjunction with the goals and objectives 
of other comprehensive plan elements, especially with the needs and capacities of local schools, 
public utilities, local streets, storm water management and water quality, and the provision of 
proper police and fire protection. 

� To evaluate all new development or redevelopment with quality architectural, site and 
landscaping design principles.  

� To ensure open spaces and recreational opportunities are provided for existing and new 
residents, along with the protection and integration of the many local environmental features 
into new developments or redevelopments for the enjoyment of residents. 

� To coordinate with property owners and business owners toward a well maintained and 
aesthetically pleasing built environment. 

It is with the overall land use goal, objectives and policies that the Village of Mukwonago has the 
available tools to advance the quality of life for all citizens and businesses. 

 

 



1 
 

Village of Mukwonago Comprehensive Plan Update 
Land Use Categories 

As approved by the Steering Committee; May 19, 2006 
 
DESCRIPTIONS OF LAND USE CATEGORIES 
 
The foundation of the any land use element of a Comprehensive Plan are the descriptions of 
the land use categories to be assigned to individual properties or a grouping of properties 
shown on the future land use map.  The categories are generally listed from least intense to 
most intense use of land.  Each description outlines the form that the land use category will 
undertake in the built environment to guide decision makers with plan implementation; mainly 
through application of zoning districts and standards and other land use policies and 
regulations. 
 
Each land use category is followed by a recommendation for implementation via a specific 
zoning district or a variety of zoning districts depending upon the circumstance.  Many of the 
zoning district recommendations apply to Village zoning code districts in use in 2016, while 
others suggest a new zoning district with accompanying standards.  
 
To further define several categories, two special planning districts are established:  the 
Interstate Planning District and the Main Street/River South Planning District.   Each district may 
contain multiple land use categories, but certain categories may apply only to the special 
planning districts for the purpose of direct specific plan implementation.  Descriptions and a 
map of the special planning districts are provided at the end of this section. (Please note this 
paragraph will be part of the update text if the planning districts are approved by the 
committee). 
 
Agriculture/Large Lot Single Family 
Where continued agriculture will likely occur or where land already developed for large lot 
single family outside of Village but within the extraterritorial planning area.  The minimum lot 
size is generally around one acre, but should not be less than 37,500 square feet. 
 
Recommended Zoning Districts:  A-1, Agricultural for annexed or attached lands that will 
remain in an agricultural use; R-8 Single Family Estate Residential District for new single family 
subdivisions, or the R-9 Single Family Rural Residential District for two-family and multi-family 
existing at time of annexation or attachment.    
 
Executive Style Large Lot Single Family 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village is at the perimeter of the community, 
and site conditions, such as environmental features, and location dictate a larger lot size to 
serve the needs of the population desiring a larger home size.  The minimum lot size should not 
be less than 37,500 square feet. 



2 
 

Recommended Zoning District:   R-8, Single Family Estate Residential District for new single 
family subdivisions.    
 
Medium Lot Single Family I  
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village has site conditions, such as 
environmental features, and has a location to provide a step down in density from larger lots to 
smaller lots.  The minimum lot size should not be less than 25,000 square feet. 
 
Recommended Zoning District:   R-7, Single Family Intermediate Residential District for new 
single family subdivisions.    
 
Medium Lot Single Family II 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village is adjacent to existing subdivisions with 
similar lot sizes or is at the appropriate location with access to utilities and adjoining arterial 
streets.   The minimum lot size should not be less than 15,000 square feet.  This category also 
applies to existing subdivisions with similar lot sizes. 
 
Recommended Zoning District:   R-1, Single Family Community Residential District for new and 
existing single family subdivisions.    
 
Small Lot Single Family 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village has good access to utilities and 
adjoining arterial streets, which is an appropriate location for a step down in land use intensity 
between more intense land uses and larger lot sizes, and can serve the purpose of providing 
moderately valued and quality single family housing.   The minimum lot size should be in the 
range of 10,000 to 12,000 square feet. 
 
Recommended Zoning District:   R-2, Single Family Village Residential District for new single 
family subdivisions.    
 
Conservation Subdivision Design 
 
Where unique site features promote the design of open space in common ownership in return 
for a cluster of smaller lots, but at the same density of the underlying recommended single 
family land use category.   The Village benefits from preservation of natural resources, such as 
steep slopes and woodlands, and from the efficient design of less length of public streets and 
utilities to maintain. This land use category is intended to be an optional design within each of 
the single family land use categories. 
 
Recommended Zoning District:  Create new overlay criteria and standards to allow for 
conservation subdivision design. 
 
 
 



3 
 

Historical Residential 
Where single family and two-family homes exist within the long established residential 
neighborhoods of the Village near downtown.  Lot sizes in this land use typically range from 
8,000 to 12,000 square feet.  The minimum lot size of any new lot in a redevelopment activity 
should not be less than 12,000 square feet.   This land use also applies to long established 
residential areas within the Town of Mukwonago along the south and west shore of Lower 
Phantom Lake, which areas have the potential of ultimately being part of the Village. 
 
Recommended Zoning Districts:   R-2, Single Family Village Residential District for existing 
single family subdivision in the Village; new R-5, Low Density Multi-Family District for existing 
two-family properties; or the R-9, Single Family Rural Residential District for small lots existing 
at time of annexation or attachment.    
 
Village Center/Downtown 
Where unified standards would support the continuance of a prosperous downtown core and 
surrounding area that has been the Village’s historical center of commerce and residential; with 
the residential dwellings either intermixed with the commerce or existing neighborhoods 
preserved surrounding the downtown core.  The intermixing of commercial/business with 
dwellings can be either in a single building or with dwellings in a separate building.  The 
integrity of street level commerce activity along the main traffic and pedestrian corridors 
should be maintained. 
 
Recommended Zoning District:  New overlay standards for the R-2, Single Family Village 
Residential District; new R-5, Low Density Multi-Family District; B-1, Neighborhood Business 
District or the B-2, General Business District. 
 
Low Intensity Commercial/Business 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village is near to or currently exists with 
commerce along major arterial corridors or at intersections of major arterials.   Sites within this 
land use category are typically designed with low level buildings, with a floor area ratio of 35% 
or less and with surrounding surface parking.  The types of commercial and/or business 
establishments within this land use category tend to provide goods and services to residents of 
the Village and surrounding service area. 
 
Recommended Zoning Districts: B-2, General Business District; or B-3, Community Business 
District. 
 
High Intensity Commercial/Business 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village is appropriately located in an area with 
a surrounding street and highway system that can effectively handle higher traffic volumes, 
with adequate existing or planned utility capacity, and located and only located in the Interstate 
Planning District.  Sites within this land use category may be designed with taller buildings, with 
floor area ratios above 35% and with either or a combination of surface parking, parking 
structures or shared parking with neighboring uses.   The types of commercial and/or business 



4 
 

establishments within this land use category tend to provide goods and services to residents of 
the Village and surrounding service area, and to residents of the greater region beyond a 15 
minute travel time from the Village. 
 
Recommended Zoning District: B-4, Commercial Business Design District. 
 
Business Park 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village can support a mixture of larger 
buildings with commerce and light industrial uses that is appropriately located in an area with a 
surrounding street and highway system that can effectively handle higher traffic volumes, with 
adequate existing or planned utility capacity, and located away from residential unless 
appropriately buffered through unified layout of the area and individual site design.   
Businesses in this land use category benefit from proximately to good transportation routes but 
do not need direct visibility from adjoining streets and highways to remain successful.  Sites 
within this land use category may be designed with low level or taller buildings and with floor 
area ratios above 35%.  This land use category promotes a wide range of sustainable 
employment for residents of the Village and surrounding service area, and to residents of the 
greater region. 
 
Recommended Zoning Districts:  B-5, Planned Business and Light Industrial District or any of the 
manufacturing districts (M-1 through M-5) that is appropriate for the level of intensity within 
the design of the business park. 
 
Industrial 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village is near good transportation corridors 
to support truck traffic, has adequate existing or planned utility capacity and is located in areas 
not detrimental to the enjoyment and use of other existing or planned land uses.     Proximity to 
other forms of transportation, such as rail, is also important to this land use category.  The type 
of businesses located within this land use category can range from light to heavy industrial, 
with light industrial placed at the perimeter of the industrial area.   Sites within this land use 
category may be designed with low level or taller buildings and with floor area ratios above 
35%.  This land use category promotes a wide range of sustainable entry level to career 
employment for residents of the Village and surrounding service area, and to residents of the 
greater region. 
 
Recommended Zoning Districts:  Any of the manufacturing districts (M-1 through M-5) that is 
appropriate for the level of intensity within the design of the industrial area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

Government and Institutional 
 
Where land in the Village or planned to be in the Village is utilized for a public purpose or a 
quasi-public purpose.  Properties in this category may be publicly owned by the Village, 
Waukesha or Walworth County, the State of Wisconsin, or the Mukwonago Area School District 
or the East Troy School District.  Quasi-public properties may include churches and religious 
institutions and non-profit organizations.   
 
Recommended Zoning Districts:  P-1, Public and Semi-Public District. 
 
Open Space/Recreational 
 
Where land or portions of land in the Village or planned to be in the Village is planned for active 
or passive park space, or the land is covered by an environmental feature to be preserved.  An 
environmental feature may include a regulated floodplain, or designated wetland or 
environmental corridor.  Storm water management features also may be within this category. 
 
Recommended Zoning Districts:  P-1, Public and Semi-Public District; the FW Floodway, FC 
Floodplain Conservancy or the GDP General Floodplain Districts, or the SW Shoreland Overlay 
District. 
 
Extractive 
 
Where land or portions within the extraterritorial planning jurisdiction of the Village has 
subsurface potential for non-metallic mining, as defined by the State of Wisconsin.  Common 
names for uses in this category include quarries, gravel pit or sand pit.  This category is 
considered to be an overlay land use option. 
 
Recommended Zoning District:  No zoning district needed unless land with extraction potential 
is annexed or attached to the Village. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Village of Mukwonago 
Steering Committee of the Comprehensive Master Plan Update 
Page 1 of 3 
 

MINUTES OF THE STEERING COMMITTEE OF THE COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN UPDATE 
Thursday, April 21, 2016 

 
 
Call to Order 
Chairperson   Tom Karthausser called  the  meeting  to  order  at  6:33  p.m.  located in  the  Committee Room 
of the Mukwonago Municipal Building, 440 River Crest Court 
 
Roll Call 
Committee Members present: Roger Walsh 
     Joe McAdams 
     Mary Patz 
     Linda Burg 
     Klaus Heitmann 
     Jason Wamser 
     Suzie Bauer 
     Jean Schultz 
     Tom Karthausser 
     John Meiners 
     Shelly Yergens 
     April Reszka 

Fred Winchowky, Village President 
Also present:    Bruce Kaniewski, Planner 
     John Weidl, Village Administrator 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Motion made by F. Winchowky to approve the April 7, 2016 meeting minutes; seconded by J. Wamser.  
Motion to approve the minutes carried. 
In deference to the ambitious meeting agenda, Chair T. Karthausser called upon Committee members to 
exercise efficiency in language, keeping comments succinct and on-topic. 
 
Review, discussion and consideration of Draft Goal and Objectives statement to guide  Comprehensive Plan 
Update  
B. Kaniewski presented a document which lists comments made by the Committee at the 4/7/16 meeting and 
reflects those comments in a draft goal/objective document.   
 
The Committee first focused on the language of the draft Goal statement, making redline revisions based upon 
discussion.  It was suggested that “small town” be stricken and that the term “village” be used in place of 
“downtown”. 



Village of Mukwonago 
Steering Committee of the Comprehensive Master Plan Update 
Page 2 of 3 
 
A review of the ten draft objectives prompted further suggestions: 

� On points one and two, the term “downtown” be replaced with “village” 
� On point ten, strike the work “all” preceding property owners 
� Point four prompted much discussion, particularly with the built and natural environment.  Staff will 

review and likely split this point  into two separate objective statements 
Village staff will edit the document based upon Committee feedback and present it for further discussion at 
the next meeting. 
 
 
Staff presentation of General background of 2009 plan, current land use, potential growth areas within the 
village and outside village per boundary agreements and examples of new developments  
The Committee reviewed numerous documents and witnessed a demonstration of the GIS (graphic 
information system) which portrays village features, boundaries, current zoning designations, streets and 
other information.   
 
A graphic representation of relative lot sizes, buildable lot areas and current and proposed developments in 
the village, including housing density was presented to the Committee for informational purposes. 
 
For planning purposes, the Village is permitted to consider land that is 1.5 miles beyond our borders, including 
those with boundary agreements.  This planning area has been divided into five general zones; each of which 
will be the subject of a future Committee meeting.  The zones are: 

� North:  north of Highway NN, including State Highway 83 
� Mid:  north boundary of Highway NN south to County trunk ES.  This includes the St. James property 
� East:  east of the Fox river/County trunk ES towards Vernon 
� RiverSouth/Waterfront:  South of Phantom Lake, west of State Highway 83.  This includes the former 

Lynch dealership property. 
� Gateway:  The TID (tax incremental district) south of US Interstate 43, surrounding State Highway 83.  

This extends south to County trunk L in the town of East Troy and includes the new industrial park and 
developments east of Highway 83. 

 
Review, discussion and potential action regarding specific land use categories and zoning recommendations 
A comprehensive list of sixteen existing, revised and/or new potential categories of land use was presented.  
The first eleven such categories were read and discussed by the Committee.  It was questioned whether there 
is need for the category “high density multi-family”.  The Committee additionally wondered if removing same 
would have a financial impact on the Village.  The remainder of the proposed land use categories will be 
reviewed at the next Committee meeting. 
 
 
 



Village of Mukwonago 
Steering Committee of the Comprehensive Master Plan Update 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Public comment 
P. Pion expressed concern about removing the reference to “small town” from the Goal statement.  Further, 
he expressed concern about removing “all” from reference to property owners in point ten of the draft 
objectives. 
 
Review of upcoming meeting schedule  
There was suggestion that Committee meetings be extended to 9:00 p.m.   
There was suggestion that the first hour of Committee meeting be devoted to the general tenets of the Plan 
and land use category discussion while the second hour be devoted to discussion of one of the five zones 
within the Village.  Recognizing the enormity of the work that lies ahead, Village staff and the Committee Chair 
will develop a reasonable plan for future meetings. 
 
Village staff are charged with six tasks: 

1. Edit/reword Goal statement 
2. Edit/reword/split objective number four 
3. Develop a map indicating high density bubbles 
4. Research the impact of removing the land category “high density multi-family” 
5. Provide information …… high density….. 
6. Research feasibility/logistics of a tour of multi-family developments in the village of Delafield 

 
Adjourn 
Motion to adjourn made by A. Reszka; seconded by R. Walsh.  Motion carried. 
Meeting adjourned at 8:54 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jean Schultz 
Secretary 



MINUTES OF THE STEERING COMMITTEE OF THE COMPREHENSIVE MASTER 
PLAN UPDATE 

Thursday, May 5, 2016 

Bus Tour of Village 
Members of the Steering Committee convened at 6:30 P.M. at Village Hall for a bus tour of the community.   
Key locations were visited involving land use recommendations to be determined by the committee during 
future meetings; mainly the Gateway Neighborhood surrounding the I-43 interchange, the north side area 
along STH 83, the northeast side area along CTH ES and the South Main Street area surrounding Village 
Hall.   The tour ended at 8:00 P.M., upon returning to Village Hall. 
 
Members present: Suzie Bauer 
 Linda Burg 
 Klaus Heitman 
 Tom Karthausser 
 Mary Patz 
 Jean Schultz 
 Roger Walsh 
 Jason Wamser 
 Fred Winchowky 
 Shelly Yergens 
                    Excused:  Joe McAdams  
 John Meiners 
 April Reszka 
 
Also present: John Weidl, Village Administrator 
 Bruce Kaniewski, Village Planner 
 Kevin Schmidt, Police Chief 
 Ron Bittner, Public Works Director  
 Dave Brown, Utilities Superintendent 
 Diana Doherty, Finance Director 
 
 



 
 

MINUTES OF THE STEERING COMMITTEE OF THE COMPREHENSIVE MASTER 
PLAN UPDATE 

Saturday, May 14, 2016 

Tour of Honey Creek Apartments 
Members of the Steering Committee convened at 10:00 A.M. in the clubhouse of Honey Creek apartments 
in the Village of East Troy for a tour of the complex.   Committee members present visited a two bedroom 
and a three bedroom unit and the underground parking garage in a building.   Committee members asked 
questions of the two representatives from Teronomy Builders.  The tour ended in the clubhouse at 
approximately 11:15 A.M. 
 
Members present: Tom Karthausser 
 Mary Patz 
 Jason Wamser 
 Fred Winchowky 
  
Also present: Bruce Kaniewski, Village Planner 
 Ray Goodden 
 



Meeting Minutes for Thursday, May 19, 2016 
Village of Mukwonago Steering Committee of the Comprehensive Master Plan Update 
 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 6:34 pm by Tom Karthausser. 
 
Roll Call 

Committee members in attendance: 
� Susie Bauer 
� Klaus Heitmann 
� Tom Karthausser 
� Joe McAdams 
� John Meiners 
� Mary Patz 
� Roger Walsh 
� Jason Wamser 
� Fred Winchowky 
� Shelly Yergens 

 
Excused: 
� Linda Burg 
� April Reska 
� Jean Schultz 
� Shelly Yergens 

 
Approval of Minutes 

� Motion by Mary Patz to approve the minutes of April 21, 2016. 2nd by Joe McAdams.  Motion 
approved. 

� Motion by Susie Bauer to approve the minutes of May 5th, 2016.  2nd by Fred Winchowky.  
Motion approved.  

 
Goals and Objective Statement 
Motion by Susie Bauer to approve the Draft Goals and Objectives Statement to Guide the 
Comprehensive Plan as read and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Roger Walsh.  Motion approved. 
 
Review & Discussion of Interstate Planning District & Main Street/River South Planning District 
The Committee reviewed and discussed the Interstate Planning District and the Main Street/River South 
Planning District.  The Committee will hold off on voting until specific land use categories are reviewed.  
Public comments were accepted by Tom Karthausser at this time.   
 
Review and Discussion of Specific Land Use Categories 

� Motion by Fred Winchowky to approve the Agriculture/Large Lot Single Family land use 
category as read and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Joe McAdams.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Mary Patz to approve the Executive Style Large Lot Single Family land use category as 
read and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Susie Bauer.  Motion approved. 

 



� Motion by Joe McAdams to approve the Medium Lot Single Family I land use category as read 
and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Jason Wamser.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by John Meiners to approve the Medium Lot Single Family II land use category as read 
and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Susie Bauer.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Fred Winchowky to approve the Small Lot Single Family land use category as read 
and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Mary Patz.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Joe McAdams to approve the Conservation Subdivision Design land use category as 
read and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by John Meiners.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Joe McAdams to approve the Historical Residential land use category as read and 
reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Mary Patz.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Roger Walsh to approve the Village Center/Downtown land use category as read and 
reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Fred Winchowky.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Roger Walsh to approve the Low Intensity Commercial/Business land use category as 
read and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Jason Wamser.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Joe McAdams to approve the High Intensity Commercial/Business land use category 
as read and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Roger Walsh.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Fred Winchowky to approve the Business Park land use category as read and 
reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Joe McAdams.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Jason Wamser to approve the Industrial land use category as read and reviewed 
aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Joe McAdams.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Mary Patz to approve the Government and Institutional land use category as read 
and reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Joe McAdams.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Susie Bauer to approve the Open Space/Recreational land use category as read and 
reviewed aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Jason Wamser.  Motion approved. 

� Motion by Joe McAdams to approve the Extractive land use category as read and reviewed 
aloud at the meeting.  2nd by Fred Winchowky.  Motion approved. 

 
Public Comments 
Public comments were made regarding the Tracy-Cross study that the Village can only handle about 300 
apartment units over the next five years, equaling about 60 per year.  Concerns were also expressed 
regarding 20 units per acre, and that the feeling is this is quite a large number.  A concern was also 
expressed about the Committee approving land-use categories with words like “taller”; the concern is 
the Committee shouldn’t approve vague language.  It was noted that definition can be amended as we 
move forward. 
 
Next Meetings 

� June 2 
� June 16 
� July 7 
� July 21 

 
Adjournment 

� Motion by Mary Patz to adjourn at 8:56 pm.  2nd by Joe McAdams.  Motion approved. 



Village of Mukwonago 
Steering Committee of the Comprehensive Master Plan Update 
Page 1 of 3 
 

MINUTES OF THE STEERING COMMITTEE OF THE COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN UPDATE 
Thursday, June 2, 2016 

 
Call to order 
Chairperson   Tom Karthausser called  the  meeting  to  order  at  6:31  p.m.  located in the Committee Room 
of the Mukwonago Municipal Building, 440 River Crest Court 
 
Roll call 
Committee Members present: Roger Walsh 
     Joe McAdams 
     Mary Patz 
     Linda Burg 
     Klaus Heitmann 
     Jason Wamser 
     Suzie Bauer 
     Jean Schultz 
     Tom Karthausser 
     John Meiners 
     Shelly Yergens 
     April Reszka 

Fred Winchowky, Village President 
Also present:    Bruce Kaniewski, Planner 
     John Weidl, Village Administrator 
 
Approval of minutes 
Motion made by T. Karthausser to approve the May 14, 2016 meeting minutes; seconded by F. Winchowky.  
Motion to approve the minutes carried unanimously. 
 
Motion made by J. McAdams to approve the May 19, 2016 meeting minutes; seconded by J. Meiners.  Motion 
to approve the minutes carried unanimously. 
 
Public comment 
� M. McCarthy expressed concern about traffic on Highway 83, making turns from side roads onto the 

highway difficult.  Concern was also raised about growth’s impact on the need for more police and fire 
protection and higher taxes. 

� C. Ketner expressed issue with the ‘Business Mixed Use Overlay’ relative to the use of the phrase “solely 
residential” and densities exceeding 20 dwelling units per acre. 

� B. Bailey indicated that other communities in Waukesha County use densities in the 8-10 DU/Acre range 
and worries about the proposed 20 DU/Acre proposal 



Village of Mukwonago 
Steering Committee of the Comprehensive Master Plan Update 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Village staff presentation of recommendation of land use intensities 
� B. Kaniewski indicated that total units in non-village developments may be determined based upon the 

total acreage of the project, not the actual foot print of the development. 
� B. Kaniewski recommended the committee consider higher density and higher intensity developments, but 

only in certain areas 
� Concern was expressed regarding compliance with the Fair Housing Act and other governmental 

regulations coming from Madison 
� B. Kaniewski reviewed DU/Acre (dwelling units) data from a variety of local communities 
 
Review, discussion and consideration of the Interstate Planning District and Main Street/River South 
Planning District  
B. Kaniewski presented a document which defines the parameters of these districts. 
 
Motion to approve the definition of the “Interstate Planning District and Main Street/River South Planning 
District” as presented made by J. Schultz.  Seconded by J. Meiner.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Review, discussion and consideration of specific descriptions of land use categories involving Multi-Family 
land uses  
J. Wamser presented a multi-page document he prepared addressing land use designation amendments for 
the group to consider.  
 
Each section of the Draft Land Use Categories document was read aloud with real-time editing as agreed upon 
by the committee. 
� Regarding the “Mixed Use Overlay”, R. Walsh motioned to replace the word “intended” with the word 

“solely” within the Business Mixed Use Overlay.   Seconded by S. Yergens.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Discussion ensued regarding building height restrictions and the density recommendations for Mixed Use 
Business category. 
� J. Meiners motioned to approve the Mixed Use business recommendations, retaining language as written 

in the 6/2/16 proposal.  Seconded by L. Berg.  Motion approved with 12 aye and 1 no. 
 
Continued discussion about Mixed Use definition and density limits with minor grammatical adjustments 
made in real-time. 
� Motion to approve the Business Mixed Use definition as amended made by A. Reszka.  Seconded by J. 

Meiners.  Motion approved with 11 aye and 2 no. 
 
The proposal for high density multi-family definition and density limits was reviewed and discussed.  Minor 
grammatical adjustments made in real-time. 



Village of Mukwonago 
Steering Committee of the Comprehensive Master Plan Update 
Page 3 of 3 
 
� Motion to approve the High Density Multi-Family proposal as amended made by J. Schultz.  Seconded by 

M. Patz.  Motion approved with 12 aye and 1 no. 
 
The proposal for medium density multi-family definition and density limits was reviewed and discussed.  
Language was amended real-time to include a two story height limit. 
� Motion to approve the Medium Density Multi-Family proposal as amended made by J. Meiners.  Seconded 

by A. Reszka.  Motion approved with 12 aye and 1 no. 
 
The proposal for low density multi-family definition and density limits was reviewed and discussed.  Language 
amending building height for multi-family was inserted but did not restrict building height for senior housing 
was made real-time. 
� Motion to approve Low Density Multi-Family proposal as amended made by J. McAdams.  Seconded by S. 

Yergens.  Motion approved unanimously. 
 
Public comment 
� C. Ketner expressed belief that members of the committee voted affirmatively on the Mixed Use Overlay 

proposal without understanding the clause about “exceeding 20 dwelling units per acre”. 
� B. Bailey indicated concern that the voice of the developer and not the citizen was heard 
� T. Sisk reminded the committee that fire department capabilities have changed and may no longer be 

capped by the 7 story limit of years past. 
 

J. Weidl explained that if any voting member of the committee felt they voted in error, a “motion to 
reconsider methodology” could be raised at the next committee meeting. 
 
Review of upcoming meeting schedule  
� June 16, 2016 -  Review of the South and SouthWest portions of the Village.  Citizen notification will be 

sent to affected residences. 
� July 7, 2016 – Note:  meeting to be held in downstairs meeting room 
� August 4, 2016 
� Schedule for first public information session – to be determined 
Adjourn 
Motion to adjourn made by T.Karthausser; seconded by S.Yergens.  Motion carried unanimously. 
Meeting adjourned at 9:28 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jean Schultz 
Secretary 




















	20160614PlanCommissionAgenda
	#03-MINUTES
	20160412PlanCommissionMinutesdraft

	#04-PUBLIC HEARING
	20160614100MainStCUNotice

	#05-NEW BUSINESS
	#05a-Pams Fine Wines CU
	Pams Fine Wines CU Planner Report
	Pams Fine Wines CU Application
	Pams Fine Wines CU Plans
	Pams Fine Wines CU Police Report

	#05b-Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan Planner Report
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan Application
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan Plan Set
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan 8 Unit Townhouse Plans
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan Pic 1
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan Pic 2
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan CSM
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan Preliminary Storm Water Review
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan Letter to Engineer
	Premier Woods Ph 2 Site Arch Plan Storm Water Management Plan

	#05c-926 Perkins Minor Site Plan
	926 Perkins Minor Site Plan Planner Report
	926 Perkins Minor Site Plan Application
	926 Perkins Minor Site Plan Plan

	#05d-Directional Signs
	Mukwonago 20160609 Industrial Directional Signs Amend Ord

	#05e-Comp Plan Steering Committee
	Steering Comm-AA Mukwonago 20160602 CPU approved remaining land use descriptionsr
	Steering Comm-AAA Mukwonago CPU 20160526 approved goals and objectivesr
	Steering Comm-AAA Mukwonago CPU 20160526 land use descriptions approvedr
	20160421CompPlanSteeringCommitteeMinutesr
	20160505CompPlanSteeringCommitteeMinutesr
	20160514CompPlanSteeringCommitteeSpecialMinutesr
	20160519CompPlanSteeringCommitteeMinutesr
	20160602CompPlanSteeringCommitteeMinutesr


	#06-HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
	#06a-210 Grand Ave Boat Shelter HPW Review


